
           
THROUGH THESE DOORS WALK ONLY THE FINEST PEOPLE – THE CITIZENS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. DECISIONS
ARE MADE IN THIS ROOM AFFECTING THE DAILY LIVES OF OUR PEOPLE. DIGNIFIED CONDUCT IS APPRECIATED.   CHAMBER RULES
1. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK, YOU WILL BE HEARD.
2. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO SPEAK. SIGN-UP SHEETS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE BACK OF THE ROOM.
3. YOU ARE REQUESTED TO KEEP YOUR REMARKS BRIEF AND FACTUAL.
4. BOTH SIDES ON AN ISSUE WILL BE GRANTED UNIFORM/MAXIMUM TIME TO SPEAK.
5. DURING QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS (I.E., REZONINGS), CONDUCT IS VERY FORMAL AND REGULATED BY
SUPREME COURT DECISIONS.

PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL BCC MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND TELEVISED
 

AGENDA
Board of County Commissioners

Regular Meeting –October 9, 2014– 5:30 p.m.
Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building – First Floor

             
1. Call to Order. 

Please turn your cell phone to the vibrate, silence, or off setting.

The Board of County Commissioners allows any person to speak regarding an
item on the Agenda. The speaker is limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise
determined by the Chairman, to allow sufficient time for all speakers. Speakers
shall refrain from abusive or profane remarks, disruptive outbursts, protests, or
other conduct which interferes with the orderly conduct of the meeting. Upon
completion of the Public comment period, discussion is limited to Board members
and questions raised by the Board.

 

2. Invocation – Commissioner Robinson.
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

4. Are there any items to be added to the agenda?

Recommendation: That the Board adopt the agenda as prepared (or duly
amended).

 

5. Commissioners’ Forum.
 



             
6.   Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the following five Proclamations:
 
A. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Janice Floyd, Human
Resources Associate II, on her selection as the “Employee of the Month”
for October 2014; 

B. The Proclamation congratulating the West Florida Regional Planning
Council on its 50th Anniversary and recognizing its contributions in advancing
the regional agenda; 

C. The Proclamation proclaiming the month of October 2014 as “Community
Planning Month” in Escambia County in conjunction with the celebration of
National Community Planning Month; 

D. The Proclamation congratulating Mike Thomas, General Manager; April
Adams, Rental Manager; the Eden Condominiums Owner's Association; the
Eden Condominiums' Staff; and all others involved, for organizing the event to
host veterans and their families from the “Wounded Warrior Project” and the
“Wounded War Heroes” for the week of September 20-27, 2014; and

E. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Grover C. Robinson, V,
on his activities to further his education and to make Escambia County a better
place for all of its citizens, and wishing him success in his future endeavors.

 



             
7. Written Communication
 

0.   September 18, 2014 - Communication from Ms. P. Yolanda Brown, Final Title
Coordinator, requesting the Board forgive a Code Enforcement Lien against
property located at 313 Cherokee Trail.

Recommendation:  That the Board review and consider lien relief request
made by Ms. Brown against property located at 313 Cherokee Trail.

On June 18, 2009, the Board amended the “Guidelines for Relief from
Environmental (Code) Enforcement Special Magistrate Liens” Policy, Section
III, H 2.  Staff was instructed to review all requests for forgiveness of
Environmental (Code) Enforcement Liens to determine if the request met the
criteria for forgiveness, in accordance with the Board’s policy.

After reviewing the request for forgiveness of Liens, staff made the
determination that the request DOES fall within any of the criteria that would
allow the County Administrator to deny relief, in accordance with the Board’s
Policy, “Guidelines for Relief from Environmental (Code) Enforcement Special
Magistrate Liens” Policy, Section III, H2. 

August 27, 2014, County Administrator, Jack Brown, mailed a denial letter to
Ms. Brown.

September 2014 County Administrator, Jack Brown, received another letter
from Final Title requesting relief.

Final Title has made an offer to pay all hard costs associated with this Lien
and requesting daily fines be dismissed.

 

8. Did the Clerk’s Office receive the proofs of publication for the Public Hearing(s)
on the agenda and the Board’s Weekly Meeting Schedule?

Recommendation: That the Board waive the reading of the legal
advertisement(s) and accept, for filing with the Board’s Minutes, the certified
affidavit(s) establishing proof of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the
agenda, and the Board of County Commissioners – Escambia County, Florida,
Meeting Schedule.

 



             
9.   5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of adopting an Ordinance creating

Part I, Chapter 34, Section 34-10 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances
relating to the assessment of additional court costs when a person is found
guilty of a misdemeanor involving the unlawful use of drugs or alcohol.

 



             
10. Reports:
 

 
 

CLERK & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT

Backup Not Included With The Clerk's Report Is Available For Review In
The Office Of The Clerk To The Board

Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building, Suite 130
 

I.  Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to
the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports
prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A.  Approve the Minutes of the Second Public Hearing regarding the Fiscal
Year 2014-2015 County-wide Budget;

B.  Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held September 23,
2014;

C.  Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda
Work Session held September 25, 2014; and

      (BACKUP TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)

D.  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held September 25,
2014.

 



             
GROWTH MANAGEMENT REPORT

 

I.   Public Hearing
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the
Planning Board on September 2, 2014

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard
by the Planning Board on September 2, 2014: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s
recommendations for Rezoning Cases Z-2014-13, Z-2014-14, and
Z-2014-18 or remand the cases back to the Planning Board;

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board
of County Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were reviewed.

B.

1. Case No Z-2014-13
Address: 1170 Blue Oval Lane
Property Reference No.: 29-1N-31-3301-000-000
Property Size: 3.54 (+/-) acres
From: V-1, Villages Single-Family Residential District

(one du/acre)
To: VR-2, Villages Rural Residential District (one

du/.75 acres)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Tim Kelly and Debra Perry, Owners
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Debra Perry, Tim Kelly
2. Case No.: Z-2014-14

Address: 8400 Blk Cedar Springs Road
Property Reference: 25-3N-32-1400-000-000
Property Size: 25.34 (+/-) acres
From: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District (five du/100

acres on one acre parcels)
To: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District (one du/five

acres)
FLU Category: AG, Agriculture
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Christopher Carmen, Agent for David and

Andrea Saguan, Owners



Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Christopher Carmen
3. Case No.: Z-2014-18

Address: 7170 Blue Angel Parkway
Property Reference: 25-1S-31-2101-001-002
Property Size: 4.66 (+/-) acres
From: R-R, Rural Residential District (cumulative) (two

du/acre)
To: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (25

du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Commissioner District: 1
Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Doris

Minchew, Owner
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Buddy Page
 

2.   5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing for Consideration for Adopting an Ordinance
Amending the Official Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to
include the rezoning cases heard by the Planning Board on September 2,
2014  and approved during the previous agenda item and to provide for
severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

 

3.   5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance
Amending Articles 3, 6, and 7

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an
Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Articles 3, 6 and 7
addressing definitions, permitted and conditional land uses and performance
standards related to recycling facilities and operations.

This hearing serves as the second of two required public hearings before the
Board of County Commissioners (BCC) as set forth in Section 2.08.0 (b) and
F.S. 125.66 (4) (b).

At the September 2, 2014, Planning Board Meeting, the Board recommended
approval.

 



             
II.  Action Item

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Avigation Easement Approval for Wal-Mart at
2947 South Blue Angel Parkway - Horace Jones, Development Services
Interim Director

That the Board approve the Avigation Easement in and over the Wal-Mart
property situated at the intersection of South Blue Angel Parkway and Sorrento
Road in the Pleasant Grove Community and lying in Commission District 2.

A. Accept the Dedication by Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, of an Avigation
Easement in and over the Wal-Mart Property situated at the intersection of
South Blue Angel Parkway and Sorrento Road; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice-Chairman to execute an Avigation
Easement. 

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning Construction Of Docks And Piers On
Right-Of-Way

That the Board review and approve the permitting of a dock on right-of-way
that has been dedicated to the public, but not yet opened, maintained, or
otherwise accepted by the County per LDC 7.05.00.C.12.g.

On August 8, 2013, the Board adopted Ordinance 2013-37 to establish a
process to obtain permits for construction of docks and piers on right-of-way
that has been dedicated to the public, but not yet opened, maintained, or
otherwise accepted by the County upon authorization by the Board of County
Commissioners.

This change to LDC Article 7 was based upon the fact that there are many
platted subdivisions that dedicate waterfront right-of-way to the public and in
many instances the County has not accepted these dedications. Upland
property owners often desire to build docks, piers and similar structures on or
across the area dedicated to the public.

 



             
III. Consent Agenda

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

A. October 16, 2014

1. 9:10 a.m. - A Public Hearing - SSA 2014-02 3330 West Park Place

2. 9:11 a.m. - A Public Hearing - CPA 2014-02 Concerning the Review of an
Ordinance Amending Chapter 7 of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan 

B. November 6, 2014

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the official Zoning Map to include the
following Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on September 30,
2014.

Case No.: Z-2014-16
Address: 2840 Pine Forest Road
Property Reference
No.:

38-1N-31-2301-000-000

Property Size: 12.23 (+/-) acres
From: VR-2 Villages Rural Residential District (one du/ 0.75

acre)
To: V-3 Villages Single-family Residential District (five

du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner
District

5

Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Daniel and Rhonda
Cobb, Owners

 



             
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

 

I.   Technical/Public Service Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for
the Office of the Supervisor of Elections - David H. Stafford, Supervisor of
Elections

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
Supervisor of Elections Office, for property to be auctioned as surplus or
properly disposed of, which is listed on the Disposition Form with agency and
reason stated.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning the Florida Forest Service Annual Report - Jack
R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Florida Forest
Service Annual Report to the Escambia county Board of Commissioners for
Fiscal Year 2013-2014, submitted by Adam Parden, Forest Area Supervisor,
Division of Forestry.

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the
Escambia County Tax Collector's Office - Janet Holley, CFC, Escambia County
Tax Collector 

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms
for the Escambia County Tax Collector's Office, for property which is described
and listed on the Disposition Forms, with reason for disposition stated.  The
listed items on the first two RFDs have been found to be of no further
usefulness to the County/Tax Collector, as a result of the flood in April 2014
and have been disposed of by an independent contractor after approval by
Risk Management; thus, it is requested that the items be removed from the Tax
Collector's Fixed Assets Inventory for the Warrington location.  The item on the
third RFD is outdated and found to be of no further usefulness to the
County/Tax Collector.

 



             
4.   Recommendation Concerning a Request for Disposition of Property for the

Office of the Escambia County Property Appraiser - Chris Jones, Property
Appraiser

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
Property Appraiser's Office, for the property which is described and listed on
the Disposition Form, with reason for disposition stated.  The listed items have
been found to be of no further usefulness to the County; thus, it is requested
that they be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

 

5.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the
West Florida Public Library - Darlene Howell, Library Administrator

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
West Florida Public Library, for all items described and listed on the Request
Form, with reason for disposition stated.  The items were disposed of during
the renovation and construction of the Pensacola Public Library in 2012.

 

6.   Recommendation Concerning the United Way of Escambia County "Day of
Caring" on October 10, 2014 - Thomas Turner, Human Resources Department
Director

That the Board support the annual "Day of Caring," sponsored by the United
Way of Escambia County, as a public purpose, thereby authorizing a maximum
of eight hours Administrative Leave, with pay, on October 10, 2014, for
employees who voluntarily participate in this event, and extend Worker's
Compensation coverage to County employees involved in this event.

 

7.   Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of a Quitclaim Deed from Bellview
Volunteer Firemen's Association, Incorporated - Michael D. Weaver, Public
Safety Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the acceptance of the
Quitclaim Deed from Bellview Volunteer Firemen's Association, Incorporated:

A. Accept the Quitclaim Deed from the Bellview Volunteer Firemen's
Association;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Deed and any other documents
necessary to complete the transaction; and

C. Authorize payment of the incidental expenses associated with recording the
Deed in the Public Records.

 



             
8.   Recommendation Concerning Certificates of Public Convenience and

Necessity for the Provision of Advanced Life Support and/or Basic Life
Support Services in Escambia County, Florida - Michael D. Weaver, Public
Safety Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning Certificates of Public
Convenience and Necessity:

A. Approve the issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
for provision of Advanced Life Support and/or Basic Life Support services in
Escambia County, Florida, with noted limitations, to Atmore Ambulance, Inc.,
Escambia County Public Safety Department, Lifeguard Ambulance Service of
Florida, LLC, Rocky Mountain Holdings, LLC, dba Air Methods Corporation
(formerly Baptist Hospital LifeFlight), and Sacred Heart Children’s
Hospital, effective January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2015; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Certificate of Public Convenience
and Necessity for each Agency.

 

9.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing for
the Legacy Oaks Subdivision Street Lighting Municipal Services Benefit Unit -
Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on October 16,
2014, at 9:11 a.m., to consider adoption of an Ordinance creating the Legacy
Oaks Subdivision Street Lighting Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU).

 

10.   Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the
County Administrator's Office - Jack R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms
for the County Administrator's Office, for property which is described and
listed on the Disposition Forms, with reason for disposition stated.  The listed
items have been found to be of no further usefulness to the County
Administrator's Office; thus it is requested that they be auctioned as surplus or
properly disposed of.

 



             
II.  Budget/Finance Consent Agenda

 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the State-Funded Agreement to Update the
Hazardous Materials Facility Analysis Data - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety
Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the State-Funded Subgrant
Agreement, Contract Number 15-CP-11-01-27-01-XXX:

A. Approve the State-Funded Subgrant Agreement between the State of
Florida, Division of Emergency Management, and Escambia County, providing
performance-based funding to the Escambia County Division of Emergency
Management, in the amount up to $9,865, to update the Hazardous Materials
Facility Analysis Data, for the period ending June 30, 2015; and

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Subgrant
Agreement and all related documents as required to implement this Subgrant.

The County Attorney's Office has requested that the Board be made aware of
the following language within the Agreement:

Section (19) Mandated Conditions, sub-section (b), that "This Agreement shall
be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue for any action
arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County."

[Funding:  Fund 110, Other Grants and Projects, Cost Center 330323] 
 

2.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #3 Regarding
the PILOT Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #3, General Fund (001), in the amount of $800,000, recognizing
the proceeds from the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement between
Escambia County and Sacred Heart Health System, and appropriating these
funds to make payments to the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA).

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #4 - Beach
Renourishment on Santa Rosa Island - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director 

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #4, Local Option Sales Tax III, Fund (352), in the amount of
$8,500,000, recognizing Loan proceeds and appropriating them to the Santa
Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) to renourishment areas of Pensacola Beach.



Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) to renourishment areas of Pensacola Beach.
 

4.   Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #5 - Debt
Service Payments from SRIA - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services
Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget
Amendment #5, Debt Service Fund (203), in the amount of $1,283,479,
recognizing payments from the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA), and
appropriating these funds for the annual debt service on the 2014 Capital
Improvement Revenue Loan, issued by the County to renourish areas of
Pensacola Beach.

 

5.   Recommendation Concerning Budget Amendment #006 - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board approve Budget Amendment #006, Property Appraiser,
General Fund (001), in the amount of $686, to cover a Florida Department of
Revenue (DOR) final amendment, for an increase to the Property Appraiser's
Budget for Fiscal Year 2014/2015.  The DOR approves the Property
Appraiser's Budget per Florida Statute 195.087.

 

6.   Recommendation Concerning Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations
Agreements for Fiscal Year 2014/2015 for Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid
from the 4th Cent Tourist Promotion Fund (108), Cost Center 360105:

1. African-American Heritage Society, Inc., in the amount of $25,000;
2. Naval Aviation Museum Foundation, Inc., in the amount of $100,000;
3. St. Michael's Cemetery Foundation of Pensacola, Inc., in the amount of
$25,000; and
4. West Florida Historic Preservation, Inc., in the amount of $70,000;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary
documents; and

C. Authorize the execution of the necessary Purchase Orders.
 



             
7.   Recommendation Concerning Approval of the Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement for Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc. -
Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement for Keep Pensacola
Beautiful, Inc.:

A. Approve the Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement between Escambia
County and Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc., in the amount of $40,000, to be
paid from the Solid Waste Management Fund (401), Cost Center 230314,
Account 53401;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement and all other necessary
documents; and

C. Authorize the execution of the necessary Purchase Order.
 

8.   Recommendation Concerning Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations
Agreements for Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid
from the General Fund (001), Cost Center 110201:

1. Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission, in the amount of
$84,265;
2. Wildlife Sanctuary of Northwest Florida, Inc., in the amount of $30,951;
3. Council on Aging of West Florida, Inc., in the amount of $38,000;
4. Escambia Community Clinics, Inc., in the amount of $376,269;
5. Lakeview Center, Inc., in the amount of $29,486; and
6. United Way of Escambia County, Inc. (211 Program), in the amount of
$33,250;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary
documents; and

C. Authorize the approval of the necessary Purchase Orders.

 

9.   Recommendation Concerning Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Miscellaneous



9.   Recommendation Concerning Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Miscellaneous
Appropriations Agreement with Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy, Management
and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid
from the Economic Development Fund (102), Cost Center 360704;

1. Century Area Chamber of Commerce, in the amount of $40,000; and
2. Gulf Coast African-American Chamber of Commerce, Inc., in the amount of
$50,000;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary
documents; and

C. Authorize the approval of the necessary Purchase Order.
 



             
10.   Recommendation Concerning the Issuance of Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Purchase Orders in Excess of $50,000, for Contracts Managed by the
Management and Budget Services Department - Amy Lovoy, Management
and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board, for Fiscal Year 2014/2015, approve the issuance of individual
Purchase Orders, for Contracts managed by the Management and
Budget Services Department, based upon previously awarded annual
requirements, as follows:

A. Northwest Florida Legal Services, Inc. - $124,688
Vendor Number: 141832
Legal Aid
Fund 115
Cost Center: 410802
Account Code: 58201

B. Warren Averett, LLC - $207,240
Vendor Number: 230810
Audit Services
Fund 001
Cost Center: 140201/410701
Account Code: 53101
PD #13-14.054
Board Approved: 07/14/2014

C. SMG - $251,951.82
Vendor Number: 190107
Bay Center Management Fee
Fund 409
Cost Center: 360401
Account Code: 53401
Board Approved: 02/16/2012, 10/18/2012, and 10/03/2013

D. Florida Department of Health - $337,649
d/b/a Escambia County Health Department
Vendor Number: 051513
Health Services
Fund 001
Cost Center: 360301
Account Code: 58101

 



             
11.   Recommendation Concerning Commissary Services for the Jail - Amy Lovoy,

Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board award a Revenue Contract #PD13-14.063, Commissary
Services for the Jail, and approve the Agreement for Commissary Services
for the Escambia County Jail between Aramark Correctional Services LLC,
and Escambia County, for total on gross revenue of 47%.

[Funding:  Fund 111, Revenue Account, 342302, Detention/Jail Commissary]
 

12.   Recommendation Concerning the Interlocal Agreement between Escambia
County and the City of Pensacola - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the Interlocal Agreement
between Escambia County and the City of Pensacola:

A. Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners and the City of Pensacola Relating to the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Funding of the Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and
Development Commission (PEDC), in the amount of $550,000, to be paid
from the Economic Development Fund (102), Cost Center 360704, for a
one-year period from October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015;

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement; and

C. Authorize approval of the necessary Purchase Order.
 



             
13.   Recommendation Concerning the Acquisition of Property Located at 3806

Frontera Circle - Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment Department
Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the property located at
3806 Frontera Circle within the Brownsville Community Redevelopment
District:

A. Authorize the purchase of the parcel of real estate (totaling approximately
0.04 acres) from Khurram Dar, for the negotiated amount of $19,900, in
accordance with the terms and conditions in the Contract for Sale and
Purchase;

B. Approve the Contract for Sale and Purchase between Khurram Dar and
Escambia County for the acquisition of the parcel of real property located at
3806 Frontera Circle; and

C. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice
Chairman to execute, subject to Legal review and sign-off, any documentation
necessary to complete the acquisition of the property, without further action
from the Board.

[Funding Source:  Fund 151, Community Redevelopment Agency, Cost
Center 220515, CRA Brownsville, Object Code 56101]

 



             
14.   Recommendation Concerning the State Housing Initiatives Partnership

Agreement with United Way of Escambia County, Inc. - Keith Wilkins,
Community & Environment Department Director 

That the Board take the following action regarding the State Housing
Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Agreement with United Way of Escambia
County, Inc. (United Way):
 
A. Approve the SHIP Volunteer-Based Disaster Housing Recovery Project
Agreement between Escambia County and United Way to provide
$150,000, in SHIP funds, to enable qualified volunteer organizations to
access funds for materials, supplies, and subcontract services required to
assist survivors of the Presidentially Declared April 2014 Flood Event in
Escambia County with uncompensated repairs to their impacted homes; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and
all Project-related documents, as required to implement the Project.
 
[Funding:  Fund 120, 2015 SHIP, Cost Center 220445]

 

15.   Recommendation Concerning 2014/2015 Emergency Shelter Grant
Agreement with Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc. - Keith Wilkins,
Community & Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the 2014/2015
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Agreement with Loaves and Fishes Soup
Kitchen, Inc.:

A. Approve an ESG Agreement with Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc.,
detailing the utilization of a maximum of $87,689, to support salary and/or
operational costs of the Loaves and Fishes Homeless Center located at 257
East Lee Street, effective October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015; and
 
B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the subject
Agreement and all related documents required to complete the Project.

[Funding:  Fund 110, ESG, Cost Center 220561]
 



             
16.   Recommendation Concerning a Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation

Commission Artificial Reef Construction Grant Application for Fiscal Year
2014-2015 - Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning a Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission (FWC) Artificial Reef Construction Grant
Application for Fiscal Year 2014-2015:

A.  Approve applying to the FWC for an Artificial Reef Construction Grant
requesting up to $100,000, with a match not to exceed $35,000, for the
construction of an artificial reef in the Gulf of Mexico;

B.  Authorize the Office of Purchasing to solicit for firms to conduct
environmental preparations, deployment preparations, and deployment and
other services, as required, subject to funding by the Grant award and/or other
sources; and

C.  Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Grant Application and any
subsequent documents relating to the Grant Application without further Board
action.

[Funding:  Fund 108, Tourist Promotion, Cost Center 220805 and/or Fund
352, LOST III, Cost Center 220102, NESD Capital Projects]

 



             
17.   Recommendation Concerning the Issuance of Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Purchase Orders in Excess of $50,000, for the Parks and Recreation
Department - Michael Rhodes, Parks and Recreation Department Director

That the Board, for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015, approve the issuance of
blanket and/or individual Purchase Orders in excess of $50,000, based upon
previously awarded Contracts, Contractual Agreements, or annual
requirements, for the Parks and Recreation Department, as follows:

Vendor/Contractor Amount Contract
Number

A. Blue Arbor, Inc.
Vendor Number: 023818
Temporary Employment Services

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350220 (Recreation)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 101 (Escambia County Restricted
Fund)
Cost Center: 350224 (Special Events)
Cost Center: 350236 (Fishing Bridge)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital
Projects)
Cost Center: 350231 (Equestrian Center)
Amount: $250,000

$250,000 PD 12-13.035

B. Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc., DBA
Clean & Green
Vendor Number: 402053
Other Contractual Services

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 101 (Escambia County Restricted
Fund)
Cost Center: 350236 (Fishing Bridge)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital
Projects) 
Amount: $160,000

$160,000



C. Game Time, Inc.
Vendor Number: 070316
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital
Projects)
Amount: $525,000

$525,000

D. PRIDE Enterprises
Vendor Number: 164981
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital
Projects)
Amount: $100,000

$100,000

E. Oldcastle Lawn & Garden, Inc.
Vendor Number: 150131
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital
Projects)
Amount: $100,000

$100,000

 



             
18.   Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Three ElDorado EZ Rider

II Transit Buses - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of three
ElDorado EZ Rider II Transit Buses, to replace two 1999 Gillig Buses and one
1998 Gillig Bus, that have exceeded their useful lives and need to be
replaced as part of the Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) Capital
Replacement Plan:

A. Approve the purchase of three ElDorado EZ Rider II Transit Buses, per the
Contract provided; and

B. Authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order to Florida Transportation
Systems, Inc., in the amount of $948,321.

[Funding:  Fund 320, Federal Transit Administration Capital Projects Fund,
Cost Center 340424, Object Code 56401]

 

19.   Recommendation Concerning the State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement -
Darlene Howell, Library Administrator

That the Board approve the Florida Department of State, Division of Library
and Information Services, State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement and
authorize the Chairman of the West Florida Public Library Board of
Governance and the Clerk to sign the Agreement. (The State Aid to Libraries
Program provides annual funding to eligible recipients for the operation and
maintenance of public libraries.)

 



             
20.   Recommendation Concerning the 2015-2016 Museum on Main Street Affiliate

Agreement - Darlene Howell, Library Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the 2015-2016 Museum
on Main Street Affiliate Agreement: 

A. Approve and authorize the Chairman of the West Florida Public Library
Board of Governance and the Clerk to sign the 2015-2016 Museum on Main
Street Affiliate Agreement, in the amount of $6,000, between the West Florida
Public Library on behalf of Escambia County and the Florida Humanities
Council for the 2015-2016 Museum on Main Street Program.  The program is
designed to provide enriching educational experiences for residents and
visitors and bring recognition to small communities with populations of 20,000
or less.  The Way We Worked exhibit, adapted from an original exhibition
developed by the National Archives is intended to attract increased visitation
to the Molino Branch Library and the Molino Mid-County Historical Museum;
and

B. Authorize the acceptance and disbursement of funds per Board policy.

[Funding:  Fund 113, Library Fund, will be increased by $6,000]
 

21.   Recommendation Concerning Install Refurbish and Removal of Pavement
Markings and Associated Items - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director

That the Board award an Indefinite Quantity Indefinite Delivery Contract, #PD
13-14.084, Install, Refurbish and Removal of Pavement Markings and
Associated Items, and approve the Agreement Relating to Pavement
Markings between Gulf Coast Traffic Engineers, Inc., and Escambia
County, for the annual budgeted amount of $300,000, for a term of three
years. 

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center  211201, Object
Code  54601, $300,000]

 



             
22.   Recommendation Concerning the Operation of the Escambia County Health

Department - John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director, Florida
Department of Health in Escambia County

That the Board take the following action concerning the operation of the
Escambia County Health Department for Contract Year 2014-2015:
 
A. Adopt, as allowed by Florida Statutes, Chapter 154, the Resolution entitled,
"A Resolution Authorizing a Contract Between the Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners and the State of Florida, Department of Health,
Escambia County Health Department for the Provision of Certain Medical
Services; Providing for an Effective Date," for the Contract year of October 1,
2014, through September 30, 2015; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution and the Contract.

[The Escambia County Board of County Commissioners agrees to appropriate
$337,649 to the Escambia County Health Department for the Fiscal year
October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015]

 

23.   Recommendation Concerning Authorization for Out-of-County Travel -
2014/2015 Board's Annual Travel Schedule - Jack R. Brown, County
Administrator

That the Board authorize out-of-County travel for any member of the Board,
the County Administrator, and/or the County Attorney wishing to participate in
the conferences/events, as noted on the 2014/2015 Annual
Travel/Conference Schedule.

 



             
COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

 

I.   For Action
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Settlement of a Workers' Compensation
Claim Involving Raymond Merritt.

That the Board approve a washout workers compensation settlement for
former employee Raymond Merritt in the amount of $125,773.00, inclusive of
the attorney's fees and costs.  An excess insurance carrier will reimburse the
County for 100.0% of this settlement amount.

 



             
11. Items added to the agenda.
 

12. Announcements.
 

13. Adjournment.
 



   
AI-6949     Proclamations      6.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Adoption of Proclamations
From: Jack Brown 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the following five Proclamations:
 
A. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Janice Floyd, Human Resources
Associate II, on her selection as the “Employee of the Month” for October 2014; 

B. The Proclamation congratulating the West Florida Regional Planning Council on its
50th Anniversary and recognizing its contributions in advancing the regional agenda; 

C. The Proclamation proclaiming the month of October 2014 as “Community Planning
Month” in Escambia County in conjunction with the celebration of National Community
Planning Month; 

D. The Proclamation congratulating Mike Thomas, General Manager; April Adams,
Rental Manager; the Eden Condominiums Owner's Association; the Eden
Condominiums' Staff; and all others involved, for organizing the event to host veterans
and their families from the “Wounded Warrior Project” and the “Wounded War Heroes”
for the week of September 20-27, 2014; and

E. The Proclamation commending and congratulating Grover C. Robinson, V, on his
activities to further his education and to make Escambia County a better place for all of
its citizens, and wishing him success in his future endeavors.

BACKGROUND:
On March 21, 2013, the Board approved the "Employee of the Month and Employee of
the Year Awards Program."  Each Department will submit one employee to be
nominated as the "Employee of the Month."  The County Administrator will then select
one employee from the nominations.  The employee who is selected will receive a check
in the amount of $250, a Proclamation, and a plaque that will hang in the lobby of the



Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building for that month.

Various departments, outside agencies, special interest groups, civic and religious
organizations in recognition of specific events, occasions, people, etc., request
Proclamations.

Information provided on the Proclamation is furnished by the requesting party and placed
in the proper acceptable format for BCC approval by the County Administration staff. 
Board approval is required by Board Policy Section I, A (6).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The Employee of the Month Award Program will cost $250 per month; the Employee of
the Year Award Program will cost $500 per year.  Funding is available through Fund
001, General Fund, Cost Center 150101, Object code 55201.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This Recommendation is consistent with the Board's Goals and Objectives by the
recognition and appreciation of the County's most valuable resource - its employees.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Human Resources Department and the County Administrator's Office will work
together to coordinate this program.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-6883     Written Communication      7. 0.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Environmental (Code) Enforcement Lien Relief – 313 Cherokee Trail
From: Gordon Pike, Department Head 
Organization: Corrections
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
September 18, 2014 - Communication from Ms. P. Yolanda Brown, Final Title
Coordinator, requesting the Board forgive a Code Enforcement Lien against property
located at 313 Cherokee Trail.

Recommendation:  That the Board review and consider lien relief request made by Ms.
Brown against property located at 313 Cherokee Trail.

On June 18, 2009, the Board amended the “Guidelines for Relief from Environmental
(Code) Enforcement Special Magistrate Liens” Policy, Section III, H 2.  Staff was
instructed to review all requests for forgiveness of Environmental (Code) Enforcement
Liens to determine if the request met the criteria for forgiveness, in accordance with the
Board’s policy.

After reviewing the request for forgiveness of Liens, staff made the determination that
the request DOES fall within any of the criteria that would allow the County Administrator
to deny relief, in accordance with the Board’s Policy, “Guidelines for Relief from
Environmental (Code) Enforcement Special Magistrate Liens” Policy, Section III, H2. 

August 27, 2014, County Administrator, Jack Brown, mailed a denial letter to Ms. Brown.

September 2014 County Administrator, Jack Brown, received another letter from Final
Title requesting relief.

Final Title has made an offer to pay all hard costs associated with this Lien and
requesting daily fines be dismissed.

BACKGROUND:
See attached bullets for case history.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



The itemized costs shown in the code enforcement for lien:

Cost

A. Administrative Cost: $1,100.00 
B. Daily Fines: $10,900.00 

TOTAL $12,000.00 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
If approved by the Board, the County Attorney’s Office will prepare the release.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon execution, the release will be sent to the Escambia County Clerks of the Court for
recording.

Attachments
313 Cherokee Trail









































   
AI-6779     Public Hearings      9.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: 5:31 p.m. Ordinance creating Part I, Chapter 34, Section 34-10 of the

Escambia County Code of Ordinances
From: Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of adopting an Ordinance creating Part I,
Chapter 34, Section 34-10 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances relating to the
assessment of additional court costs when a person is found guilty of a misdemeanor
involving the unlawful use of drugs or alcohol.

BACKGROUND:
At its September 25, 2014 meeting, the Board approved setting the Public Hearing for
consideration of adopting the above-referenced ordinance. 

Pursuant to the authority granted in §938.13, Florida Statutes, the Board of County
Commissioners is authorized to enact an ordinance providing for an assessment of
additional court costs when a person is found guilty of a misdemeanor involving the
unlawful use of drugs or alcohol. The proposed Ordinance will provide for the collection
of such costs.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The proposed Ordinance was drafted by Assistant County Attorney, Kristin D. Hual.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



A copy of the Ordinance will be filed with the Department of State.

Attachments
Ordinance







   
AI-6931     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Minutes and Reports
From: Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller 
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports prepared by
the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A.  Approve the Minutes of the Second Public Hearing regarding the Fiscal Year
2014-2015 County-wide Budget;

B.  Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held September 23, 2014;

C.  Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session
held September 25, 2014; and

      (BACKUP TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)

D.  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held September 25, 2014.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.







   
AI-6893     Growth Management Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Review of Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on September 2,

2014
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning
Board on September 2, 2014

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard by the
Planning Board on September 2, 2014: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendations for
Rezoning Cases Z-2014-13, Z-2014-14, and Z-2014-18 or remand the cases back to the
Planning Board;

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were reviewed.

B.

1. Case No Z-2014-13
Address: 1170 Blue Oval Lane
Property Reference No.: 29-1N-31-3301-000-000
Property Size: 3.54 (+/-) acres
From: V-1, Villages Single-Family Residential District (one du/acre)
To: VR-2, Villages Rural Residential District (one du/.75 acres)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Tim Kelly and Debra Perry, Owners
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Debra Perry, Tim Kelly

2. Case No.: Z-2014-14
Address: 8400 Blk Cedar Springs Road
Property Reference: 25-3N-32-1400-000-000
Property Size: 25.34 (+/-) acres



From: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District (five du/100 acres on one
acre parcels)

To: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District (one du/five acres)
FLU Category: AG, Agriculture
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Christopher Carmen, Agent for David and Andrea Saguan,

Owners
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Christopher Carmen

3. Case No.: Z-2014-18
Address: 7170 Blue Angel Parkway
Property Reference: 25-1S-31-2101-001-002
Property Size: 4.66 (+/-) acres
From: R-R, Rural Residential District (cumulative) (two du/acre)
To: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Commissioner District: 1
Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Doris Minchew, Owner
Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

Speakers: Buddy Page

BACKGROUND:
The above cases were owner initiated and heard at the September 2, 2014 Planning
Board meeting. Under the Land Development Code (LDC) 2.08.00.E.1., “the Board of
County Commissioners shall review the record and the recommendation of the Planning
Board and either adopt the recommended order, modify the recommended order as set
forth therein, reject the recommended order, or remand the matter back to the Planning
Board for additional facts or clarification. Findings of fact or findings regarding legitimate
public purpose may not be rejected or modified unless they are clearly erroneous or
unsupported by the record. When rejecting or modifying conclusions of law, the Board of
County Commissioners must state with particularity its reasons for rejecting or modifying
the recommended conclusion of law and must make a finding that its substituted
conclusion of law is as or more reasonable than the conclusion that was rejected or
modified. However, the Board of County Commissioners may not modify the
recommendation to a more intensive use requested by the applicant and advertised. The
review shall be limited to the record below. Only a party of record to the proceedings
before the Planning Board or representative shall be afforded the right to address the
Board of County Commissioners and only as to the correctness of the findings of fact or
conclusions of law as based on the record. The Board of County Commissioners shall
not hear testimony."
 
 
To further the County’s policy of “decreasing response time from notification of citizen



needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning
Board recommended order and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning
cases. This report item addresses only the review and upholding of the Planning Board’s
recommendation. The next report item will address the Public Hearing for the LDC
Zoning Map Amendment.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action may increase the ad valorem tax base for Escambia County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The recommended order is the result of deliberations by the Planning Board based on
staff analysis, public testimony, and knowledge of the Comprehensive Plan and Land
Development Code as well as case law and Florida Statutes.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Chairman will need to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners either denying or approving the rezoning requests.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION: 
The cases under review are presented to the Planning Board for collection of evidence.
The Planning Board conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing and issues a recommended
order to the Board.

Attachments
Z-2014-13
Z-2014-14
Z-2014-18
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photography for the property.  1

Next we will hear from the applicant and 2

any witnesses that they may wish to call.  3

Then we will hear from the staff and any 4

witnesses that they may wish to call.  Finally 08:36AM 5

we will hear from members of the public who 6

have filed a speaker request form.  7

At this time I'll ask our court reporter 8

to please swear in the members of staff that 9

will testifying today, please.  08:36AM 10

(County Staff sworn.) 11

MR. BRISKE:  Board members, you've been 12

previously provided copies of these 13

individuals' resumés and qualification.  Do 14

any of the Planning Board members have 08:37AM 15

questions concerning their qualifications or 16

expertise in the area of land use and 17

planning?  Okay.  Hearing none, we will 18

qualify all the staff members as expert 19

witnesses in all of today's cases.  08:37AM 20

The rezoning hearing package for 21

September 2nd with the staff's 22

Findings-of-Fact has been entered into 23

evidence and provided to the Board members.  24

The Chair will entertain a motion to accept 08:37AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

10

the rezoning hearing package and the staff's 1

Findings-of-Fact, as well as the legal 2

advertisement into evidence. 3

MR. LOWERY:  So moved. 4

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion.  Second? 08:37AM 5

MS. DAVIS:  Second.  6

MR. BRISKE:  Second.  Any discussion?  All 7

those in favor, say aye. 8

(Board members vote.) 9

            MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  08:37AM 10

(None.) 11

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries.  12

(Motion passed unanimously.) 13

MR. BRISKE:  The rezoning hearing package 14

with the staff's Findings-of-Fact and the 08:38AM 15

legal advertisement will be marked and 16

included in the record as Composite Exhibit A 17

for all of today's cases. 18

(Composite Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing 19

Package, was admitted.) 08:38AM 20

MR. BRISKE:  We do have four cases today.  21

We're going to go ahead and jump right into 22

them.  I will say that when you come up to 23

speak, we do hear from everyone who wants to 24

get their opinion on the record, their facts 08:38AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

11

on the record.  We do have a timer, so we ask 1

that you be respectful of other people so 2

everyone can get their comments out. 3

(Transcript continues on Page 12.)4

          *   *    *5
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TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

12

     *    *   *1

CASE NO:  Z-2014-132

Applicant:  Tim Kelly and Debra Perry, Owners     3

Address:    1170 Blue Oval Lane

From:       V-1, Villages Single-Family Residential 4

            District (one du/acre)

To:         VR-2, Villages Rural Residential District 5

            (one du/.75 acres) 

_____________________________________________________6

MR. BRISKE:  The first rezoning 7

application for consideration is Case 8

Z-2014-13.  This is Tim Kelly and Debra Perry, 9

owners, 1170 Blue Oval Lane, 3.54 acres being 08:38AM 10

requested from V-1, Villages Single-Family 11

Residential, to VR-2, Villages Rural 12

Residential District.  13

At this time I'm going to ask members of 14

the Board if there's been any ex parte 08:39AM 15

communication between you, the applicant, the 16

applicant's agents, attorneys, witnesses, 17

fellow Planning Board members or anyone from 18

the general public prior to this hearing?  19

I'll also ask that you disclose if you have 08:39AM 20

visited the subject property.  Please also 21

disclose if you are a relative or business 22

associate of the applicant or the applicant's 23

agents.24

We'll start down here with Ms. Oram.  Good 08:39AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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morning.1

MS. ORAM:  Good morning.  No to all. 2

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, no to all. 3

MR. LOWERY:  Mr. Chairman, no to all.  4

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all.  08:39AM 5

MR. TATE:  No to all.  6

MS. DAVIS:  No to all. 7

MR. WINGATE:  I did visit the site, but no 8

communication. 9

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.08:39AM 10

Staff, was a notice of hearing sent to all 11

interested parties?  12

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, it was. 13

MR. BRISKE:  Was that notice also posted 14

on the subject property?  08:40AM 15

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, sir, it was.  16

MR. BRISKE:  At this time we'll have the 17

staff present the maps and the photography for 18

Case Z-2014-13. 19

(Presentation of Maps and Photographs.)08:40AM 20

MS. CAIN:  Allyson Cain, Urban Planner.  21

This is for 1170 Blue Oval Lane, from V-1, 22

Villages Single-Family Residential, 23

one dwelling unit per acre, to VR-2, Villages 24

Rural Residential, one dwelling unit per .75 08:40AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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acres.1

This is a our location showing the general 2

location of the property.  Let me go to full 3

screen for that.  This is the Future Land Use 4

Map showing it's Mixed Use Suburban.  This is 08:40AM 5

the existing land use map showing the subject 6

property circled in the red and the 7

surrounding properties with their acreage.  8

This is the zoning map showing the current V-1 9

with the surrounding VAG-2, VR-1.  This is our 08:41AM 10

public notice sign posted on the site.  11

This is the subject property.  This is 12

also the subject property but on the left side 13

at the end of Blue Oval Lane.  This is looking 14

onto the right side of the subject property.  08:41AM 15

This is looking at the adjoining parcel still 16

a little further to the right of the subject 17

property.  This is another view also of the 18

adjoining parcel.  This is looking toward 19

Highway 97 from the subject property on Blue 08:41AM 20

Oval.  Looking across the street from the 21

subject property.  This is looking from the 22

subject property across Blue Oval, some more 23

of the property across the street.  This is 24

our 500-foot radius map that we obtained from 08:41AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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the property appraiser's website and this is 1

our mailing list sent out to everyone within 2

the 500-foot radius of the subject property.  3

That concludes the maps. 4

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Allyson.  Board 08:42AM 5

members, any questions about the maps or 6

photography?  Thank you.7

Ms. Perry and Mr. Kelly, who will be 8

presenting?  Both of you together?  9

 MS. PERRY:  Yes.08:42AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  Please come forward and I 11

will ask our court reporter to swear you in, 12

please.  13

(Debra Kelly and Tim Kelly sworn.) 14

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning.  I'll ask both 08:42AM 15

of you to please state your name and address 16

on the record.  If you will pull the 17

microphone down, we do record the proceedings 18

so that you can get it on because it doesn't 19

pick up sometimes.  Your name and address, 08:42AM 20

please.  21

MS. PERRY:  Good morning, Mr. Briske.  My 22

name is Debra Perry. 23

MR. KELLY:  Good morning.  My name is Tim 24

Kelly, 1170 Blue Oval Lane. 08:42AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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MR. BRISKE:  Thank you very much.  Have 1

you both received a copy of the staff's 2

Findings-of-Fact and the rezoning hearing 3

package?  4

MS. PERRY:  We did.08:43AM 5

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 6

have the burden of providing substantial 7

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 8

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 9

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 08:43AM 10

that plan and is not in any conflict with the 11

Land Development Code?  12

MS. PERRY:  We do.  13

MR. BRISKE:  You may proceed.14

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chairman, before they get 08:43AM 15

into their presentation, I would like to ask 16

you all, there's nobody here to speak for or 17

against this other than yourselves, and staff 18

has presented us already with Findings-of-Fact 19

that basically state this is consistent, your 08:43AM 20

request is consistent.  21

MS. PERRY:  Yes, sir. 22

MR. TATE:  We can, if you so choose, 23

accept staff's or you can accept staff's 24

Findings-of-Fact as your Findings-of-Fact and 08:43AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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we can go ahead and vote on this and be done 1

with this portion and that's the record that 2

will go to the next meeting, as well. 3

MS. PERRY:  Mr. Tate, I think that's an 4

excellent idea.  The only thing I would have 08:44AM 5

to add to what the findings are is that we had 6

requested VR-2 initially, and under Criterion 7

(3) they recommended even that a VR-1 would be 8

more appropriate, so whichever, VR-2 or VR-1 9

that the Board felt would be better would be 08:44AM 10

fine with us. 11

MR. TATE:  Your request was for VR-2, 12

that's what you desire? 13

MS. PERRY:  Yes, sir, it was initially. 14

MR. TATE:  I believe that's what we've 08:44AM 15

been -- that's the Findings-of-Fact that we 16

received, so we can proceed on that.17

MS. PERRY:  That's fine.18

MR. BRISKE:  Allyson?  19

MS. CAIN:  We do note that even though 08:44AM 20

they did request the VR-2, we did make a 21

finding that even though the VR-2 is 22

consistent with the surrounding uses and all 23

the other criteria, we felt that it would be 24

more consistent in keeping with the dwelling 08:44AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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units because the VR-2 is one dwelling per .75 1

and in keeping with the surrounding area the 2

VR-1 would allow one dwelling unit per four 3

acres, which if you look at the zoning map 4

there is no VR-2 within the area, and VR-1 is 08:45AM 5

more in keeping with the area.6

So even though they did request the VR-2 7

and after speaking with them and after we were 8

doing our findings, they also agreed that 9

either one, whichever, would be more 08:45AM 10

consistent.  It would give them -- it would 11

allow them to do whatever they had intended to 12

do, whether it was the VR-1 or the VR-2. 13

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chairman, I don't know if 14

that's an issue with me if our findings are 08:45AM 15

VR-2 and the applicant would prefer the VR-2. 16

MR. BRISKE:  Well, that's what I was going 17

to say.  They would have to amend their 18

application if they wanted to change from what 19

they had originally asked for.08:45AM 20

If you want to stick with the VR-2, the 21

Board will consider that.  Like Mr. Tate said, 22

our findings have the information in the 23

package.  If you wish to alter the 24

application, you can do so verbally because 08:46AM 25
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the Findings-of-Fact will also be applicable, 1

so it would be your call on that.  2

MS. PERRY:  Would we have to wait another 3

month if we changed it to VR-1?4

MR. BRISKE:  No, it would be addressed 08:46AM 5

today because the findings will address either 6

one of them.7

MS. PERRY:  I think VR-1 we felt would be 8

most likely to be approved since it is more 9

consistent with the surrounding areas. 08:46AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  So you would like to 11

formally -- I'm sorry.12

MR. TATE:  I mean, I just want to discuss 13

this a little bit already.  The County has 14

indicated in their findings, and correct me if 08:46AM 15

I'm wrong, VR-2 is appropriate and useful 16

there.  You have the ability today to choose 17

VR-2.  I'm telling you personally from my 18

perspective I have no problem saying I think 19

this is fine based on staff's 08:46AM 20

Findings-of-Fact.  That gives you the highest 21

and best use of your property.  If you choose 22

VR-1, we'll be happy to -- 23

MS. PERRY:  If you think that that would 24

give us the highest and best use of our 08:47AM 25
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property, then certainly we'll stick with that 1

and just leave it the way it is. 2

MR. BRISKE:  So you will leave the 3

application the way it is and accept the 4

staff's Findings-of-Fact?  08:47AM 5

MS. PERRY:  Yes. 6

MR. BRISKE:  Before we go into your 7

motion, Mr. Tate, is there anyone here to 8

speak for or against this matter?  Hearing 9

none, the floor is open.  Mr. Tate. 08:47AM 10

MR. TATE:  Just as a clarification, the 11

VR-1 dwelling units per acre is what?  12

MS. CAIN:  One per .75.13

MR. TATE:  No, VR-1.  14

MS. CAIN:  I'm sorry, per four acres.  08:47AM 15

MR. TATE:  And they're currently one per 16

acre.  They're going to one per quarter acre 17

so it is the highest and best use then. 18

(Motion by Mr. Tate.)19

Mr. Chairman, I would recommend approval 08:47AM 20

of this rezoning from V-1 to VR-2 and accept 21

staff's Findings-of-Fact and this is in 22

reference to Case Number Z-2014-13. 23

MR. LOWERY:  Second. 24

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion and a 08:48AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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second.  Discussion or questions from staff 1

members?  Okay.  Hearing none, all those in 2

favor, say aye. 3

(Board members vote.) 4

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  08:48AM 5

(None.) 6

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 7

unanimously.  8

(The motion passed unanimously.)  9

MR. BRISKE:  We'll be in touch with you 08:48AM 10

for your hearing in front of the Board of 11

County Commissioners.  12

MS. PERRY:  Thank you, very much. 13

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you. 14

They don't all go that easy folks.  They 08:48AM 15

don't all go that easy.  16

(Conclusion of Case Z-2014-13.  The 17

transcript continues on Page 22.)18

          *   *    *19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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          *   *    *1

CASE NO:  Z-2014-142

Applicant:       Christopher Carmen, Agent for David 3

                 and Andrea Saguan, Owners

Address:         8400 Block Cedar Springs Road4

Property Size:   25.34 (+/-) acres 

From:            VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District 5

                 (five du/100 acres on one acre   

                 parcels)6

To:              VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District 

                 (one du/five acres)7

_____________________________________________________

8

MR. BRISKE:  Our next case is Z-2014-14.  9

This is Christopher Carmen, who is acting as 08:48AM 10

the agent for David and Andrea Saguan, the 11

owners, 8400 Block of Cedar Springs Road, 12

25.34 acres, from Villages Agriculture One, to 13

VAG-2.  14

Members of the Board, once again I'll ask 08:49AM 15

if there's been any ex parte communication on 16

this case between you, the applicant, agents, 17

attorneys, witnesses, Planning Board members 18

or members of the general public?  Also please 19

disclose if you have visited the subject 08:49AM 20

property and disclose if you are a relative or 21

business associate of any of the parties.22

Ms. Oram.23

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  24

MR. GOODLOE:  No to all.  08:49AM 25
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MR. LOWERY:  No to all. 1

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all. 2

MR. TATE:  No to all.3

MS. DAVIS:  No to all.  4

MR. WINGATE:  No contact, just a drive-by. 08:49AM 5

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.  6

Staff -- I'm sorry.  Did you have 7

something else?  8

MR. WINGATE:  No.  9

MR. BRISKE:  Staff, was a notice of 08:49AM 10

hearing sent to all interested parties in this 11

case?  12

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, sir, it was. 13

MR. BRISKE:  And was it also posted on the 14

subject property?  08:49AM 15

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, sir, it was.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Allyson, if you will present 17

the maps and photography for this case, 18

please.19

(Presentation of Maps and Photography.)08:50AM 20

MS. CAIN:  8400 Cedar Springs Road, from 21

VAG-1, Village Agriculture, to VAG-2, Village 22

Agriculture, one dwelling units per 23

five acres.  This is our locational map 24

showing the wetlands.  This is our aerial 08:50AM 25
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photography.  This is the Future Land Use with 1

Agricultural Future Land Use designation.  2

This is the existing land use map.  This is 3

the zoning map showing the VAG-1 and VAG-2.  4

This is our public notice sign posted on the 08:50AM 5

site.  This is looking into the property the 6

best that we could.  This is looking north on 7

Cedar Springs Road.  This is looking west from 8

the subject property across the street.  This 9

is looking south along Cedar Springs Road.  08:50AM 10

Looking north onto the subject property.  This 11

is a our 500-foot radius map obtained from 12

Chris Jones.  This is our mailing list for the 13

people in the 500-foot radius.  That concludes 14

the pictures.  08:51AM 15

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  16

Board members, any questions on the maps 17

or photography?  Hearing none.  18

Mr. Carmen, please come forward.  Good 19

morning, sir.  Please be sworn in.  08:51AM 20

(Christopher Carmen sworn.) 21

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning, sir.  If you 22

will please state your full name and address 23

for the record. 24

MR. CARMEN:  Christopher Carmen, 6506 08:51AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/02/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-13
APPLICANT: Tim Kelly and Debra Perry, Owners 

ADDRESS: 1170 Blue Oval Lane 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 29-1N-31-3301-000-000

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/09/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: V-1, Villages Single-Family Residential District (one du/acre)

TO: VR-2, Villages Rural Residential District (one du/.75 acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM). 

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: residential, retail and services, professional office, recreational facilities,
public and civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and the
maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to VR-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of FLU category
MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The current future land use allows for residential uses and
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MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The current future land use allows for residential uses and
promotes compatible infill development.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS

The proposed rezoning request to VR-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of the zoning
district. The VR-2 designation reflects more affordable lot sizes for single family development
although rezoning to a category with larger lot size requirements would be more consistent with
the neighboring parcels currently zoned VR-1. The VR-1 and VR-2 districts allows for
agricultural, farm animals, and other agricultural related activities.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The surrounding parcels are zoned VR-1, VAG-2, and V-1. The current zoning of the subject
parcel is V-1 with a density of one dwelling unit per acre and the requested zoning to VR-2 has
a density of one dwelling unit per .75 acres. Keeping consistent with the surrounding zoning, a
VR-1 zoning would be more compatible, allowing one dwelling unit per four acres and would be
consistent with the current densities in the area, having more allowable uses including farm
animals and agricultural-related activities.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s). The subject
parcel was rezoned in 2005 from VAG-2 to V-1 at which time the large parcel was split and sold,
making the existing parcels smaller and unable to go back to the original zoning designation of
VAG-2 because of density.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on the
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subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will be
necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. The use
on the subject parcel is residential reflecting rural development patterns, which is consistent with
the surrounding residential uses.

Attachments
Z-2014-13
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Public Notice Sign 
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Subject Property 
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Left side of subject property at the end of Blue Oval Lane 
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Looking onto the right side of subject property 
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Looking as adjoining parcel 
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Another view of adjoining parcel 
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Looking from subject property toward Hwy 97 

GMR 10-09-14 Rezoning Case Z-2014-13 19 of 32



Looking across Blue Oval Lane from subject property 
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Looking from subject property across Blue Oval Lane 
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Chris Jones Escambia County Property Appraiser

Map Grid
City Road
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Interstate
State Road
US Highway
All Roads
Property Line

July 14, 2014
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0 0.4 0.80.2 km
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NESHEM STEPHEN E & VERONICA S 
1170 BLUE OVAL 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 NORRIS WILL EST OF 
3852 LAKE LYNN DR 
GRETNA, LA 70056 
 

 NELSON JOSEPH B & 
2640 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

GOODLANDER  BEVERLY J 
2600 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 BANK OF AMERICA N A  
2610 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 DAVIS ROBERT N & 
5831 DAHOON DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

JENKS CYNTHIA M & 
2606 NOWAK DAIRY 
RD+CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 GOODLANDER JEFFERY M 
2590 NOWAK DAIRY 
RD+CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 BROWN BARBARA ANN SILCOX 
2459 ARGLE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

ROBERTS JERRY K & PATRICIA L 
2483 ARGLE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 HENRY THOMAS 
3158 GATEWAY LN 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 ODOM JAMES R & 
2508 HWY 97 S 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

BOWEN BRETT 
2511 ARGLE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 MAYBERRY DEWEY S & 
2540 HWY 97 SOUTH 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 BRAGG TIMOTHY L & NATALIE M 
2570 HWY 97 SOUTH 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

LEE JAMES R 
2501 ARGLE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 GOODLANDER JEFFREY M & 
2590 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 JACKSON LARRY W 
1191 BLUE OVAL LN 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

MOORE JOHN L JR & PATRICIA 
1190 BLUE OVAL LN 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 DEMMON HARRY J JR & 
8800 PINE FOREST RD # 12102 
PENSACOLA, FL 32534 
 

 JBL PROPERTIES LTD 
3800 AIRPORT BLVD STE 200 
MOBILE, AL 36608 
 

EVANS JEREMY & 
1175 WENSEL DR 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 WARNOCK ALBERT M III & 
1187 WENSEL DR 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 JENKS BRYANT H JR 
291 COUNTY ROAD 462 
VARDAMAN, MS 38878 
 

JENKS THOMAS WILLIAM II & 
2612 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 VINAJA SEAN S & 
2067 JOSHUA ST 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 JENKS THOMAS W 
2606 NOWAK DAIRY RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

COLEMAN FRANCES V 
8990 N DAVIS WHY APT 84 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

GELAWRENCashier ID :

07/17/2014Date Issued. : 612788Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ140700014

Project Name : Z-2014-13

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,270.502092 App ID : PRZ140700014

$1,270.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

NESHEM STEPHEN & VERONICA S

$1,270.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

1170  BLUE OVAL LN, CANTONMENT, FL, 32533PRZ140700014  703831 $0.00 1,270.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 7/17/2014
 1,270.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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21

second.  Discussion or questions from staff 1

members?  Okay.  Hearing none, all those in 2

favor, say aye. 3

(Board members vote.) 4

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  08:48AM 5

(None.) 6

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 7

unanimously.  8

(The motion passed unanimously.)  9

MR. BRISKE:  We'll be in touch with you 08:48AM 10

for your hearing in front of the Board of 11

County Commissioners.  12

MS. PERRY:  Thank you, very much. 13

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you. 14

They don't all go that easy folks.  They 08:48AM 15

don't all go that easy.  16

(Conclusion of Case Z-2014-13.  The 17

transcript continues on Page 22.)18

          *   *    *19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

22

          *   *    *1

CASE NO:  Z-2014-142

Applicant:       Christopher Carmen, Agent for David 3

                 and Andrea Saguan, Owners

Address:         8400 Block Cedar Springs Road4

Property Size:   25.34 (+/-) acres 

From:            VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District 5

                 (five du/100 acres on one acre   

                 parcels)6

To:              VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District 

                 (one du/five acres)7

_____________________________________________________

8

MR. BRISKE:  Our next case is Z-2014-14.  9

This is Christopher Carmen, who is acting as 08:48AM 10

the agent for David and Andrea Saguan, the 11

owners, 8400 Block of Cedar Springs Road, 12

25.34 acres, from Villages Agriculture One, to 13

VAG-2.  14

Members of the Board, once again I'll ask 08:49AM 15

if there's been any ex parte communication on 16

this case between you, the applicant, agents, 17

attorneys, witnesses, Planning Board members 18

or members of the general public?  Also please 19

disclose if you have visited the subject 08:49AM 20

property and disclose if you are a relative or 21

business associate of any of the parties.22

Ms. Oram.23

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  24

MR. GOODLOE:  No to all.  08:49AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

23

MR. LOWERY:  No to all. 1

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all. 2

MR. TATE:  No to all.3

MS. DAVIS:  No to all.  4

MR. WINGATE:  No contact, just a drive-by. 08:49AM 5

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.  6

Staff -- I'm sorry.  Did you have 7

something else?  8

MR. WINGATE:  No.  9

MR. BRISKE:  Staff, was a notice of 08:49AM 10

hearing sent to all interested parties in this 11

case?  12

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, sir, it was. 13

MR. BRISKE:  And was it also posted on the 14

subject property?  08:49AM 15

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, sir, it was.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Allyson, if you will present 17

the maps and photography for this case, 18

please.19

(Presentation of Maps and Photography.)08:50AM 20

MS. CAIN:  8400 Cedar Springs Road, from 21

VAG-1, Village Agriculture, to VAG-2, Village 22

Agriculture, one dwelling units per 23

five acres.  This is our locational map 24

showing the wetlands.  This is our aerial 08:50AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

24

photography.  This is the Future Land Use with 1

Agricultural Future Land Use designation.  2

This is the existing land use map.  This is 3

the zoning map showing the VAG-1 and VAG-2.  4

This is our public notice sign posted on the 08:50AM 5

site.  This is looking into the property the 6

best that we could.  This is looking north on 7

Cedar Springs Road.  This is looking west from 8

the subject property across the street.  This 9

is looking south along Cedar Springs Road.  08:50AM 10

Looking north onto the subject property.  This 11

is a our 500-foot radius map obtained from 12

Chris Jones.  This is our mailing list for the 13

people in the 500-foot radius.  That concludes 14

the pictures.  08:51AM 15

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  16

Board members, any questions on the maps 17

or photography?  Hearing none.  18

Mr. Carmen, please come forward.  Good 19

morning, sir.  Please be sworn in.  08:51AM 20

(Christopher Carmen sworn.) 21

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning, sir.  If you 22

will please state your full name and address 23

for the record. 24

MR. CARMEN:  Christopher Carmen, 6506 08:51AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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25

Margate Drive, Pensacola, Florida, 32526. 1

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Have you 2

received a copy of the rezoning package and 3

the staff's Findings-of-Fact?  4

MR. CARMEN:  I did receive an email copy 08:51AM 5

of that.  6

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 7

have the burden of providing substantial 8

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 9

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 08:51AM 10

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 11

that plan and is not in conflict with any 12

portion of the Land Development Code?13

MR. CARMEN:  Yes. 14

MR. BRISKE:  You may proceed.  08:52AM 15

MR. TATE:  Mr. Carmen, before you get 16

started, as in our last case there's no one 17

here other than you all to speak for or 18

against this and we've had the opportunity to 19

review it.  Staff's Findings-of-Fact are in 08:52AM 20

favor of this all the way.  You can choose to 21

accept their Findings-of-Fact and we can...22

MR. CARMEN:  I support their 23

Findings-of-Fact and I agree with what they 24

sent me in their findings. 08:52AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

26

MR. TATE:  If it's okay with you, we can 1

go ahead and vote on it unless you have 2

anything else to add to the record.  This is 3

the record that will stand.  There's nobody 4

else that can come in and add to it at the 08:52AM 5

next meeting.6

MR. CARMEN:  Is there anything -- I mean, 7

if the County Board of Commissioners has any 8

questions at that point, am I able -- they can 9

ask me questions then or I need to state 08:52AM 10

anything now?  11

MR. BRISKE:  They can ask questions.  You 12

can't add any additional new info voluntarily, 13

but if they ask you a question, you can 14

respond to it.08:53AM 15

MR. CARMEN:  Sure.  Okay.  Well, I'm happy 16

to accept their Findings-of-Fact. 17

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  Before we go to a 18

motion, is there anyone else here to speak for 19

or against this matter?  Hearing none, the 08:53AM 20

public portion is closed and the floor is 21

open.  22

(Motion by Mr. Tate.) 23

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chairman, I move that this 24

Board find in favor of Case Z-2014-14 and 08:53AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

27

recommend rezoning to the Board of County 1

Commissioners from VAG-1 to VAG-2 and accept 2

staff's Findings-of-Fact for the record. 3

MR. WINGATE:  Second.  4

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion and a 08:53AM 5

second.  Is there any further discussion?  All 6

those in favor, say aye.  7

(Board members vote.) 8

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?9

(None.) 08:53AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 11

unanimously.  12

(The motion passed unanimously.)  13

MR. BRISKE:  Good luck with it, sir.   14

     (Conclusion of Case Z-2014-14.  The 08:54AM 15

transcript continues on Page 28.) 16

          *   *    *17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

28

                      *   *    *1

CASE NO:  Z-2014-162

Applicant:       Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for 3

                 Daniel and Rhonda Cobb, Owners

Address:         2840 Pine Forest Road4

Property Size:   12.23 (+/- acres) 

From:            VR-2, Villages Rural Residential 5

                 District (one du/0.75 acre)

To:              V-3, Villages Single-Family      6

                 Residential District (five du/acre)

_____________________________________________________7

MR. BRISKE:  Our next case is Case 8

Z-2014-16.  Buddy Page is agent for Daniel and 9

Rhonda Cobb, the owners, 2840 Pine Forest 08:54AM 10

Road, 12.23 acres, from VR-2, Villages Rural 11

Residential District, to V-3 Villages 12

Single-Family Residential District (five 13

du/acre).14

On this case, Board members, has there 08:54AM 15

been any ex parte communication between you, 16

the applicant, agents, attorneys, witnesses, 17

fellow Planning Board members or anyone from 18

the general public?  I would also ask that you 19

disclose if you have visited the subject 08:54AM 20

property and if you are a relative to any of 21

the parties.  22

Ms. Oram. 23

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  24

MR. GOODLOE:  No to all. 08:55AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. B.           
Meeting Date: 09/02/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-14
APPLICANT: Christopher Carmen, Agent for David and Andrea Saguan, Owners 

ADDRESS: 8400 Blk Cedar Springs Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 25-3N-32-1400-000-000
FUTURE LAND USE: AG, Agriculture  

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/09/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District, Gross Density (five du/100 acres on one acre parcels)

TO: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District, Gross Density (one du/five acres)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Agriculture (AG) Future Land Use (FLU)
category is intended for routine agricultural and silvicultural related activities and very low density
residential uses. Also allows for commercial activity limited to those endeavors ancillary to
agricultural and silvicultural pursuits or in support of agricultural activities such as seed, feed and
food outlets, farm equipment and repair and veterinary services. Range of allowable uses
include: agriculture, silviculture, residential, recreational, public and civic, limited ancillary or
supportive commercial. The maximum residential density is one dwelling unit per twenty acres.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to VAG-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land
Use category AG as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1 since VAG-2 is intended for low density residential
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Use category AG as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1 since VAG-2 is intended for low density residential
uses while supporting agricultural activities the same as the current zoning of VAG-1.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

Land Development Code (LDC) 6.05.22 VAG Villages Agriculture Districts. 
The villages agricultural districts are typically characterized by agriculturally-assessed parcels
held for agricultural production and very low density residential development in agricultural
communities. Single-family residential and rural community uses that directly support agricultural
activities are allowed. Home occupations are considered permitted uses. Mobile homes are
allowed as single-family dwellings. Residential density bonuses are available for clustering
residential lots outside areas of prime farmland. When residential lots are created, small lot
sizes are encouraged in order to protect viable farm production activities and curb premature
conversion of prime farmland acreage to nonagricultural uses. 

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code. VAG-1 allows for large farming operations and to keep large parcels of land from being
broken up making it harder to have enough acres for agricultural activities. VAG-2 is for smaller
rural land areas with a mix of farm operations and rural residential densities. Both zoning
designations have the same permitted uses.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts VAG-1 and
VAG-2. The parcels are residential and agricultural in use and comparable in size to the subject
property. 

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
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Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated on the
subject property and is in an "A" Flood zone. When applicable, further review during the Site
Plan Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment and a wetlands survey will be required. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. The
surrounding properties are currently zoned either VAG-1 or VAG-2 with residential uses
therefore the granting of this rezoning would allow this parcel to remain compatible with the
neighboring properties.

Attachments
Z-2014-14
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Public Notice Sign 
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Looking north on Cedar Springs Rd 

GMR 10-09-14 Rezoning Case Z-2014-14 14 of 31



Looking west from subject property  
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Looking south along Cedar Springs Rd 
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Looking north into subject property 
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

VHOWENSCashier ID :

07/22/2014Date Issued. : 613206Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ140700015

Project Name : Z-2014-14

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,270.501004 App ID : PRZ140700015

$1,270.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

CHRISTOPHER CARMEN / SAGUAN DAVID

$1,270.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

8400  CEDAR SPRINGS RD, MOLINO, FL, 32577PRZ140700015  704556 $0.00 1,270.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 7/23/2014
 1,270.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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I wanted to also address Criterion Number 1

(5) about the effect on the natural 2

environment just to reiterate what all these 3

people have said.  Just because we don't know 4

what the proposed use if it were changed to 10:25AM 5

V-3 would be, let's say worse case scenario 6

they put 59 houses there, I think we all know 7

that that's going to have a pretty significant 8

impact on the natural environment.  And I just 9

wanted to come up and say these few words 10:25AM 10

today on behalf of all these people behind me. 11

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Before you 12

leave, please fill out one of these pink forms 13

so we have it on the record, as well.  Just 14

submit it to the staff up here.  10:26AM 15

Anyone who hadn't spoken already?  Hearing 16

none, I will now close the public comment 17

portion for today's hearing and, of course, it 18

will be reopened again at the subsequent 19

hearing.  Is there any discussion before we 10:26AM 20

hear from Mr. Goodloe for continuance?  21

MS. SINDEL:  None.  22

MR. BRISKE:  Hearing none, Mr. Goodloe, 23

the floor is yours.24

(Motion for continuance by Mr. Goodloe.)10:26AM 25
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MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, I move that we 1

continue Case Z-2014-16 to the next regularly 2

scheduled Planning Board meeting. 3

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 4

MR. BRISKE:  A motion and a second.  All 10:26AM 5

in favor, say aye.  6

(Board members vote.) 7

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  8

(None.) 9

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries.  10:26AM 10

(Motion passed unanimously.) 11

MR. BRISKE:  That will be September 30th 12

and notification -- Horace, are we going to 13

readvertise to the 500-foot radius, as well as 14

the signs? 10:26AM 15

MR. JONES:  The signs will be done.  We're 16

going to stick with the same 500-foot radius 17

that's currently in process right now.  18

MR. BRISKE:  Very good.  We will take a 19

brief recess here.  Let's keep it brief 10:27AM 20

because we do have one more case.  Let's come 21

back 10:35, please, 10:35. 22

(Break taken, after which the proceedings 23

continued.)24

(Transcript continues on Page 104.)25
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          *   *    *1

CASE NO:  Z-2014-182

Applicant:       Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for 3

                 Doris Minchew, Owner   

Address:         7170 Blue Angel Parkway4

Property Size:   4.66 (+/-)acres

From:            R-R, Rural Residential (cumulative) 5

                 (two du/acre)

To:              C-1, Retail Commercial District  6

                 (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

_____________________________________________________7

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  We are now going to 8

move on to our last case, which is case 9

Z-2014-18.  Buddy Page is the agent for Doris 10:36AM 10

Minshew, owner, 7170 Blue Angel Parkway, 11

4.66 acres, from R-R, Rural Residential, to 12

C-1, Retail Commercial District.  13

Members of the Board, on this case I'll 14

ask if there's been any ex parte communication 10:37AM 15

between you and the agents, applicant, 16

attorneys, witnesses, Planning Board members 17

or anyone from the general public, have you 18

visited the subject site and also if you are 19

related to any of the parties.10:37AM 20

Ms. Oram. 21

MS. ORAM:  No to all.22

MR. GOODLOE:  I have no ex parte, but I 23

have visited the site. 24

MR. LOWERY:  No to all.  10:37AM 25
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MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all.  1

MR. TATE:  No to all.  2

MS. DAVIS:  No to all.3

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Wingate. 4

MR. WINGATE:  I just passed by and just 10:37AM 5

looked and viewed the site.  I didn't talk -- 6

no personal contact.  7

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  8

Ms. Sindel.9

MS. SINDEL:  No to all. 10:37AM 10

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  11

Staff, on this case was the notice of 12

hearing sent to all interested parties?  13

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, it was. 14

MR. BRISKE:  On this case was it correctly 10:38AM 15

posted on the subject property?  16

MS. MALLORY:  Yes, it was. 17

MR. BRISKE:  I had to get a little zing in 18

there.  19

We'll go ahead and have the maps and 10:38AM 20

photography now, please. 21

(Presentation of Maps and Photography.)22

MS. CAIN:  This is Z-2014-18, 7170 Blue 23

Angel, going from R-R, Rural Residential, to 24

C-1, Retail Commercial District.  10:38AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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This is the locational map showing that 1

there is some wetlands that do go through the 2

elongated part of the parcel.  There's the 3

aerial photography showing the property on 4

Blue Angel and Pine Forest.  This is the 10:38AM 5

Future Land Use Map showing the current Future 6

Land Use of Mixed Use Urban.  7

MR. TATE:  I'm sorry, did you just say 8

Pine Forest?  9

MS. CAIN:  I'm sorry, Blue Angel Parkway 10:39AM 10

and close to the Pine Forest Road.  The 11

existing land use map showing the surrounding 12

uses of the property, which show some vacant 13

and the majority of them are single-family.  14

This is the zoning map showing the current 10:39AM 15

R-R zoning of the property.  This is the 16

public notice sign showing the R-R to C-1.  17

This is across Blue Angel Parkway looking at 18

the subject property.  This is also looking at 19

the rear of the property on the right side of 10:39AM 20

the subject property.  This is the parcel to 21

the east that adjoins the subject property.  22

This is looking east at the intersection of 23

Blue Angel and Pine Forest Road.  This is 24

looking across the subject property from Blue 10:40AM 25
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Angel Parkway.  Another parcel across Blue 1

Angel from the subject property.  Looking west 2

along Blue Angel from the subject property.  3

This is the 500-foot mailing radius map we got 4

from the property appraiser.  And this is our 10:40AM 5

mailing list.  That concludes the photos and 6

maps. 7

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  Buddy, do you want to 8

come forward, please.  You're still under oath 9

from the previous case, but just please state 10:40AM 10

your name and address again. 11

(Wiley C."Buddy" Page, previously sworn.)12

MR. PAGE:  Buddy Page, 5337 Hamilton Lane, 13

Pace, Florida. 14

MR. BRISKE:  Sir, on this case have you 10:40AM 15

received the staff's hearing package and the 16

Findings-of-Fact? 17

MR. PAGE:  I have. 18

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 19

have the burden of providing substantial 10:41AM 20

competent evidence that its consistent with 21

the Comprehensive Plan, furthers the goals and 22

policies of that plan and is not in conflict 23

with the Land Development Code?  24

MR. PAGE:  I do.  10:41AM 25
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MR. BRISKE:  We do not have anyone signed 1

up to speak on this one from the public at 2

this time and we don't have any public left, 3

so go ahead, sir. 4

MR. PAGE:  Mr. Chairman, thank you.  10:41AM 5

Criterion (1) regarding the consistency with 6

the Comprehensive Plan, we concur with the 7

staff's finding that it is consistent. 8

Criterion (2), consistency with the Land 9

Development Code.  I note in the findings that 10:41AM 10

it appears to be in conflict; however, as you 11

read down very near the end of the second 12

paragraph it says commercial zoning along 13

major arterial roads, i.e., Blue Angel Parkway 14

is somewhat encouraged by the locational 10:41AM 15

criteria regulations per the Land Development 16

Code.  We certainly agree with that.  17

Even though it says that it appears to be 18

in conflict, we think that the casual observer 19

that would drive through that area would see 10:42AM 20

that it is continuing to move from 21

single-family type development to commercial.  22

I did note in the 500-foot zoning that you 23

have overhead and on your screen, if you look 24

down at the very bottom you will see R-R, 10:42AM 25
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Rural Residential.  That particular site, I 1

think, is about a four-and-a-half acre AT&T, a 2

union, some type of transfer facility that 3

they have there.  That's where they park all 4

of their trucks.  I was under the impression 10:42AM 5

that that whole area right there where AT&T is 6

located was commercial.  And as you see to the 7

north on one of the land use maps it showed 8

vacant land above the C-2 -- well, down -- 9

right in there.  That actually is a County 10:42AM 10

fire department and training center on Pine 11

Forest Road and it showed up on the other 12

existing land uses as being vacant.  13

So those two map corrections, I think, 14

further point to the fact that the area is 10:43AM 15

moving in transition.  This Board will recall 16

I think, last month you had two applications 17

in front of you that are just to the northeast 18

of this site, Dr. Brunson, the old dentist 19

from the Brownsville area.  You, I believe, 10:43AM 20

reviewed and approved their change from Rural 21

to C-1, Commercial.  So that area, whether 22

you're just north of that intersection or just 23

south or west, as you pull through it, it will 24

continue to be an area that is under 10:43AM 25
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transition.  1

The Board will also recall that the County 2

has plans for a number of years to extend 3

Longleaf Drive from Pine Forest to Highway 29.  4

I understand just this morning that an update 10:44AM 5

on that the County has decided to bring that 6

down into phases and it will likely be a 7

four-lane phase from Pine Forest over to the 8

first L-shape to the left.  I forget the name 9

of that road, but they're going to take it in 10:44AM 10

segments.  Once that's constructed, the 11

east/west traffic in front of this particular 12

site here will certainly only increase.  The 13

traffic year to date from 2011 to 2012, the 14

very latest things that we could find showed a 10:44AM 15

seven percent increase in southbound right 16

turn traffic from Pine Forest swinging onto 17

Blue Angel Parkway.  18

Those type of statistics suggest that it's 19

going to continue to be a popular roadway and 10:44AM 20

if this is extended to the east with the 21

County's segment approach to extending 22

Longleaf, it could only further increase the 23

traffic in this area.  24

And again, very few building permits for 10:45AM 25
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single-family homes have been pulled in this 1

area even though there are vacant lands.  The 2

particular piece of property here that 3

Mr. Bobby Minchew owns has been on the market 4

for probably a little over three years for 10:45AM 5

sale as a single-family residential home by 6

Ms. Marie Gibbs, Realtor, and there have been 7

no offers on it for a single-family residence 8

at that location.  9

So, Mr. Chairman, we think with that 10:45AM 10

information we're consistent with the Land 11

Development Code, especially given the 12

locational criteria and the encouragement 13

that's referenced in that very last paragraph.  14

Criterion (3), compatibility with 10:45AM 15

surrounding areas.  I mentioned the general 16

tone of the Land Development Code going from 17

residential to commercial.  It says here that 18

the proposed amendment is not compatible with 19

the existing uses.  10:46AM 20

One of things, Mr. Chairman, under 21

Criterion (3), compatibility with surrounding 22

areas, that sentence actually reads whether 23

and to the extent to which the proposed 24

amendment is compatible with existing and 10:46AM 25
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proposed.  But yet when you read the analysis, 1

the "and proposed" seldom is mentioned.  2

Proposed activity in that area generally is 3

thought of as the Future Land Use Map.  That's 4

the proposed Future Land Use for that area and 10:46AM 5

it's all commercial.  We think we're 6

consistent with that and compatible with it in 7

that light, Mr. Chairman. 8

Changed conditions.  I don't think there's 9

a whole lot changed perhaps other than just 10:46AM 10

the Brunson property that I mentioned.  11

Effect on the natural environment.  There 12

is a considerable amount of wetlands as shown 13

on the original first map that bisects this 14

property, so that really the only developable 10:47AM 15

portion on it is probably going to be the 16

first 260 feet.  You go through that wetland.  17

The back portion then cannot be reached 18

without going through jurisdictional wetlands 19

and the Corps of Engineers have long done away 10:47AM 20

with box culverts slung in place to cross 21

those types of things so it would be almost 22

impossible to do that.  So the effect on the 23

natural environment, while there would be no 24

effect on it, there's a considerable amount of 10:47AM 25
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wetlands that would have to be given 1

consideration.  2

Under Criterion (6), the development 3

patterns, I think I mentioned a fair amount of 4

that in terms of what's going on.  I did note 10:47AM 5

that it says there appears to be a pattern of 6

residential development in the area.  That's 7

correct.  I think the last house in that area 8

was built in the late '80s, so I think that 9

would be more accurate to say that there is a 10:47AM 10

pattern of some historical residential 11

development in the area. 12

Commercial development is very limited 13

within the 500-foot radius.  Commercial 14

development, that's true.  Commercial zoning, 10:48AM 15

getting back to proposed as we're suppose to 16

be taking a look at under the analysis, 17

there's a fair amount of commercial property 18

that is zoned for that.  It's difficult to 19

understand why someone would buy a piece of 10:48AM 20

commercial property and then attempt to have 21

it rezoned residential because there are no 22

patterns for that type of thing.  23

So we think that we're consistent with the 24

development patterns given the historical and 10:48AM 25
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I think what we all would recognize is a major 1

arterial collector coming together in two 2

different directions.  It's a hurricane 3

evacuation route.  We think that the proximity 4

of the intersection would lead one to believe 10:48AM 5

that the majority of the property within that 6

intersection should be zoned commercial.  7

Mr. Chairman, for those reasons we think we're 8

consistent with six.  9

Thereby, I think we would ask the Board to 10:49AM 10

consider all of that and grant our request.  11

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  Any questions of 12

Mr. Page right now?  13

MS. SINDEL:  Not now. 14

MR. BRISKE:  Let's hear the staff's 10:49AM 15

presentation and we'll give you a chance for a 16

closing.  17

MS. CAIN:  This is again Z-2014-18, 7170 18

Blue Angel Parkway requesting from R-R, Rural 19

Residential, to C-1, Retail Commercial 10:49AM 20

District.  21

On Criterion (1), consistency with the 22

Comprehensive Plan, it is consistent with the 23

intent and purpose because the category of 24

Mixed Use Urban does allow for a mixture of 10:49AM 25
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residential and commercial development 1

promoting infill development.  2

With the Criterion (2), consistent with 3

the Land Development Code, the proposed 4

amendment would appear to be in conflict with 10:50AM 5

a portion of the Land Development Code.  One 6

of the primary goals for the separation of 7

zoning districts is to protect the residential 8

development from some of the nonresidential 9

commercial uses.  10:50AM 10

In this particular case the zoning from 11

R-R to C-1 would definitely increase the 12

allowable uses for the nonresidential retail 13

commercial, which would definitely impact some 14

of the adjoining property although there are 10:50AM 15

some buffering requirements.  When you get 16

into the Land Development Code there are some 17

screenings and buffering standards that have 18

to go in place for commercial development from 19

residential.  10:50AM 20

Blue Angel Parkway is a major arterial 21

roadway and as stated by Mr. Page earlier, 22

there are locational criteria that most of C-1 23

development must be on arterial roadways or in 24

a certain proximity to arterial roadways or 10:51AM 25
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intersections.  1

For Criterion (3), the compatible uses 2

with the surrounding area, we found that it's 3

not really consistent or compatible with the 4

existing surrounding uses.  Even though some 10:51AM 5

or a majority of the properties are C-1 6

zoning, the uses are residential.  As Mr. Page 7

stated on the opposite end, on the R-R, which 8

is a Rural Residential zoning, there is a 9

commercial use there, but right in front of it 10:51AM 10

that property that's R-R is a single-family 11

home and then to the west of that there are 12

multifamily homes that are in C-1 zonings.  13

So it would allow for a range of full 14

retail and different commercial services.  It 10:52AM 15

would be more an intense use than what is 16

currently there being used regardless of the 17

zoning itself.  Even though right next door to 18

this particular property there is a C-1 zoning 19

although it does have a single-family 10:52AM 20

residence on it now.  Zoning to a less intense 21

zoning would provide for a more compatible 22

transition.  The next lower would be like an 23

R-6 zoning. 24

The criteria for changed conditions, 10:52AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

116

Criterion (4), we did not find any other 1

changed conditions that would impact the 2

amendment or the property.  3

Effect on the natural environment.  As 4

stated, there were some hydric soils as 10:52AM 5

indicated on the subject property and before 6

any development would occur, there would have 7

to be some -- in the development review 8

process there would have to be some wetlands 9

inventory submitted for that project to make 10:53AM 10

sure there was not going to be any adverse 11

impacts to the adjoining properties. 12

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 13

subject parcel and the surrounding area there 14

is a pattern of residential development within 10:53AM 15

the area and, yes, there are some parcels that 16

are commercially zoned, but they are being 17

used as single-family homes or apartments and 18

multifamily.  Commercial development at this 19

point is the existing commercial zoned parcel 10:53AM 20

adjacent to and in close proximity to the 21

parcel.  Like I said, there is a -- I lost my 22

train of thought, sorry. 23

MR. BRISKE:  That's what a week up in the 24

mountains will do to you.  10:54AM 25
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MS. CAIN:  Yes, the fresh air.  1

So there are requirements for buffering 2

and screening from residential parcels to 3

commercial parcels so they can actually 4

coexist together and considered as a unique 10:54AM 5

factor.  I think that's the staff's findings.  6

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  I have a question 7

again and this is similar to the question that 8

I asked in the last case and it may take 9

several of you to answer it, but when we say 10:54AM 10

things like appears to be in conflict, I 11

certainly understand why we have wording like 12

that.  Just like on the last case Griff 13

qualified it by why there was wording.  I was 14

always under the impression with the 10:54AM 15

Findings-of-Fact that it was kind of a black 16

and white thing, that it should say it's not 17

consistent, it is consistent.  18

MS. CAIN:  That's actually the Board's 19

determination to say whether it's consistent 10:55AM 20

or not.  It is staff's responsibility to try 21

to read the code as it is black and white and 22

then if there are gray areas then the Board 23

will say.  I can look at it or another staff 24

member can look at it and it appears to be but 10:55AM 25
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then you are the ones who make the determining 1

factor is it definitely. 2

MR. BRISKE:  So this is kind of like an 3

interpretation from you guys of what the 4

code -- I mean, I understand why you do it 10:55AM 5

because there is some -- 6

MR. JONES:  Yes, and in cases, as Allyson 7

stated so correctly, there are cases where it 8

is black and white and clearly we will state 9

if it's black and white.  Then there are other 10:55AM 10

cases where it is not black and white and as 11

staff we've got to present you all of the 12

facts, all the code.  Some could have been a 13

portion of it in conflict.  The rest of it 14

could not be in conflict, so that's why we 10:55AM 15

present you all of the facts and you have to 16

weigh the evidence and then you can make a 17

decision based upon all the facts.  It will 18

not be skewed as one-sided.  If it's gray, we 19

want call to call it gray and present all the 10:56AM 20

evidence to you. 21

MS. CAIN:  And the Staff is actually 22

drafting the Planning Board's findings because 23

the code says that the Board gives findings -- 24

the Planning Board recommends findings to the 10:56AM 25
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Board of County Commissioners, so we are 1

trying to help you draft your findings for the 2

Board.3

MR. JONES:  Also, too, Mr. Briske and 4

Board members, if you're ever sitting down in 10:56AM 5

the seat when it comes to the actual BCC 6

cases, all of the other sides that we do not 7

present, they do ask those questions and 8

sometimes it's hard to think so quickly what 9

to say, so all of those other sides they 10:56AM 10

definitely ask what about this?  What about I 11

thought this was allowed.  So we try to 12

present you all of the evidence so that you 13

can make a qualified, more accurate 14

determination upon the whole Land Development 10:57AM 15

Code. 16

MR. BRISKE:  What I'm getting at, 17

Mr. Ross, this may be for you, but the final 18

findings that the Planning Board votes on has 19

to be -- it has to be definitive for appeal 10:57AM 20

purposes. 21

MR. ROSS:  Yes, sir.  I don't think that 22

the Planning Board could hang their hat on an 23

apparently or pretty close or appears to be.  24

I think it was to be you either find that the 10:57AM 25
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applicant has satisfied the criteria or if the 1

applicant has not satisfied the criteria, you 2

point to which criteria he or she has not 3

satisfied. 4

MR. BRISKE:  So then that would be the 10:57AM 5

final finding amended accordingly?  6

MR. ROSS:  Yes. 7

MR. BRISKE:  I just want to make sure 8

because I wasn't trying to be critical, but in 9

some of these cases we get that wording where 10:57AM 10

it is kind of nebulous.11

MR. ROSS:  In the end it's a staff 12

analysis.  The staff is not making the 13

factual ultimate -- conducting a 14

quasi-judicial hearing, so it's just a guide 10:58AM 15

for your decision making. 16

MR. BRISKE:  Very good.  17

Mr. Page, anything that you would wish to 18

go back over after hearing the staff's 19

presentation?  10:58AM 20

MR. PAGE:  No. 21

MR. BRISKE:  There's no one here from the 22

public, so we will close public comment.  And 23

now it's up to the Board to ask questions or 24

make a motion.  If you do make a motion, 10:58AM 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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please address Criterion (2) and (3). 1

(Motion by Mr. Goodloe.)2

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, a motion.  I 3

move we recommend approval of the rezoning 4

application to the Board of County 10:58AM 5

Commissioners and adopt Findings-of-Fact (1), 6

(4) and (5).  7

And with the exception of Criterion (2), 8

that we do not find it to be in conflict with 9

the code or Land Development Code.  10:58AM 10

And in Criterion (3), it is compatible 11

with surrounding and existing uses.  12

And for Criterion 6), that it would result 13

in a logical and orderly development pattern. 14

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  Thank you, 10:59AM 15

Mr. Goodloe.  We have a motion amending the 16

Findings-of-Fact in Criterion (2), (3) and 6).  17

Is there a second?  18

MR. TATE:  Second.  19

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  Mr. Tate.  Any 10:59AM 20

discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 21

(Board members vote.) 22

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  23

(None.) 24

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 10:59AM 25
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unanimously.  Thank you, Mr. Goodloe.  1

(The motion passed unanimously.) 2

(Conclusion of Z-1014-18.)  3

MR. BRISKE:  Before we go off the 4

record -- I know we've already continued the 10:59AM 5

previous case.  Griff, I wanted to ask that 6

you would do a little more research.  When we 7

were looking at the map there was a portion of 8

the map that you said there was a conflict 9

with the adjoining property owner, the 10:59AM 10

property line concerning where the rezoning is 11

on the previous case, case 16, and can we just 12

get a little more information about what that 13

is?  14

MR. TATE:  At the next meeting.11:00AM 15

MR. VICKERY:  It's based on their 16

submitted survey, so we're relying on a 17

certified land surveyor to give us that legal 18

description. 19

MR. BRISKE:  And that is in conflict with 11:00AM 20

the County's records?  21

MR. VICKERY:  The County records show and 22

the property appraiser's records show that 23

overlap.  They're not creating, they're 24

documenting the existing conflict, if you 11:00AM 25
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will.  1

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  2

MR. VICKERY:  Drew, do you have anything 3

more?  4

MR. HOLMER:  There are conflicts 11:00AM 5

throughout the county, usually small pieces 6

like this, where the property appraiser's 7

polygons, you know, there have been changes in 8

the past.  Maybe somebody's legal description 9

started a little bit further north than 11:01AM 10

someone else's and there's these little pieces 11

like this throughout.  What we're relying on 12

when we come forward with the rezonings is the 13

legal description provided by the applicant.  14

I'm not sure if there's any claim to this 11:01AM 15

little sliver.16

MR. TATE:  Can I ask that we be careful 17

that we just move away from this without 18

anybody from the other party there?  I know 19

Mr. Page has something to add to that, but in 11:01AM 20

fairness I don't know that... 21

MR. BRISKE:  It wasn't my intent to reopen 22

the case.  I just wanted to make sure that we 23

had clarification of that was the actual 24

property boundaries.  I mean, the reason I say 11:01AM 25
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this, let's say there was a much bigger error 1

and this affected a nearby property and now 2

let's say it was recommended for approval, you 3

could be affecting the rights of an adjoining 4

property owner by what happens in this case.  11:02AM 5

That's my concern there.  I don't want to 6

reopen it because it's a quasi-judicial, but I 7

just want to make sure that we have all the 8

info at the next hearing to make sure it's 9

clear why that is so.  I know you've already 11:02AM 10

testified that they gave a survey, but I just 11

think it would be a good thing to do.12

Mr. Page, I know you want to speak but in 13

an effort to keep it no ex parte 14

communication, I think we'll hold off on that. 11:02AM 15

MR. PAGE:  Okay.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Anything else for the 17

rezoning hearing?  18

MS. SINDEL:  No.  19

MR. BRISKE:  We'll go ahead and call the 11:02AM 20

meeting to a close.  We are adjourned in that 21

meeting.  Our next one will be September 30th 22

here in this room.  Thank you, Linda. 23

(The quasi-judicial proceedings concluded 24

at 11:03 a.m.)25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. D.           
Meeting Date: 09/02/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-18
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Doris Minchew, Owner 

ADDRESS: 7170 Blue Angel Parkway 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 25-1S-31-2101-001-002

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-U, Mixed-Use
Urban

 

DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/09/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-R, Rural Residential (cumulative) (two du/acre)

TO: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses while
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses
within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include: residential, retail and services,
professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic. The minimum
residential density is 3.5 dwelling units per acre and the maximum residential density is 25
dwelling units per acre.

Policy FLU 2.1.2 Compact Development. To promote compact development, FLUM amendments
and residential rezoning to allow higher residential densities may be allowed in the Mixed-Use
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urban (MU-U) and Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land use categories.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to C-1 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category Mixed-Use Urban(MU-U) as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1 The existing land use of MU-U
allows for a mix of residential and commercial development promoting compatible infill
development. 

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment appears to be in conflict with a portion of the LDC. Generally, one of
the primary goals of separate zoning districts is to protect the residential development from
nonresidential land uses. More specifically in this case, a rezoning of the parcel in question from
RR to C-1 would increase the allowable uses and the associated impacts significantly. From an
objective review of the pertinent regulations for Criterion 2, this could be deemed as inconsistent
with the intent and purpose.

But equally important is the fact that the Land Development Code does allow for screening and
buffering standards that would allow for residential and commercial development to co-exist in
close proximity to each other; therefore minimizing or even eliminating any adverse impacts
commonly associated with commercial development. Another factor to consider is that the
parcel is fronting on Blue Angel Parkway, which is a major arterial road. Particularly on the
south side of the Blue Angel Parkway, there are parcels already in existence with C-1 zoning
designations in close proximity to the subject property; likewise, commercial zoning along major
arterial roads, i.e. Blue Angel Parkway, is somewhat encouraged by the locational criteria
regulations per Article 7.20.00 Land Development Code.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area because
it would allow a full range of retail sales and service development which would be a more
intense use as compared to the existing single-family and multi-family residential developments
in the area of the subject property. Within the area of the subject parcel there are properties with
zoning districts RR, C-1 and C-2. Rezoning to a less intense zoning category would provide for
a smooth transition and be more compatible with the developed lots.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
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Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated on the
subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will be
necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

From staff's site visit of the subject parcel and the surrounding areas, there appears to be a
pattern of residential development within the area. Yes, there are parcels with commercial
zoning designations; but, they are single-family homes and apartments. Commercial
development is very limited within the 500'radius. Since this appear to be the case, the point can
be made that the request would not result in a logical and orderly development pattern.
However, the existence of the commercially zoned parcels adjacent to and in close proximity to
the subject parcel; the location of the subject parcel on Blue Angel Parkway; and the
requirement for screening and buffering so that parcels with a different zoning designation can
co-exist together could be considered as unique factors that can help facilitate mixed use
development patterns.

Attachments
Z-2014-18
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Public notice sign 
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Looking at rear of subject property 
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Parcel to the east of subject property 
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Looking east at intersection of Blue Angel and Pine Forest Rd 
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Looking across from subject property 
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Another parcel across Blue Angel Pkwy 
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Looking west along Blue Angel Pkwy 
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MINCHEW DORIS 
C/O JOHN A PANYKO PA+323 E 
ROMANA ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32502 
 

 MALONEY JOHN M & 
7019 PINE FOREST RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 COPPS RICHARD D & 
7017 PINE FOREST RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

COLE JOHN JR & 
7015 PINE FOREST RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 HATCHER CYNTHIA D 
150 E 57TH ST APT 5B 
NEW YORK, NY 10022 
 

 BRYARS LINDA S & 
C/O LINDA S BRYARS+2655 W 
MICHIGAN AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

SCHOFIELD CHRISTOPHER C & 
7160 N BLUE ANGEL PKWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 TUPLING ELIZABETH DACIA & 
7180 N BLUE ANGEL PKWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 KADER INC 
1756 CEDRUS LN 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 
 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
221 PALAFOX PL STE 420 
PENSACOLA, FL 32502 
 

 ARNOLD GRACE ELIZABETH 
7130 N BLUE ANGEL PKY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 COPPS R D & JOANN 
7017 PINE FOREST RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

HAM PEST CONTROL INC 
PO BOX 37294 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 OMNI 40% INT & 
713 PANFERIO DR 
PENSACOLA BEACH, FL 32561 
 

 MILLER INVESTMENT GROUP LLC 
PO BOX 957 
BREWTON, AL 36427 
 

HASTY SIMON G & ADA ELTA 
7150 N BLUE ANGEL PKY 
PENSACOLA, FL 325268020 
 

 FLORIDA STATE OF DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
PO BOX 607 
CHIPLEY, FL 32428 
 

 EDGAR HENRY T & MARIAN F 
7165 N BLUE ANGEL PKY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

GRUND BRYAN T 
7175 BLUE ANGEL PKWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 FAMILY DOLLAR STORES OF FLORIDA 
INC 
PO BOX 1017 
CHARLOTTE, NC 28201 
 

 HORNE HERSCHEL H & 
7155 N BLUE ANGEL PKWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

KINGS WAY CHURCH & 
7895 PENSACOLA BLVD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32534 
 

 HAM PEST CONTROL INC 
6259 SONDU AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32526 
 

 SOUTHERN BELL TELEPHONE & 
TELEGRAPH CO 
PO BOX 7207 
BEDMINSTER, NJ 07921 
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

KLHARPERCashier ID :

08/07/2014Date Issued. : 614657Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ140800019

Project Name : Z-2014-18

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,270.501007 App ID : PRZ140800019

$1,270.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

BOBBY R MINCHEW

$1,270.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

7170 N BLUE ANGEL PKWY, PENSACOLA, FL, 32526PRZ140800019  705988 $0.00 1,270.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 8/20/2014
 1,270.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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AI-6892     Growth Management Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: 5:45 p.m.- Amendment to the Official Zoning Map
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing for Consideration for Adopting an Ordinance Amending the Official
Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the
rezoning cases heard by the Planning Board on September 2, 2014 and approved
during the previous agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code,
and an effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Rezoning cases Z-2014-13, Z-2014-14, and Z-2014-18 were heard by the Planning
Board on September 2, 2014. Under the Land Development Code (LDC), the Board of
County Commissioners reviews the record and the recommended order of the Planning
Board and conducts a Public Hearing for adoption of the LDC Zoning Map Amendment. 
 
As a means of achieving the Board’s goal of “decreasing response time from notification
of citizen needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the
Planning Board’s recommendation and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s
rezoning cases.

The previous report item addresses the Board’s determination regarding the Planning
Board’s recommendation. This report item addresses only the Public Hearing and
adoption of the Ordinance amending the LDC Official Zoning Map.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
A copy of the standardized Ordinance has initially been provided to the County
Attorney’s office for review regarding compliance with rezoning requirements in Florida
Statutes and the Land Development Code.



PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended
Board action.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Land Development Code Official Zoning Map, will be filed
with the Department of State following adoption by the Board.
 
This Ordinance is coordinated with the County Attorney’s Office, the Development
Services Department and interested citizens. The Development Services Department
will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Ordinance - Draft
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2014-______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.02.00, THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. 

The Official Zoning Map of Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by reference and 
codified in Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999), the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Florida, as amended:  Article 6, Section 
6.02.00, and all notations, references and information shown thereon as it relates to the 
following described real property in Escambia County, Florida, is hereby amended, as 
follows. 

 
Case No.:   Z-2014-13 
Address: 1170 Blue Oval Lane 
Property Reference No.: 29-1N-31-3301-000-000 
Property Size: 3.54 (+/-) acres 
From: V-1, Villages Single-Family Residential District  

(one du/acre) 
To:  VR-2, Villages Rural Residential District (one 

du/.75 acre) 
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban 
 
Case No.:   Z-2014-14 
Address: 8400 Blk Cedar Springs Road 
Property Reference No.: 25-3N-32-1400-000-000 
Property Size: 25.34 (+/-) acres 
From: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District (five du/100 

acres on one acre parcels) 
To:  VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District (one du/ 

five acres) 
FLU Category: AG, Agriculture 



 

2 

 
Case No.:   Z-2014-18 
Address: 7170 Blue Angel Parkway 
Property Reference No.: 25-1S-31-2101-001-002 
Property Size: 4.66 (+/-) acres 
From: R-R, Rural Residential District (cumulative) 

(two du/acre) 
To:  C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) 

(25 du/acre) 
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban 

Section 2. Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2012); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 



 

3 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 

DONE AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of  

Escambia County Florida, this ________day of __________________, 2014. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
____________________________ 

Lumon J. May, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 
       CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
                ____________________________ 
                                  Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   



   
AI-6913     Growth Management Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance

Amending Articles 3, 6 and 7, Recycling Facilities
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Articles 3, 6,
and 7

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an Ordinance to the
Land Development Code (LDC) Articles 3, 6 and 7 addressing definitions, permitted and
conditional land uses and performance standards related to recycling facilities and
operations.

This hearing serves as the second of two required public hearings before the Board of
County Commissioners (BCC) as set forth in Section 2.08.0 (b) and F.S. 125.66 (4) (b).

At the September 2, 2014, Planning Board Meeting, the Board recommended approval.

BACKGROUND:
In May of 2013, the Board of County Commissioners directed staff to undertake a
comprehensive review of the land use regulations and to formulate performance
standards for the siting and operation of all recycling facilities and related operations.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Ryan
E. Ross, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Solid
Waste Department, Development Services Department, the County Attorney’s Office
and all interested citizens. The Development Services Department will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Ordinance - Draft
Ordinance - Clean
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ORDINANCE NO. 2014-_____ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 3 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 4 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 5 

DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 6 

AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.02.00, TO DEFINE 7 

CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND WASTE DIVERSION 8 

FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 9 

6.05.00, BY AUTHORIZING CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND 10 

WASTE DIVERSION FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS AS 11 

CONDITIONAL USES IN THE C-2, ID-CP, AND ID-1 ZONING 12 

DISTRICTS AND AS PERMITTED USES IN THE ID-2 AND P ZONING 13 

DISTRICTS; CREATING ARTICLE 7, SECTION 7.22.00, TO 14 

ESTABLISH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS RELATED TO THE 15 

CONTROL, COLLECTION, AND TREATMENT OF LEACHATE BY 16 

CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND WASTE DIVERSION 17 

FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 18 

PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 19 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 20 

 21 

 WHEREAS, on July 25, 2013, the Escambia County Board of County 22 

Commissioners adopted a temporary moratorium on the issuance of permits or 23 

development orders for certain recycling and waste diversion facilities; and 24 

 25 

 WHEREAS, in adopting the temporary moratorium, the Board sought to provide 26 

its staff with the opportunity to study the issue of regulating these facilities and to 27 

propose standards relating to the location and performance of these facilities; and 28 

 29 

 WHEREAS, Escambia County staff has accordingly developed definitions, 30 

locational criteria, and performance standards to protect the public health, safety, and 31 

welfare and to promote the efficient and safe operation of these facilities. 32 

 33 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 34 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 35 

 36 

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS. 37 

 38 

 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 39 

Code of Escambia County, Article 3, Definitions, Section 3.02.00 is hereby amended as 40 

follows: 41 

 42 

 Processing.  Any technique designed to change the physical, chemical, or 43 

biological character or composition of any solid waste so as to render it safe for 44 

transport; amenable to recovery, storage, or recycling; safe for disposal; or reduced in 45 

volume or concentration. 46 
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 1 

 Recovered materials.  Metal, paper, glass, plastic, textile, or rubber materials that 2 

have known recycling potential, can be feasibly recycled, and have been diverted and 3 

source separated or have been removed from the solid waste stream for sale, use, or 4 

reuse as raw materials, whether or not the materials require subsequent processing or 5 

separation from each other, but the term does not include materials destined for any 6 

use that constitutes disposal.  Recovered materials as described in this subsection are 7 

not solid waste. 8 

 9 

 Recovered materials processing facility (RMPF).  A facility engaged solely in the 10 

storage, processing, resale, or reuse of recovered materials.  11 

 12 

 Recycling.  Any process by which solid waste, or materials that would otherwise 13 

become solid waste, are collected, separated, or processed and reused or returned to 14 

use in the form of raw materials or products. 15 

 16 

 Resource recovery.  The process of recovering materials or energy from solid 17 

waste, excluding those materials or solid waste under the control of the Nuclear 18 

Regulatory Commission. 19 

 20 

 Volume reduction plant.  Incinerators, pulverizers, compactors, shredding and 21 

baling plants, composting plants, and other plants that accept and process solid waste 22 

for recycling or disposal. 23 

 24 

SECTION 2.  ZONING AND USES. 25 

 26 

 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 27 

Code of Escambia County, Article 6, Zoning Districts, Section 6.05.00, District 28 

Regulations, is hereby amended as follows: 29 

 30 

6.05.16. C-2 General commercial and light manufacturing district (cumulative). 31 

 32 

 C.  Conditional uses. 33 

 34 

  6. 7.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 35 

operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 36 

 37 

6.05.17. ID-CP commerce park, district (cumulative). 38 

 39 

 C.  Conditional uses. 40 

 41 

  3.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 42 

operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 43 

 44 

 45 

 46 
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6.05.18. ID-1 light industrial district (cumulative) (no residential uses allowed). 1 

 2 

 C.  Conditional uses. 3 

 4 

  4.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 5 

operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 6 

 7 

 8 

6.05.19. ID-2 general industrial district (noncumulative). 9 

 10 

 B.  Permitted uses. 11 

 12 

 14.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and operations, 13 

resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 14 

 15 

 14.  15.  Other uses similar to those listed herein. Recommendations on other 16 

permitted uses shall be made by the planning board (LPA) and based on an application 17 

for such other use. Final determination shall be made by the BCC upon receipt of the 18 

planning board's (LPA's) recommendation. 19 

 15.  16.  Cemeteries. 20 

 16.  17.  Family cemeteries. 21 

 17.  18.  Funeral establishments. 22 

 18.  19.  Cinerators, cremation services, direct disposal establishments. 23 

 24 

6.05.32. P—Public district. 25 

 26 

 A.  Intent and purpose of district.  Publicly owned parcels for educational and 27 

correctional facilities and purposes, other public institutional uses, borrow pits and 28 

associated reclamation activities, materials recovery facilities, collection and/or 29 

processing of solid waste, and sanitary landfills, recovered materials processing 30 

facilities, recycling facilities and operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, 31 

and volume reduction plants. Conversion of suitable public lands for business or 32 

industrial park development is allowed. Refer to article 11 for uses, heights and 33 

densities allowed in P, public districts located in the Airport/Airfield Environs.  34 

 35 

SECTION 3.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 36 

 37 

 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 38 

Code of Escambia County, Article 7, Performance Standards, Section 7.22.00, is 39 

hereby established as follows: 40 

 41 

7.223.00. – Recycling and waste diversion facilities. 42 

 43 

 Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and operations, 44 

resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants shall conform 45 

to all performance standards governing the containment, collection, and treatment of 46 
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leachate pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, and any other applicable 1 

regulations promulgated by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  The 2 

violation of any such statute or rule governing leachate under Chapter 403, Florida 3 

Statutes, shall also constitute a violation of this land development code enforceable by 4 

the Escambia County Office of Environmental Code Enforcement. 5 

 6 

SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY. 7 

 8 

 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 9 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 10 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 11 

 12 

SECTION 5.  INCLUSION IN CODE. 13 

 14 

 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 15 

this Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2011); and that the 16 

sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-17 

lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 18 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 19 

 20 

SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 21 

 22 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 23 

 24 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2014. 25 

 26 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 27 

 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 28 

  29 

      By: _______________________________ 30 

               Lumon J. May, Chairman 31 

 32 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             33 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 34 

 35 

  By: __________________________    36 

    Deputy Clerk  37 

(SEAL) 38 
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 1 

ENACTED: 2 

 3 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    4 

 5 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

   13 

 14 

  15 

  16 

  17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

   24 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-_____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.02.00, TO DEFINE 
CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND WASTE DIVERSION 
FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 
6.05.00, BY AUTHORIZING CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND 
WASTE DIVERSION FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS AS 
CONDITIONAL USES IN THE C-2, ID-CP, AND ID-1 ZONING 
DISTRICTS AND AS PERMITTED USES IN THE ID-2 AND P ZONING 
DISTRICTS; CREATING ARTICLE 7, SECTION 7.22.00, TO 
ESTABLISH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS RELATED TO THE 
CONTROL, COLLECTION, AND TREATMENT OF LEACHATE BY 
CERTAIN TYPES OF RECYCLING AND WASTE DIVERSION 
FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, on July 25, 2013, the Escambia County Board of County 
Commissioners adopted a temporary moratorium on the issuance of permits or 
development orders for certain recycling and waste diversion facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in adopting the temporary moratorium, the Board sought to provide 
its staff with the opportunity to study the issue of regulating these facilities and to 
propose standards relating to the location and performance of these facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Escambia County staff has accordingly developed definitions, 
locational criteria, and performance standards to protect the public health, safety, and 
welfare and to promote the efficient and safe operation of these facilities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS. 
 
 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article 3, Definitions, Section 3.02.00 is hereby amended as 
follows: 
 
 Processing.  Any technique designed to change the physical, chemical, or 
biological character or composition of any solid waste so as to render it safe for 
transport; amenable to recovery, storage, or recycling; safe for disposal; or reduced in 
volume or concentration. 



 Recovered materials.  Metal, paper, glass, plastic, textile, or rubber materials that 
have known recycling potential, can be feasibly recycled, and have been diverted and 
source separated or have been removed from the solid waste stream for sale, use, or 
reuse as raw materials, whether or not the materials require subsequent processing or 
separation from each other, but the term does not include materials destined for any 
use that constitutes disposal.  Recovered materials as described in this subsection are 
not solid waste. 
 
 Recovered materials processing facility (RMPF).  A facility engaged solely in the 
storage, processing, resale, or reuse of recovered materials.  
 
 Recycling.  Any process by which solid waste, or materials that would otherwise 
become solid waste, are collected, separated, or processed and reused or returned to 
use in the form of raw materials or products. 
 
 Resource recovery.  The process of recovering materials or energy from solid 
waste, excluding those materials or solid waste under the control of the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission. 
 
 Volume reduction plant.  Incinerators, pulverizers, compactors, shredding and 
baling plants, composting plants, and other plants that accept and process solid waste 
for recycling or disposal. 
 
SECTION 2.  ZONING AND USES. 
 
 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article 6, Zoning Districts, Section 6.05.00, District 
Regulations, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
6.05.16. C-2 General commercial and light manufacturing district (cumulative). 
 
 C.  Conditional uses. 
 
  6. 7.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 
operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 
 
6.05.17. ID-CP commerce park, district (cumulative). 
 
 C.  Conditional uses. 
 
  3.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 
operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 
 
 
6.05.18. ID-1 light industrial district (cumulative) (no residential uses allowed). 
 



 C.  Conditional uses. 
 
  4.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and 
operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 
 
 
6.05.19. ID-2 general industrial district (noncumulative). 
 
 B.  Permitted uses. 
 
 14.  Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and operations, 
resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants. 
 
 14.  15.  Other uses similar to those listed herein. Recommendations on other 
permitted uses shall be made by the planning board (LPA) and based on an application 
for such other use. Final determination shall be made by the BCC upon receipt of the 
planning board's (LPA's) recommendation. 
 15.  16.  Cemeteries. 
 16.  17.  Family cemeteries. 
 17.  18.  Funeral establishments. 
 18.  19.  Cinerators, cremation services, direct disposal establishments. 
 
6.05.32. P—Public district. 
 
 A.  Intent and purpose of district.  Publicly owned parcels for educational and 
correctional facilities and purposes, other public institutional uses, borrow pits and 
associated reclamation activities, materials recovery facilities, collection and/or 
processing of solid waste, and sanitary landfills, recovered materials processing 
facilities, recycling facilities and operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, 
and volume reduction plants. Conversion of suitable public lands for business or 
industrial park development is allowed. Refer to article 11 for uses, heights and 
densities allowed in P, public districts located in the Airport/Airfield Environs.  
 
SECTION 3.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 
 
 Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article 7, Performance Standards, Section 7.22.00, is 
hereby established as follows: 
 
7.223.00. – Recycling and waste diversion facilities. 
 
 Recovered materials processing facilities, recycling facilities and operations, 
resource recovery facilities and operations, and volume reduction plants shall conform 
to all performance standards governing the containment, collection, and treatment of 
leachate pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, and any other applicable 
regulations promulgated by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  The 



violation of any such statute or rule governing leachate under Chapter 403, Florida 
Statutes, shall also constitute a violation of this land development code enforceable by 
the Escambia County Office of Environmental Code Enforcement. 
 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5.  INCLUSION IN CODE. 
 
 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 
this Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2011); and that the 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-
lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

  
      By: _______________________________ 

               Lumon J. May, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
  By: __________________________    
    Deputy Clerk  
(SEAL) 
 
ENACTED: 



 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
   



   
AI-6928     Growth Management Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Avigation Easement - Wal-Mart 2947 South Blue Angel Parkway
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Avigation Easement Approval for Wal-Mart at 2947 South Blue
Angel Parkway - Horace Jones, Development Services Interim Director

That the Board approve the Avigation Easement in and over the Wal-Mart property
situated at the intersection of South Blue Angel Parkway and Sorrento Road in the
Pleasant Grove Community and lying in Commission District 2.

A. Accept the Dedication by Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, of an Avigation Easement in and
over the Wal-Mart Property situated at the intersection of South Blue Angel Parkway and
Sorrento Road;  and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice-Chairman to execute an Avigation Easement. 

BACKGROUND:
The Wal-Mart Liquor Box, site plan at 2947 South Blue Angel Parkway was reviewed
and approved by the Development Review Committee on September 3, 2014. Wal-Mart
proposes to construct a Liquor Store addition to the existing Wal-Mart Store #3484. The
current site is zoned C-1, Commercial with a portion of the subject property lying within
the AIPD-2 Airfield Planning District. Future Land Use of the property is Commercial.
The addition will utilize existing stormwater management on-site. No impacts to wetlands
are proposed.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
This recommendation is consistent with previous practices of the County Attorney’s
Office. An Avigation Easement was reviewed and approved, as to form and legal
sufficiency, by Steve West on September 22, 2014.

PERSONNEL:
All work to be accomplished by current staff.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



LDC section 11.02.01.B.1 requires the dedication of an avigation easement as a
condition of development within an Airfield Influence Planning District (AIPD).

IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS:
Once the Avigation Easement has been signed by the Chairman or Vice Chairman, it
will be transmitted to the Clerk of the Courts Office for recording in the Public Records of
Escambia County, Florida.

COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES/PERSONS:
Staff has been in contact with the County Attorneys office.

Attachments
Avigation Easement
Location/Vicinity Map
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AI-6917     Growth Management Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Action Item - Construction of Docks and Piers On Right-of-Way
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Construction Of Docks And Piers On Right-Of-Way

That the Board review and approve the permitting of a dock on right-of-way that has
been dedicated to the public, but not yet opened, maintained, or otherwise accepted by
the County per LDC 7.05.00.C.12.g.

On August 8, 2013, the Board adopted Ordinance 2013-37 to establish a process to
obtain permits for construction of docks and piers on right-of-way that has been
dedicated to the public, but not yet opened, maintained, or otherwise accepted by the
County upon authorization by the Board of County Commissioners.

This change to LDC Article 7 was based upon the fact that there are many platted
subdivisions that dedicate waterfront right-of-way to the public and in many instances the
County has not accepted these dedications. Upland property owners often desire to
build docks, piers and similar structures on or across the area dedicated to the public.

BACKGROUND:
The submitted application has been reviewed by Development Services Department
staff and has been found to meet all of the criteria required for the issuance of this permit.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this recommended Board
action.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Certificate authorizing the permit.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This authorization shall not be construed as a vacation or acceptance of the dedicated
right-of-way.

Attachments
Beach Haven Cove Application
Beach Haven Cove Certificate



































 
 
 
 THE COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 
 PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCION OF A DOCK OR PIER ON RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 
At its October 9, 2014 public hearing, the Escambia County Board of County 
Commissioners approved the construction of a dock on right-of-way for the following 
location: 
 

Location: 3543 Beach Haven Cove Dr. 
Parcel Number: 02-3S-31-2100-100-002 
Subdivision: Beach Haven Cove Phase 1 PB16 PG 83/83A 
Applicant/Owner: Wilfredo & Josephine Lojo 

  
 

This authorization shall not be construed as a vacation or acceptance of the dedicated 
right-of-way. 
 
 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
by and through its duly authorized 

       Board of County Commissioners 
 

______________________________ 
Lumon J. May, Chairman 

ATTEST:       Pam Childers  
Clerk to the Court 

 
________________________ 
Deputy Clerk 

(SEAL) 
 
 



   
AI-6894     Growth Management Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Schedule of Public Hearings
From: Horace Jones, Interim Department Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

A. October 16, 2014

1. 9:10 a.m. - A Public Hearing - SSA 2014-02 3330 West Park Place

2. 9:11 a.m. - A Public Hearing - CPA 2014-02 Concerning the Review of an Ordinance
Amending Chapter 7 of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan 

B. November 6, 2014

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the official Zoning Map to include the following
Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on September 30, 2014.

Case No.: Z-2014-16
Address: 2840 Pine Forest Road
Property Reference No.: 38-1N-31-2301-000-000
Property Size: 12.23 (+/-) acres
From: VR-2 Villages Rural Residential District (one du/ 0.75 acre)
To: V-3 Villages Single-family Residential District (five du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
Commissioner District 5
Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Daniel and Rhonda Cobb, Owners

Attachments



No file(s) attached.



   
AI-6921     County Administrator's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Disposition of Property Request for Supervisor of Elections
From: David Stafford, Supervisor of Elections 
Organization: Escambia County Super. of Elections
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for the Office of the
Supervisor of Elections - David H. Stafford, Supervisor of Elections

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the Supervisor
of Elections Office, for property to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of, which
is listed on the Disposition Form with agency and reason stated.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County established policy for disposing of surplus or obsolete equipment. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with BCC policy B-1,2, Section II, Procedures for
Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments



Disposition of Property







   
AI-6911     County Administrator's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Florida Division of Forestry Annual Report
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Florida Forest Service Annual Report - Jack R. Brown, County
Administrator

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Florida Forest Service
Annual Report to the Escambia county Board of Commissioners for Fiscal Year
2013-2014, submitted by Adam Parden, Forest Area Supervisor, Division of Forestry.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Florida Forest Service Annual Report





FLORIDA FOREST SERVICE 
 
 

 
 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 
TO THE 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

 

Adam Parden, Forest Area Supervisor 
Cathy Hardin, Senior Forester 
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FLORIDA FOREST SERVICE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY ANNUAL REPORT 

FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 
(July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014) 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Fire Control/Emergency Response 
 
The Florida Forest Service is an emergency response state agency that provides 
incident response and assistance to all forms of emergency response incidents, 
including wildfires, floods, exotic pest eradication, and hurricanes.  We have 
mutual aid agreements with a number of different agencies, including Escambia 
County Fire Rescue, Navy Fire Rescue, and the City of Pensacola Fire 
Department.  Tactical radio channels are in place with each of our mutual aid 
partners to provide clear communication on an emergency scene. 
 
The Florida Forest Service currently has two Type 6 fire engines, 3 Tractor/Plow 
fire units, and one heavy dozer assigned to Escambia County.  Those fire units are 
strategically located throughout the county during periods of high fire danger.  
This allows us to provide for quick response time to an incident.  Air resources, 
including reconnaissance airplanes and fire helicopters, are also available for our 
use during most of the year.  These resources are located outside the county and 
must be ordered by forest service personnel. 
 
Our fire investigations are handled by the Florida Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services Law Enforcement Department.  The fire investigators that 
work our fires in Escambia County are based out of Milton and are readily 
available for assistance. 
 
For Fiscal year 2013-14, the Florida Forest Service responded to 29 wildfires in 
Escambia County.  As a result, 91 acres were burned.  A total of 480 burning 
authorizations were issued, covering 13,377 acres and 490 piles. 

 
During the year, forest service employees presented fire prevention displays and 
programs to an estimated 4,815 citizens of Escambia County. Twenty landowners 
were assisted by establishing pre-suppression firelines and prescribed burning. 
 
Wildland fire training was offered to the local volunteer fire departments. 
Volunteer fire Departments were offered assistance through federal grants. 
 
Florida Forest Service personnel assigned to Escambia County provided wildfire 
assistance to numerous fires out of district during this past fiscal year; including 
fires in Florida, Oregon, California, and Utah. 
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Fire Control Program 
 
Wildfire activity this past year was well below average with 29 wildfires burning 
91 acres. The total acreage was well below the 360 acres from last year. The 
reason for the decrease in acreage was because of the wet conditions we 
experienced last fall through this spring.  
 
To help minimize the fire problem in the county, we continue to maintain an 
aggressive fire prevention campaign. This basically consists of both an ongoing 
educational program and an active landowner assistance policy. This year a total 
of 21 fire prevention programs were presented to over 4,815 people. Some of our 
education programs consist of teaming with the Escambia County Sheriff’s Office 
in their Summer Youth Camps. We also visited numerous schools throughout the 
county, including Westgate School, Northview High School, Navy Point 
Elementary, Montclair Elementary, and Molino Park Elementary.  We also 
assisted 20 landowners with either pre-suppression firelines or prescribed 
burning, protecting a total of 893 acres. 
 
We continue to work closely with all of the volunteer and paid fire departments. 
This assistance is in the form of training and funding. This past year, the Florida 
Forest Service offered two wildland fire classes.  Basic Wildland Fire 
Management (S-130/190) was offered at Molino Fire Department.  Fire 
Operations in the Wildland/Urban Interface (S-215) was offered at Pleasant 
Grove Fire Department.   We also participated with the Molino Fire Department 
on their open house event. 
 
The Florida Forest Service continues to offer the Volunteer Fire Assistance 
Program statewide.  The Volunteer Fire Assistance Program provides financial, 
technical, and other assistance to rural volunteer fire departments in Florida.  
The Molino Volunteer Fire Department received a matching 50-50% grant to 
purchase a water pumper unit for their brush engine in just the past few years. 
 
The Wildfire Mitigation Program is an ongoing project in the urban interface 
areas of the county. We identify areas where there is a threat to property in the 
event of a wildland fire. An agreement is signed between the landowner and the 
Florida Forest Service. The forest service then chooses to establish permanent 
firebreaks and/or do a prescribed burn to reduce the fuels and hazards to 
mitigate the chance of a wildfire. This past year, mitigation was done in the 
communities of Myrtle Grove, Molino, Pensacola, Cantonment, Beulah, Pine 
Forest, and Ferry Pass.  
 
Some of our larger ongoing mitigation projects are the University of West 
Florida, Big Lagoon State Park, Roy Hyatt Environmental Center, Pensacola 
International Airport, and the Jones Swamp Nature Preserve. 
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We are in the process of adding the new 4-H property in Molino into our 
program.  The Langley Bell 4-H property was in our mitigation program for many 
years and we will continue that cooperation with the Escambia County Extension 
Service with the new 4-H property. 
 
This program will continue in the future as new areas will be identified and 
treated. The work is being done by Forest Service personnel and private 
contractors under a federal grant, at no cost to any private landowner. 
 
The use of fire as a tool in prescribed burning, disease control, debris burning 
and other areas is still very popular in the county. The following tables give a 
breakdown of the different types of burning done in the county and also the types 
of wildfires in the past year. 
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Fires by Causes 
Blackwater Forestry Center 

07/01/2013 through 06/30/2014 
Escambia 

Cause Fires Percent Acres Percent 

Campfire 0 0 0.0 0 

Children 2 6.90 5.3 5.82 

Debris Burn* 0 0 0.0 0 

Debris Burn--Auth--Broadcast/Acreage 2 6.90 8.0 8.78 

Debris Burn--Auth--Piles 0 0 0.0 0 

Debris Burn--Auth--Yard Trash 6 20.69 17.9 19.65 

Debris Burn--Nonauth--Broadcast/Acreage 0 0 0.0 0 

Debris Burn--Nonauth--Piles 2 6.90 13.0 14.27 

Debris Burn--Nonauth--Yard Trash 0 0 0.0 0 

Equipment use* 0 0 0.0 0 

Equipment--Agriculture 1 3.45 0.5 0.55 

Equipment--Logging 0 0 0.0 0 

Equipment--Recreation 0 0 0.0 0 

Equipment--Transportation 2 6.90 1.9 2.09 

Incendiary 7 24.14 28.1 30.85 

Lightning 0 0 0.0 0 

Miscellaneous --Breakout 0 0 0.0 0 

Miscellaneous --Electric Fence 0 0 0.0 0 

Miscellaneous --Fireworks 1 3.45 1.0 1.10 

Miscellaneous --Power Lines 0 0 0.0 0 

Miscellaneous --Structure 0 0 0.0 0 

Miscellaneous--Other 2 6.90 12.5 13.72 

Railroad 0 0 0.0 0 

Smoking 0 0 0.0 0 

Unknown 4 13.79 2.9 3.18 

Total 29 
 

91.1 
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Burning Authorizations Summary 
Blackwater Forestry Center 

7/1/2013 through 6/30/2014 

Escambia 

Burn Type 
Authorized 

Fires 
Authorized 

Acres 
Authorized 

Piles 

Agricultural--Pasture  52 579 47 

Agricultural--Range management 13 0 49 

Agricultural--Stubble (post harvest) 2 195 0 

Agricultural--Sugarcane 0 0 0 

Agriculture--Citrus 0 0 0 

Land clearing--Non-residential--With 

ACI 
46 0 47 

Land clearing--Non-residential--

Without ACI 
72 0 127 

Land clearing--Residential--With ACI 1 0 1 

Land clearing--Residential--Without 

ACI  
135 50 219 

Silvicultural--Disease control 0 0 0 

Silvicultural--Ecological 89 6,366 0 

Silvicultural--Hazard removal 56 4,951 0 

Silvicultural--Other 0 0 0 

Silvicultural--Prior to seed 1 225 0 

Silvicultural--Site preparation 13 1,011 0 

Silvicultural--Wildlife 0 0 0 

Total 480 13,377 490 
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FLORIDA FOREST SERVICE 
COOPERATIVE FORESTRY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

ANNUAL REPORT 
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

 

SUMMARY 
 
 In Escambia County, approximately 56% of land is forested (242,804 
acres) and about 144,377 acres are owned by individuals and non-industrial 
corporations.  Good forest management improves water quality, retains soil, 
helps wildlife, and contributes to the local economy by ensuring a continuing 
supply of raw materials for area mills.  IMPLAN 2012, provided by Dr Alan Hodges 
at UF Food and Resource Economics Department, found that Escambia County’s 
forestland directly contributes $361 million to the local economy and provides 
567 jobs.  Forestry’s indirect impacts in the region add an additional $856 million 
and 4,300 jobs.   
 

The Cooperative Forestry Assistance program exists to promote sound 
forest management to ensure the continued environmental and economic 
viability of Florida’s forest resources.  County Foresters provide technical 
assistance to landowners, educate the public, and advise local governments on 
forestry matters.   The state Florida Forest Service provides a professional 
forester, office, vehicle, equipment, and supplies.  The annual cost to Escambia 
County is $6,000.   
 
 In Escambia County, the County Forester provides free consultation and 
technical services to the public.  The forester evaluates timber stands, diagnoses 
disease and insect problems in timber and urban trees, writes forest management 
plans, and advises local governments on forestry matters.  The forester is 
available to assist in all parts of the county; however, the majority of the 
assistance was in the rural parts of the county for the 2013-2014 fiscal year.   
 
 The county forester frequently speaks at schools and adult programs.  In 
the 2013-2014 fiscal year, educational programs at schools and other venues 
directly reached an estimated 911 people.   
   

The county forester also receives training in forest land management and 
wildland fire control.  The forester occasionally assists forest rangers with 
prescribed burning for private landowners in Escambia County and on state 
lands. The forester may also assist local forest rangers in doing on-site 
inspections, answering citizen concerns about smoke, prescribed burning, 
wildfire mitigation and other issues.  The county forester may also assist in 
emergency response for wildfires, hurricanes, or other disasters.   
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COOPERATIVE FORESTRY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS, 2013-2014 
 
Technical Assistance to Forest Landowners 
 

The County Forester is a source of information for landowners wanting to 
improve the management of their forestlands.  The forester frequently receives 
requests for assistance from landowners with specific concerns, such as insect 
problems, timber sale advice, and reforestation projects.   

 
In the 2013-2014 fiscal years, the forester handled 115 requests for 

assistance.  51 were requests for information that were completed during an office 
visit, over the phone, via e-mail, or with a letter and appropriate literature. The 
forester made 64 landowner assistance visits to rural and urban properties. 

 
 

TYPE OF ASSISTS NUMBER OF 
NEW PLANS 

ACRES 

Management Plans   
Forest Stewardship Plans 0 0 
General Forest Management Plans 1 40 
Prescribed Burn Plans 2 47 
Cost-Share Plans 1 113 
Tree Farm & Stewardship Certification 1 36 
                                                           TOTAL 5 236 
   
   
Prescribed Burning Assists 3 1,072 
   
                                          GRAND TOTAL 8 1,308 
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Forest Stewardship Program 
 

The Forest Stewardship Program is the premier program to promote 
exemplary forest management for multiple resources.  County foresters 
collaborate with wildlife biologists from the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission and other experts, as needed, to write a 
comprehensive management plan tailored to achieve the landowner’s objectives.   
  
 There were 2 Stewardship landowners in Escambia County with 218 acres 
who were newly certified this past year. 
 

Federal and Private Cost-Share Programs 
 

The USDA Farm Service Agency and the Natural Resources Conservation 
Service administer programs to provide financial assistance to forest landowners 
and farmers through cost-sharing.  Under these programs, landowners and the 
federal government share the cost of practices to establish tree cover for soil, 
water, and wildlife conservation.  The Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) 
assists farmers in converting row crops and pasture to forests.  The 
Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) primarily funds farm 
pollution control, but can also involve forestry.  The Florida Forest Service 
administers the Southern Pine Beetle Prevention program which provides cost-
sharing for timber thinning, prescribed burning, and longleaf pine seedling 
planting.   Most of these programs have seen reduced enrollment in the last few 
years as funds have been reduced.   
 

During 2013-2014, 1 Southern Pine Beetle cost share contract was 
approved.  The County Forester assisted with 19 CRP contracts for landowners 
who were to receive federal assistance on their property.   

 
 
Southern Pine Beetle 

 
The Florida Forest Service inspects forests for outbreaks of the southern 

pine beetle, which has infrequent population spikes that can cause widespread 
damage to pines.  Throughout the fall, winter, and spring, the county forester 
monitored bark beetle activity throughout the county.  Through June, the 
southern pine beetle was not active. An aerial SPB flight was conducted over the 
county with no SPB activity found.  
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Other Landowner Visits 
 

Other technical assistance includes all other cases where a visit was made 
by the County Forester without any cost-share or other program.   This includes 
calls for advice on timber sales.  The county forester does not act as a landowner’s 
agent in timber sales, but can advise the landowner in how to conduct a sale, 
provide lists of timber buyers and loggers, and help the landowner locate a 
private consulting forester. 

 
The forester also makes forest health inspections for landowners in the 

county.  This ranges from possible pine beetle infestation in a large tract of 
timber to yard tree inspections.  During 2013-2014, the forester conducted 6 
forest health inspections in Escambia County.   

 
  

Information And Education 
 
 The County Forester participated in 1 adult program and 3 children’s 
programs between July 2013 and June 2014.   
 

 Participated in Northview High School’s FFA Food for America program.  

 Actively involved in Northview High School FFA. 

 Pensacola and the unified command of Pensacola Naval Complex continue 
to receive recognition as Tree City USA through the National Arbor Day 
Foundation’s program. 

 Assisted with Regional FFA competition. 

 Conducted Arbor Day Tree planting at Northview High School and at Tate 
High School. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



   
AI-6831     County Administrator's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Pam S. Allen, Administrative Assistant 
Organization: Tax Collector of Escambia County
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the Escambia County
Tax Collector's Office - Janet Holley, CFC, Escambia County Tax Collector 

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms for the
Escambia County Tax Collector's Office, for property which is described and listed on
the Disposition Forms, with reason for disposition stated.  The listed items on the first
two RFDs have been found to be of no further usefulness to the County/Tax Collector,
as a result of the flood in April 2014 and have been disposed of by an independent
contractor after approval by Risk Management; thus, it is requested that the items be
removed from the Tax Collector's Fixed Assets Inventory for the Warrington location. 
The item on the third RFD is outdated and found to be of no further usefulness to the
County/Tax Collector.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County policy establishes the procedures for disposing of surplus or obsolete
equipment. The surplus property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of
Property has been checked, declared to be obsolete and/or of no use to the Tax
Collector/County, and suitable to be auctioned or properly disposed.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1,2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
RFDs









   
AI-6909     County Administrator's Report      10. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property
From: Danielle Horton, Senior Information Systems Tech. 
Organization: Escambia County Property Appraiser
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Request for Disposition of Property for the Office of the
Escambia County Property Appraiser - Chris Jones, Property Appraiser

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the Property
Appraiser's Office, for the property which is described and listed on the Disposition
Form, with reason for disposition stated.  The listed items have been found to be of no
further usefulness to the County; thus, it is requested that they be auctioned as surplus
or properly disposed of.

BACKGROUND:
Equipment is obsolete.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



Attachments
Property Appraiser





   
AI-6923     County Administrator's Report      10. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Disposition of Property
From: Darlene Howell, Library Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the West Florida
Public Library - Darlene Howell, Library Administrator

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the West
Florida Public Library, for all items described and listed on the Request Form, with
reason for disposition stated.  The items were disposed of during the renovation and
construction of the Pensacola Public Library in 2012.

BACKGROUND:
During the renovation and construction of the Pensacola Public Library and under the
City of Pensacola's administration, these item were disposed of by the contractor per the
construction contract. This was not reflected in the Property Inventory list provided to
Escambia County by the City of Pensacola.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section H,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board and document execution, the West Florida Public Library



Upon approval by the Board and document execution, the West Florida Public Library
will return the signed Disposition Form to the Clerk of the Circuit Court. The Clerk's
Office will remove the equipment from the West Florida Public Library's inventory.

Attachments
WFPL Disposition of Property Request Form



REQUEST FOR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

TO: Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Department
FROM: Disposing Department: Library

Linda McVoy

COST CENTER NO: 110501

DATE: 9/19/2014
Property Custodian (PRINT FULL NAME)

Property Custodian (Signature): JCt Phone No: ' 5O 3'

REQUEST THE FOLLOWING 1TEM(S) TO BE DISPOSED:
TAG

(Y/N)
PROPERTY
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION OF ITEM

Please see attached list

SERIAL NUMBER MODEL YEAR CONDITION

Disposal Comments: These items were disposed while undergoing renovation and construction prior to the transition to County management

Felix HotardINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT Technician):

Print Name

Conditions: Dispose-Good Condition-Unusable for BOCC

Dispose-Bad Condition-Send for recycling-Unusable

Computer is Ready for Disposition

<.-// /Date: <// '/ /J_ Information Technology Technician Signature:

Date: ______^^^_
'—T 'FROM: Escambia County Department Director (Signature): (U2

Director (Print Name): Darlene Howell

RECOMMENDATION:

TO: Board of County Commissioners

Meeting Date:

Approved by the County Commission and Recorded in the Minutes of:
Parn Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller

By (Deputy Clerk)

This Equipment Has Been Auctioned / Sold

by:
Print Name Signature Date

Properly Tag Returned to Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Department

Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Signature of Receipt Date

Properly Custodian, please complete applicable portions of disposition form. Sec Disposal process charts for direction. rev. sh 1 1 . 1 9 . 1 3



RD: Renovation Disposal List

Inventory

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

Asset #

004051

003110

OOS328

000073

008457

011434

005327

004023

035823

001999

004049

004032

008568

004037

004042

004219

000064

010229

004642

002026

035758

010209

004576

011433

004038

004039

004040

004041

004203

004232

010716

000070

000062

003048

005385

004629

009775

Description
ULTRFLEX WORKSTATION

BOOK & CATALOG DISPLAYERS

ALARM SYSTEM

BOOKCASES

TEXWOOD OAK CD MODULAR DISPUY

SKI PROJECTOR W/LENS&HARDWARE

CURB SIDE BOOK RETURN CART

WORKSTATION 3 POSmON-FURNITU

PATRIOT GOLD AUTO FOCUS CCTV/20" TV

SHELVING-2-12FTSECT

CORNER UNIT

CORNER UNIT

DELL LATITUDE CPIA PENTIUM

3 POSITION CHAIR

3 POSITION CHAIR

MULTI PURPOSE CORNER UNIT

BOOKCASES

DBL SIDED SHELVING

FAX MACHINE

BOOKDROP W/2 CARTS (NORTHEAST)

CKL 120-3 10 TON AIR CONDITION UNIT

BBL SIDED SHELVING

LASERJET

AUDIO SYSTEM INSTALLED

DESK MODULE

DESK MODULE

CHECK OUT DESK

CHECK OUT DESK

DESK MODULE

DESK MODULE

CORRY MICROFILM CABINET

BOOKCASES

FILE CABINET

SIGN SYSTEM / MAIN & BRANCH LI

BASE UNIT W/SHELVES

VERTICAL ROLL FILM CABINET

LASERJET 4050TTJ PRINTER

Asset Class
hvyequip-g

hvyequtp-g

hvyequtp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

electron-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

computr-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequ!p-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

equlp-g

hvyequlp-g

computr-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

computr-tgase

Purchase
Date
5/1/1993

4/1/1990

9/1/1995

9/1/1974

4/1/1999

2/1/2004

9/1/1995

5/1/1993

9/1/2006

9/1/1983

5/1/1993

2/1/1993

9/1/1999

2/1/1993

2/1/1993

10/1/1993

9/1/1974

9/1/2001

11/1/1994

9/1/1983

7/1/2006

8/1/2001

9/1/1994

2/1/2004

2/1/1993

2/1/1993

2/1/1993

2/1/1993

10/1/1993

10/1/1993

12/1/2002

9/1/1974

9/1/1974

9/1/1989

9/1/1995

10/1/1994

9?I/£000

Useful
Life

1

5

5

0

1

5

5

1

5

0

1

5

1

5

5

5

0

1

5

0

5

1

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

0

0

10

5

5

1

Purchase
Amount

4,558.13

4,025.00

3,868.00

3,439.67

3,237.72

3,133.50

2,879.95

2,612.61

2,595.00

2,468.00

2,466.54

2,466.53

2,444.00

2,440.35

2,440.35

2,409,83

2,381.31

1,995.85

1,981.00

1,980.98

1,978.00

1,914.85

1,886.00

1,745.40

1,730.22

1,730.22

1,730.22

1,730.22

1,677.75

1,677.75

1,644.71

1,600.00

1,500.00

1,484.00

1,452.60

1,428.30

1,403.00

Description/User Information

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC



Inventory

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

RD

Asset*
007896

010008

008844

008845

008870

001778

001754

010285

010284

004632

008901

007810

002061

004229

004230

004231

004050

004031

010717

010722

010228

000063

010293

010295

010299

010004

010006

010050

Description
BOOK RETURN

DELL OPTIPLEX PC

HP LASERJET PRINTER

HP LASERJET PRINTER

HP LASERJET 4Q50TN PRINTER

BOOKSTACK SECTIONS 5

SHELVING, DBL FACE

BOOK RETURN CARTS

BOOK RETURN CARTS

ROLL FILM OVERFILE CABINET

HP LASERJET 4Q50TN PRINTER

CD DISPLAY STARTER

SHELF UNIT

INDEX TABLE

INDEX TABLE

INDEX TABLE

PATRON TRANSACTION STATION

TRANSACTION STATION

TEXWOOD CD/DVD DISPLAY

TEXWOOD OAK CD/DVD DISPLAY

4-TOWER DISP W/5 SHELVES

BOOKCASES

DELL COMPUTER GX150 DESKTOP

DELL COMPUTER GX150 DESKTOP

DELL COMPUTER GX150 DESKTOP

DELL COMPUTER DESKTOP

DELL COMPUTER DESKTOP

DELL COMPUTER DESKTOP

Asset Class

hv^W5Sl4 1

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

computr-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequip-g

hvyequlp-g

hvyequip-g

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

computr-g

Purchase

Date

ifflof

6/1/2001

2/1/2000

2/1/2000

2/1/2000

9/1/1982

9/1/1982

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

10/1/1994

2/1/2000

5/1/1998

10/1/1995

10/1/1993

10/1/1993

10/1/1993

5/1/1993

2/1/1993

12/1/2002

1/1/2003

9/1/2001

9/1/1974

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

9/1/2001

Useful
Life

5

1

1

1

1

10

0

1

1

5

1

5

5

5

5

5

1

5

5

5

1

0

1

1

1

1

1

1

Purchase
Amount

1,396.45

1,369.90

1,306.00

1,306.00

1,306.00

1,298.12

1,295.29

1,261.05

1,261.04

1,258.79

1,258.00

1,249.97

1,236.50

1,212.38

1,212.38

1,212.38

1,193.07

1,193.06

1,162.46

1,162.46

1,159,00

1,058.36

1,047.00

1,047.00

1,047.00

1,015.00

1,015.00

1,015.00

Description/User Information

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Pending BCC

Page 2 of 2



   
AI-6880     County Administrator's Report      10. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: United Way of Escambia County - "Day of Caring" - October 10, 2014
From: Thomas Turner, Department Director 
Organization: Human Resources
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the United Way of Escambia County "Day of Caring" on October
10, 2014 - Thomas Turner, Human Resources Department Director

That the Board support the annual "Day of Caring," sponsored by the United Way of
Escambia County, as a public purpose, thereby authorizing a maximum of eight hours
Administrative Leave, with pay, on October 10, 2014, for employees who voluntarily
participate in this event, and extend Worker's Compensation coverage to County
employees involved in this event.

BACKGROUND:
United Way's Day of Caring has become Escambia County's premier "hands-on"
opportunity to help people and community service agencies. This event brings people
from all segments of the business, government, and military communities together to
peform needed volunteer projects at local non-profit organizations. Volunteers will do a
variety of tasks for those most in need of our community. Each year, many companies,
governmental agencies and the military allow their employees this opportunity to help the
community and complete numerous projects at United Way funded agencies.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Any employee participating in this activity is already included in the current budget of
their respective divisions. In lieu of the employee utilizing annual leave, the hours
involved in the "Day of Caring" would be reported as administrative leave.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
Division managers will determine employee participation considering the workload of



Division managers will determine employee participation considering the workload of
their divisions and staffing requirements.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Should the Board authorize administrative leave for this activity, it will be in accordance
with other categorical areas giving service to the public and the community.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
County employee participation will be coordinated with the United Way "Day of Caring"
Committee and will be the responsibility of the Event Coordinator. Employee
participation will be documented and confirmation will be provided to the respective
divisions for payroll purposes.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-6867     County Administrator's Report      10. 7.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Acceptance of Quitclaim Deed from Bellview Volunteer Firemen's

Association, Inc.
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director 
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of a Quitclaim Deed from Bellview Volunteer
Firemen's Association, Incorporated - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the acceptance of the Quitclaim
Deed from Bellview Volunteer Firemen's Association, Incorporated:

A. Accept the Quitclaim Deed from the Bellview Volunteer Firemen's Association;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Deed and any other documents necessary to
complete the transaction; and

C. Authorize payment of the incidental expenses associated with recording the Deed in
the Public Records.

BACKGROUND:
In 1979, the County conveyed property to Bellview Volunteer Firemen's Association, Inc. 
The Deed included a reverter clause so that the property would automatically revest with
the County if the Association stopped using it for firefighting purposes.  The building is
no longer used as a fire station and this Quit Claim Deed will revest the property to the
County.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Only incidental expenses associated with recording the deed in public records.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney Stephen G. West drafted the Deed and approved the
document as to form and legal sufficiency on September 16, 2014.

PERSONNEL:



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Acceptance of Deeds requires approval by the Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Once approved the County Attorney's Office will execute the required documents.

Attachments
Completed Maywood Deed











   
AI-6800     County Administrator's Report      10. 8.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: EMS Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director 
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity for the
Provision of Advanced Life Support and/or Basic Life Support Services in Escambia County,
Florida - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning Certificates of Public Convenience
and Necessity:

A. Approve the issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for
provision of Advanced Life Support and/or Basic Life Support services in Escambia
County, Florida, with noted limitations, to Atmore Ambulance, Inc., Escambia County
Public Safety Department, Lifeguard Ambulance Service of Florida, LLC, Rocky
Mountain Holdings, LLC, dba Air Methods Corporation (formerly Baptist Hospital
LifeFlight), and Sacred Heart Children’s Hospital, effective January 1, 2015, through
December 31, 2015; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Certificate of Public Convenience and
Necessity for each Agency.

BACKGROUND:
In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 401 and County Ordinance 2009-37,
emergency medical service providers in Escambia County are required to obtain a
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity from the Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners prior to providing Advanced Life Support (ALS) or Basic Life
Support (BLS) service.  Atmore Ambulance Service, Inc., Escambia County Public
Safety Department, Lifeguard Ambulance Service of Florida, LLC, Rocky Mountain
Holdings, LLC, dba Air Methods Corporation (formerly Baptist Hospital LifeFlight), and
Sacred Heart Children’s Hospital NeoNatal and Pediatric Transport Van currently hold a
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity and have requested
renewal.  Ordinance 2009-37 authorizes the Board to issue renewals of the certificates
when such are found to be of public convenience and necessity.   



Following are descriptions of the five providers, the unique service each offers which
provides public convenience and necessity, and their coverage area within the county:

1.  Atmore Ambulance, Inc. provides ALS services to the portions of Escambia County
served by the Davisville and Walnut Hill telephone extensions.  It also provides BLS
non-emergency transports to all of Escambia County. 

2.  Escambia County Public Safety Department provides ALS ground response to the
entire County to include all ALS and BLS transfers.

3.  Lifeguard Ambulance Service of Florida, LLC provides ambulance ground
transportation for patients between their aircraft and Pensacola hospitals, as well as
provides out-of-county ambulance transports in support of its air operations. It also
provides BLS non-emergency transports to all of Escambia County. 

4.  Rocky Mountain Holdins, LLC dba air Methods Corporation provides ALS air
response transportation to the entire area of Escambia County. Air Methods  is a support
agency to Escambia County Public Safety/EMS and is primarily used for rapid response
and transportation of critically ill or injured patients.

5. Sacred Heart Children’s Hospital provides ALS response and transportation of
critically ill neonatal (newborn infants) and pediatric cases in the entire area of Escambia
County.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 401 and County
Ordinance 2009-37.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
CONs

















   
AI-6918     County Administrator's Report      10. 9.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: 9:11 a.m. Public Hearing Request - Legacy Oaks Subdivision Street

Lighting MSBU 
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing for the Legacy
Oaks Subdivision Street Lighting Municipal Services Benefit Unit - Amy Lovoy, Management and
Budget Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on October 16, 2014,
at 9:11 a.m., to consider adoption of an Ordinance creating the Legacy Oaks Subdivision
Street Lighting Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU).

BACKGROUND:
The property owners in Legacy Oaks Subdivision have submitted a petition requesting
the creation of a street lighting MSBU.  The petition is sufficient to meet the MSBU
Guidelines and Procedures because greater than fifty-five percent of property owners
signed in approval.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board must approve the scheduling of public hearings.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The property owners will be notified of the date, time and place of the public hearing by



The property owners will be notified of the date, time and place of the public hearing by
mail and by advertisement in the Pensacola News Journal.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-6962     County Administrator's Report      10. 10.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Request for Disposition of Property for the 
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Property for the County
Administrator's Office - Jack R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board approve the three Request for Disposition of Property Forms for the
County Administrator's Office, for property which is described and listed on the
Disposition Forms, with reason for disposition stated.  The listed items have been found
to be of no further usefulness to the County Administrator's Office; thus it is requested
that they be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



Attachments
Disposition Forms









   
AI-6864     County Administrator's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: State-Funded Subgrant Agreement, Contract Number

15-CP-11-01-27-01-XXX
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director 
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the State-Funded Agreement to Update the Hazardous Materials
Facility Analysis Data - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the State-Funded Subgrant
Agreement, Contract Number 15-CP-11-01-27-01-XXX:

A. Approve the State-Funded Subgrant Agreement between the State of Florida, Division
of Emergency Management, and Escambia County, providing performance-based
funding to the Escambia County Division of Emergency Management, in the amount up
to $9,865, to update the Hazardous Materials Facility Analysis Data, for the period
ending June 30, 2015; and

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Subgrant Agreement and all
related documents as required to implement this Subgrant.

The County Attorney's Office has requested that the Board be made aware of
the following language within the Agreement:

Section (19) Mandated Conditions, sub-section (b), that "This Agreement shall
be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue for any action arising
out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County."

[Funding:  Fund 110, Other Grants and Projects, Cost Center 330323] 

BACKGROUND:
The State of Florida Division of Emergency Management (FDEM) contracts with



The State of Florida Division of Emergency Management (FDEM) contracts with
Escambia County each year to update the local Hazardous Materials Site-Specific
Analysis for facilities that use, store, and/or manufacture hazardous materials.  Upon
approval of this Subgrant Agreement,  the Escambia County Division of Emergency
Management will be reimbursed up to $9,865 for providing contract deliverables in the
effort to update this data by June 30, 2015.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
State funds are being provided in an amount up to $9,865 with no local match
requirement, administrative expenses are not authorized.  Funds for this grant will be
identified in Fund 110, Other Grants and Projects, Cost Center 330323.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
 Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has certified that this Subgrant Agreement is
approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board of County Commissioners' policies require grant contracts be approved by it. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Coordination of this Subgrant will be between FDEM and Escambia County Division of
Emergency Management, along with site inspections coordinated with local hazardous
materials facilities. 

Attachments
HAZMAT Grant Contract #15-CP-11-01-27-01-XXX







































































   
AI-6826     County Administrator's Report      10. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #3 - Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Agreement (PILOT) with Sacred Heart Health System
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #3 Regarding the PILOT
Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services
Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #3,
General Fund (001), in the amount of $800,000, recognizing the proceeds from the
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement between Escambia County and Sacred
Heart Health System, and appropriating these funds to make payments to the Agency for
Health Care Administration (AHCA).

BACKGROUND:
The Board approved a PILOT agreement with Sacred Heart on September 23, 2014 that
requires Sacred Heart to pay to the County a total of $800,000. These funds will be
appropriated to make payments to the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) on
behalf of Sacred Heart.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The County has approved a Payment In-Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) agreement with the
Sacred Heart. As a result, Sacred Heart will pay the County a total of $800,000. In 2012
the County executed an agreement with AHCA for $2,125,000, which was 100%
reimbursed by Sacred Heart through a PILOT agreement. The County only wound up
paying a total of $1,928,161 leaving $196,839 in funds remaining. A portion of these
funds remaining will be used to pay the difference between the total AHCA agreements,
$846,286, and the amount of the PILOT agreement, $800,000. This supplemental budget
amendment recognizes and appropriates the proceeds of this agreement, $800,000 and
moves the remaining amount $46,286, from Reserves for Operating to make payments
to AHCA.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:



N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
015sa003



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2014-

     WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County 
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

     WHEREAS, Escambia County and Sacred Heart Health System have entered into a PILOT agreement which
allows Sacred Heart to contribute $800,000 to the County, and these funds must be recognized and appropriated
in the current year's budget.

     NOW, THEREFORE,  be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
         that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following

funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

General Fund 1
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Sacred Heart Health Group 1 366007 800,000                                     

Total $800,000 

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Cost Center Project Number Amount

Aids to Private Organizations 001/110201 58201 846,286                                     
Reserves for Operating 001/110201 59805 (46,286)                                      

Total $800,000 

     NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA, COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment 
#3

Lumon J. May, Chairman



   
AI-6881     County Administrator's Report      10. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #4 - Beach Renourishment on

Santa Rosa Island
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #4 - Beach Renourishment on
Santa Rosa Island - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director 

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #4,
Local Option Sales Tax III, Fund (352), in the amount of $8,500,000, recognizing Loan
proceeds and appropriating them to the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) to
renourishment areas of Pensacola Beach.

BACKGROUND:
On September 25, 2014, the Board approved a resolution authorizing a financing in the
amount of $8,500,000. These funds will be transferred to the SRIA for the purpose of
renourishing Pensacola Beach.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This supplemental budget amendment recognizes $8,500,000 in loan proceeds. These
funds will be transferred to the SRIA in 4 quarterly draws.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
015sa004



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2014-

     WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County 
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

     WHEREAS, Escambia County has received loan proceeds totaling $8,500,000 for beach renourishment on Santa
Rosa Island, and these proceeds must be recognized and appropriated in the current year's budget.

     NOW, THEREFORE,  be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
         that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following

funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

Local Option Sales Tax III 352
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Loan Proceeds 352 384004 8,500,000                                  

Total $8,500,000 

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Cost Center Project Number Amount

Aids to Government Agencies 352/110272 58101/15PF3114 8,500,000                                  

Total $8,500,000 

     NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA, COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment 
#4

Lumon J. May, Chairman



   
AI-6882     County Administrator's Report      10. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #5 - Debt Service Payments from

the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA)
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #5 - Debt Service Payments
from SRIA - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #5,
Debt Service Fund (203), in the amount of $1,283,479, recognizing payments from the
Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA), and appropriating these funds for the annual debt
service on the 2014 Capital Improvement Revenue Loan, issued by the County to
renourish areas of Pensacola Beach.

BACKGROUND:
On September 25, 2014, the Board approved an agreement with the SRIA requiring the
SRIA to make all the debt service payments on the $8,500,000 loan issued by the
County for the purpose of financing beach renourishment on the Island.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This supplemental budget amendment recognizes payments from the SRIA and
appropriates these funds to make the required principal and interest payments on this
loan.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
015sa005



Board of County CommissionersBoard of County Commissioners
E bi C tEscambia County Resolution Numbery

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2014Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2014-

     WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County , g p p g y
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budgetand the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

     WHEREAS, Escambia County has adopted an agreement with the Santa Rosa Island Authority requiring them to
pay all the debt service costs on an $8,500,000 bank loan issued to renourish areas of Pensacola Beach, and the annualpay all the debt service costs on an $8,500,000 bank loan issued to renourish areas of Pensacola Beach, and the annual
debt service must be recognized and appropriated in the current year's budgetdebt service must be recognized and appropriated in the current year s budget.

     NOW, THEREFORE,  be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, y y y
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following         that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30 2015:funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015:

Debt Service Fund 203Debt Service Fund 203
Fund Name Fund NumberFund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Payments from SRIA 203 338002 1 283 479Payments from SRIA 203 338002 1,283,479                                  

Total $1 283 479Total $1,283,479 

Account Code/ccou t Code/
Appropriations Title Cost Center Project Number AmountAppropriations Title Cost Center Project Number Amount

Debt Service Principal 203/1102xx 57101 1 165 000Debt Service Principal 203/1102xx 57101 1,165,000                                  
Debt Service Interest 203/1102xx 57201 118,479                                     

Total $1 283 479Total $1,283,479 

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County Florida     NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, 
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolutionthat the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERSATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDAPAM CHILDERS OF ESCAMBIA, COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURTCLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Deputy Clerk Lumon J May ChairmanDeputy Clerk Lumon J. May, Chairman

AdoptedAdopted

OMB Approvedpp

Supplemental Budget AmendmentSupplemental Budget Amendment 
#5#5



   
AI-6916     County Administrator's Report      10. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Increase in the Property Appraiser's Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Budget Amendment #006 - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director

That the Board approve Budget Amendment #006, Property Appraiser, General Fund
(001), in the amount of $686, to cover a Florida Department of Revenue (DOR)
final amendment, for an increase to the Property Appraiser's Budget for Fiscal Year
2014/2015.  The DOR approves the Property Appraiser's Budget per Florida
Statute 195.087.

BACKGROUND:
The DOR has approved a late adjustment to the Property Appraiser's Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Adopted Budget. This amendment allocates the proper level of funding to the
Property Appraiser's Office for FY 2014/15.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There was an increase to the Property Appraiser's Budget in the amount of $686.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
BCC policy requires increases or adjustments to Constitutional Officer's Budgets to come
before the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
BA#006



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County

Budget Amendment Request
Request Number

# 006
Approval Authorities

Date Rec. Date Forward Approved Disapproved
Department Director
Assistant County Administrator
County Administrator
Action by the Board

Transfer From:  Fund 001/General Fund/Non-Departmental
Fund/Department

Account Title Amount
Project Number Cost Center Account Code

Reserves for Operating 110201 59805 686

Total $686

Transfer To:   Fund 001/General Fund/Property Appraiser's Office
Fund/Department

Account Title Amount
Project Number Cost Center Account Code

Personal Services 510101 59702 686

Total $686

Detailed Justification:
The Property Appraiser's Office has received one Final Amendment to the Proposed Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget
from the Florida Department of Revenue (DOR).

DOR historically provides a final budget amendment after the BCC has adopted the New Fiscal Year's Budget annually.
Increases or Adjustments to Constitutional Officer's Budgets must go before the BCC.

OMB Analyst Management and Budget Dept Director

Budget Manager



   
AI-6895     County Administrator's Report      10. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Fiscal
Year 2014/2015 for Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid from the
4th Cent Tourist Promotion Fund (108), Cost Center 360105:

1. African-American Heritage Society, Inc., in the amount of $25,000;
2. Naval Aviation Museum Foundation, Inc., in the amount of $100,000;
3. St. Michael's Cemetery Foundation of Pensacola, Inc., in the amount of $25,000; and
4. West Florida Historic Preservation, Inc., in the amount of $70,000;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary documents;
and

C. Authorize the execution of the necessary Purchase Orders.

BACKGROUND:
The County makes payment in support of the activities of certain outside agencies
approved by the Board.  In order to recognize these contractual agreements and
establish the source documents by which payment can be made, Board approval of
these Agreements is necessary.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:



The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the Agreements.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements is necessary.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
African-American Heritage Society Agreement
Naval Aviation Museum Agreement
St. Michael's Cemetery Agreement
West Florida Historic Preservation Board Agreement



































































   
AI-6903     County Administrator's Report      10. 7.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations

Agreement for Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc.
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Approval of the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Miscellaneous
Appropriations Agreement for Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc. - Amy Lovoy, Management and
Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement for Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc.:

A. Approve the Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement between Escambia County and
Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc., in the amount of $40,000, to be paid from the Solid
Waste Management Fund (401), Cost Center 230314, Account 53401;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement and all other necessary
documents; and

C. Authorize the execution of the necessary Purchase Order.

BACKGROUND:
The County makes payments in support of the activities of certain outside agencies
approved by the Board.  In order to recognize these contractual agreements and
establish the source documents by which payment can be made, Board approval of this
Agreement is necessary.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney has reviewed the Agreement.

PERSONNEL:



N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements is necessary. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Keep Pensacola Beautiful Agreement



















   
AI-6905     County Administrator's Report      10. 8.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside

Agencies
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for
Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of Fiscal Year 2014/2015
Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid from the
General Fund (001), Cost Center 110201:

1. Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission, in the amount of $84,265;
2. Wildlife Sanctuary of Northwest Florida, Inc., in the amount of $30,951;
3. Council on Aging of West Florida, Inc., in the amount of $38,000;
4. Escambia Community Clinics, Inc., in the amount of $376,269;
5. Lakeview Center, Inc., in the amount of $29,486; and
6. United Way of Escambia County, Inc. (211 Program), in the amount of $33,250;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary documents;
and

C. Authorize the approval of the necessary Purchase Orders.

BACKGROUND:
The County makes payments in support of the activities of certain outside agencies
approved by the Board.  In order to recognize these contractual agreements and
establish the source documents by which payment can be made, Board approval of
these Agreements is necessary.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the Agreements.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements is necessary.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Pensacola-Escambia Human Relations Commission Agreement
Wildlife Sanctuary Agreement
Council on Aging Agreement
Escambia Community Clinics Agreement
Lakeview Center Agreement
United Way of Escambia County Agreement



































































































   
AI-6920     County Administrator's Report      10. 9.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement with Outside

Agencies
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreement
with Outside Agencies - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the Fiscal Year
2014/2015 Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements for Outside Agencies:

A. Approve the following Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements to be paid from the
Economic Development Fund (102), Cost Center 360704;

1. Century Area Chamber of Commerce, in the amount of $40,000; and
2. Gulf Coast African-American Chamber of Commerce, Inc., in the amount of $50,000;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreements and all other necessary documents;
and

C. Authorize the approval of the necessary Purchase Order.

BACKGROUND:
The County makes payment in support of the activities of certain outside agencies
approved by the Board.  In order to recognize these contractual agreements and
establish the source documents by which payment can be made, Board approval of
these Agreements is necessary.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney has reviewed the agreement.



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board approval of Miscellaneous Appropriations Agreements is necessary.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Century Chamber of Commerce Agreement
Gulf Coast African-American Chamber Agreement



































   
AI-6924     County Administrator's Report      10. 10.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Issuance of Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Purchase Orders in Excess of

$50,000
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Issuance of Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Purchase Orders in
Excess of $50,000, for Contracts Managed by the Management and Budget Services
Department - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board, for Fiscal Year 2014/2015, approve the issuance of individual Purchase
Orders, for Contracts managed by the Management and Budget Services
Department, based upon previously awarded annual requirements, as follows:

A. Northwest Florida Legal Services, Inc. - $124,688
Vendor Number: 141832
Legal Aid
Fund 115
Cost Center: 410802
Account Code: 58201

B. Warren Averett, LLC - $207,240
Vendor Number: 230810
Audit Services
Fund 001
Cost Center: 140201/410701
Account Code: 53101
PD #13-14.054
Board Approved: 07/14/2014

C. SMG - $251,951.82
Vendor Number: 190107
Bay Center Management Fee
Fund 409
Cost Center: 360401
Account Code: 53401



Account Code: 53401
Board Approved: 02/16/2012, 10/18/2012, and 10/03/2013

D. Florida Department of Health - $337,649
d/b/a Escambia County Health Department
Vendor Number: 051513
Health Services
Fund 001
Cost Center: 360301
Account Code: 58101

BACKGROUND:
These allocations are included in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.  The Northwest
Florida Legal Services purchase order is the result of a state mandate to fund Northwest
Florida Legal Services.  The mandate and the amount are set in FlSt 939.185

The Warren Averett purchase order is for the County's annual audit contract.  This
contract was awarded by the Board on July 14, 2014 following an RFP in compliance
with FlSt 218.391

The SMG purchase order is for the SMG basic management fee as contained in the
contract approved by the Board on February 16, 2012.

The Florida Department of Health purchase order to fund the County's contribution to the
Health Department. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board action is necessary for approval of purchase orders exceeding $50,000.00

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Bay Center 2012 Contract
Warren Averett Contract























































































































































































































































































   
AI-6491     County Administrator's Report      10. 11.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Commissary Services for the Jail PD 13-14.063
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Head 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Commissary Services for the Jail - Amy Lovoy, Management and
Budget Services Department Director

That the Board award a Revenue Contract #PD13-14.063, Commissary Services for the
Jail, and approve the Agreement for Commissary Services for the Escambia County
Jail between Aramark Correctional Services LLC, and Escambia County, for total on
gross revenue of 47%.

[Funding:  Fund 111, Revenue Account, 342302, Detention/Jail Commissary]

BACKGROUND:
The solicitation was advertised in the Pensacola News Journal on July 14th 2014. Six
bids were received with two being non-responsive.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This is a Revenue Contract proceeds to Fund 111, Rev Acct: 342302 Detention/Jail
Commissary
 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney Kristin Hual prepared the contract.

PERSONNEL:
NA

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County Fl., Code of
Ordinance, Chapter 46, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will issue the Contract.

Attachments
Bid Tab Awarded
Agreement





















   
AI-6934     County Administrator's Report      10. 12.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Escambia County and the

City of Pensacola
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Director 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Interlocal Agreement between Escambia County and the City
of Pensacola - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the Interlocal Agreement between
Escambia County and the City of Pensacola:

A. Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners and the City of Pensacola Relating to the Fiscal Year 2014/2015
Funding of the Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and Development Commission
(PEDC), in the amount of $550,000, to be paid from the Economic Development Fund
(102), Cost Center 360704, for a one-year period from October 1, 2014, through
September 30, 2015;

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement; and

C. Authorize approval of the necessary Purchase Order.

BACKGROUND:
Chapter 89-481, Laws of Florida, requires that the fiscal contribution of the City and
County be established yearly by Interlocal Agreement.  The City and County agree that
the County shall contribute $550,000 and the City shall contribute $120,000 to the PEDC
for Fiscal Year 2014/2015.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's office has reviewed the Interlocal Agreement.



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board action is necessary for approval of this Agreement.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
PEDC Interlocal Agreement













   
AI-6869     County Administrator's Report      10. 13.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Acquisition of Property Located at 3806 Frontera Circle
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Acquisition of Property Located at 3806 Frontera Circle -
Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the property located at 3806
Frontera Circle within the Brownsville Community Redevelopment District:

A. Authorize the purchase of the parcel of real estate (totaling approximately 0.04 acres)
from Khurram Dar, for the negotiated amount of $19,900, in accordance with the terms
and conditions in the Contract for Sale and Purchase;

B. Approve the Contract for Sale and Purchase between Khurram Dar and Escambia
County for the acquisition of the parcel of real property located at 3806 Frontera Circle;
and

C. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to
execute, subject to Legal review and sign-off, any documentation necessary to complete
the acquisition of the property, without further action from the Board.

[Funding Source:  Fund 151, Community Redevelopment Agency, Cost Center 220515,
CRA Brownsville, Object Code 56101]

BACKGROUND:
Frontera Circle is a small neighborhood located in the Brownsville Redevelopment
District. Many of the Units within the neighborhood have become neglected and/or
abandoned leading to severe blighted and slum conditions. Escambia County has
conducted multiple refuse “clean-sweeps” through the neighborhood; there have been
numerous code violations with current outstanding leins and the neighborhood is a
rampant focal point for illegal activities including drug offenses, prostitution, robbery and
assault. As part of a Community Revitalization Plan, at the August 18, 2011 meeting the
Board approved a recommendation authorizing the expenditure of funds to acquire and



assemble 32 specific properties within the neighborhood. The property specified within
this recommendation is part of the 32 targeted properties. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for this project are available in the Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 151
/ Cost Center 220515 Brownsville CRA / Object Code 56101

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's Office will prepare the closing documents and conduct the closing
for the purchase of the property.  The Contract for Sale and Purchase was approved as
to for, and legal sufficiency by Stephen West, Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
These actions are consistent with the provisions of Section 46-139 of the County Codes .

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The County Staff will handle all necessary work to complete the acquisition.

Attachments
Contract
Survey
Property Appraiser
Aerial
Authorization
Map_Street
Check_Env
Check_Facilities
Title Commit
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AI-6799     County Administrator's Report      10. 14.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: State Housing Initiatives Partnership Agreement with United Way of

Escambia County, Inc. 
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the State Housing Initiatives Partnership Agreement with United
Way of Escambia County, Inc. - Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment Department Director 

That the Board take the following action regarding the State Housing Initiatives
Partnership (SHIP) Agreement with United Way of Escambia County, Inc. (United Way):
 
A. Approve the SHIP Volunteer-Based Disaster Housing Recovery Project Agreement
between Escambia County and United Way to provide $150,000, in SHIP funds, to
enable qualified volunteer organizations to access funds for materials, supplies, and
subcontract services required to assist survivors of the Presidentially Declared April
2014 Flood Event in Escambia County with uncompensated repairs to their impacted
homes; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all
Project-related documents, as required to implement the Project.
 
[Funding:  Fund 120, 2015 SHIP, Cost Center 220445]

BACKGROUND:
The 2014-2016 Escambia/Pensacola State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)
Program Local Housing Assistance Plan approved by the Board on April 2, 2013 (see
Exhibit I) incorporated an allocation for housing repair assistance for very low and low
income families, which was recently augmented by the award of 2015 SHIP funds by the
Florida legislature. Acting as fiscal agent, United Way, in cooperation with BRACE and a
myriad of primarily faith based volunteer disaster response teams, has requested SHIP
funds to be used over the next 12 months to support payment for building materials,
supplies and permit required subcontractors to allow the volunteers to assist in meeting
unmet housing repair needs of low income survivors of the April 2014 flooding event
(see Agreement in Exhibit II). The funds will allow the teams to complete repairs to at



least 20 impacted homes owned by families meeting SHIP Program eligibility
requirements. The Agreement authorizes a maximum Service Delivery Fee of $400 per
completed unit for United Way.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The $150,000 required for this Agreement is budgeted in Fund 120/2015 SHIP Program,
Cost Center 220445 and will be carried into FY 2015.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Agreement has been reviewed and approved by Kristin Hual, Assistant County
Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Agreements with agencies or organizations must be approved by the Board of County
Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The SHIP project will be coordinated through the County Community & Environment
Department, Neighborhood Enterprise Division (NED). In conjunction with NED, United
Way (as fiscal agent) and BRACE (as volunteer response coordinator) will oversee the
various volunteer teams as they complete housing repair activities for eligible
homeowners.

Attachments
Exhibit I
Exhibit II
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RESUME OF THE REGULAR BCC MEETING – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 
 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 4. Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the Chairman to send a letter to the Florida 

Department of Revenue informing them that the Escambia County Board of County 
Commissioners is aware that proceeds available to Counties, pursuant to 
Section 212.20(6)(d)6a, Florida Statutes, are being directed to the Escambia County 
School District. 
Approved 5-0 

 5. Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action regarding the Escambia/ 
Pensacola 2014-2016 State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Local Housing 
Assistance Plan (Funding:  Fund 120, SHIP; funds will be budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014): 

  A. Adopt the Resolution approving the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 SHIP Local 
Housing Assistance Plan, including SHIP financed affordable housing strategies, 
specified eligibility and beneficiary definitions, average and maximum SHIP award 
limitations, fiscal and administrative provisions, description of affordable housing 
incentives, annual program service delivery goals, and required SHIP certifications; 
projected SHIP funding (estimated program income only) for each year of the 
three-year Plan period is: 2014 $100,000; 2015 $100,000; and 2016 $100,000; 

  B. Approve the SHIP Program Escambia/Pensacola Interlocal Agreement with the City 
of Pensacola providing for joint implementation and administration of the Escambia/ 
Pensacola SHIP Program and the Escambia/Pensacola Local Housing Assistance 
Plan;

  C. Authorize staff to revise the SHIP budgetary allocations within the approved Plan or 
between the approved strategies to accurately reflect actual funding distributions 
provided by Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC); and 

  D. Authorize the Chairman and/or the Interim County Administrator, as appropriate, to 
execute all documents required to submit, receive, and implement the SHIP Plan 
and all related activities. 

Approved 5-0 
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AI-6759     County Administrator's Report      10. 15.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: 2014/2015 Emergency Solutions Grant Agreement with Loaves and

Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc.
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning 2014/2015 Emergency Shelter Grant Agreement with Loaves and
Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc. - Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the 2014/2015 Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) Agreement with Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc.:

A. Approve an ESG Agreement with Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc., detailing the
utilization of a maximum of $87,689, to support salary and/or operational costs of the
Loaves and Fishes Homeless Center located at 257 East Lee Street, effective October
1, 2014, through September 30, 2015; and
 
B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the subject Agreement and all
related documents required to complete the Project.

[Funding:  Fund 110, ESG, Cost Center 220561]

BACKGROUND:
On July 24, 2014, the Board approved the Escambia Consortium 2014 Annual Plan
(Exhibit I) which incorporated $136,359 in 2014 HUD Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) funding with $87,689 specifically designated to support operational costs
associated with the Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc.'s homeless center located at
257 East Lee Street. This Agreement provides for the continuation of long standing ESG
support for Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen and details requirements for
implementation of the 2014 ESG in conformity with the governing requirements of the
McKinney Homeless Assistance Act. The 2014/2015 Agreement (Exhibit II) in the amount
of $87,689 will encompass a twelve month period from October 3, 2014 through
September 30, 2015. HUD has approved the County's 2014 Annual Plan and the ESG
funds will be available for use in October 2014. 



Loaves and Fishes’ homeless center at 257 East Lee Street is the major provider of
transitional housing for homeless families, as well as a primary soup kitchen serving the
homeless within the area. This funding will support a portion of the salary, utility,
insurance, transportation, supportive service and related costs associated with the
operation of the facility in accordance with 24 CFR Part 576.21(a)(3) of the HUD ESG
regulations. ESG funds can only be used to support delivery of services targeting the
homeless.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The $87,689 in 2014 ESG funding has been incorporated in the FY 2015 County budget
in Fund 110/Other Grants, Cost Center 220561. The Agreement is specifically contingent
upon the award of the ESG funds by HUD.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The 2014/2015 Agreement has been reviewed and approved by Kristin Hual, Assistant
County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
A formal ESG Agreement is required to provide funding to sponsoring agencies and the
Agreement must be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval and countersignature by the Board Chairman, implementation of the
Agreement will be coordinated with Loaves and Fishes. The Neighborhood
Enterprise Division of the County's Community & Environment Department will continue
to monitor the Agreement and complete required reports and grant closeout
documentation as required by HUD. The content of this recommendation and the date on
which the Board will consider same have been communicated to Mr. Rick Humphreys,
Executive Director of Loaves and Fishes.

Attachments
Exhibit I
Exhibit II
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RESUME OF THE REGULAR BCC MEETING – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 12. Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action concerning approval of the 
Escambia Consortium 2014/2015 Annual Action Plan; a complete copy of the entire 
Annual Action Plan is available for review in the County Administrator's Office or on the 
County's website at:  http://www.myescambia.com (Funding:  Fund 129, CDBG; 
Fund 147, HOME; and Fund 110, ESG – Cost Centers to be assigned): 

  A. Approve the Escambia Consortium 2014/2015 Annual Action Plan for Housing and 
Community Development, including the Escambia County 2014 Annual Plan, 
detailing use of 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, in the 
amount of $1,653,390; 2014 HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) funds, in 
the amount of $975,346; and 2014 Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG) 
funds, in the amount of $136,359; and 

  B. Authorize the County Administrator to execute all 2014/2015 Annual Action Plan 
Forms, Certifications, and related documents, as required to submit the Plans to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and authorize the County 
Administrator or Chairman, as appropriate, to execute documents required to 
receive and implement the 2014 CDBG, 2014 HOME, and 2014 ESG Programs. 

Approved 3-0, with Commissioner Valentino having left the meeting and 
Commissioner Robertson temporarily out of Board Chambers

 13. Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action concerning Dental Insurance 
(PD 12-13.029) (Funding Source:  Fund 501, Internal Service Fund, Cost 
Center 150109, Object Code 54501): 

  A. Approve a three-month extension of the present Contract to December 31, 2016, 
without an increase in administrative fees; and 

  B. Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Dental Administration Service 
Contract between Delta Dental Insurance Company and Escambia County (Service 
Contract will be drafted upon approval of this Board action). 

Approved 3-0, with Commissioner Valentino having left the meeting and 
Commissioner Robertson temporarily out of Board Chambers
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  EXHIBIT  I 



 
 
 
 
 
 2014-2015 EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG) 

PROPOSED BUDGET AND ACTIVITIES DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 
Activity HESG 14 - Emergency Shelter/Operations                                                                                   $ 87,689 
Provides funding to partially support operational costs of the Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc. Homeless 
Center and Emergency Shelter for families.  (257 East Lee Street, Pensacola, Florida) 

 
   Activity HESG 14 - Rapid Re-Housing & Homeless Prevention                                                               $ 38,444 

Provides funding, based on Continuum of Care priorities, for: (1) Rapid Re-housing for individuals/families with 
incomes below 30% of median; and (2) homelessness prevention for individuals/ families with incomes below 30% 
of median. 
 

   Administration                                                                                                                                              $ 10,226 
   Administrative Cost (7.5%): $3,408 to EscaRosa Coalition on the Homeless Project Management  
   and/or HMIS and $6,818 to Escambia County Indirect Cost.                                                   ________ 
                                                                                                  
         TOTAL 2014 ESG FUNDS PROJECTED                                                                                               $136,359 

                  ====== 
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AI-6925     County Administrator's Report      10. 16.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: FL Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission Artificial Reef

Construction & Monitoring Grant Application for FY 2014-2015
From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director 
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission Artificial
Reef Construction Grant Application for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 - Keith Wilkins, Community &
Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning a Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission (FWC) Artificial Reef Construction Grant Application for Fiscal
Year 2014-2015:

A.  Approve applying to the FWC for an Artificial Reef Construction Grant requesting up
to $100,000, with a match not to exceed $35,000, for the construction of an artificial reef
in the Gulf of Mexico;

B.  Authorize the Office of Purchasing to solicit for firms to conduct environmental
preparations, deployment preparations, and deployment and other services, as required,
subject to funding by the Grant award and/or other sources; and

C.  Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Grant Application and any subsequent
documents relating to the Grant Application without further Board action.

[Funding:  Fund 108, Tourist Promotion, Cost Center 220805 and/or Fund 352, LOST III,
Cost Center 220102, NESD Capital Projects]

BACKGROUND:
The Escambia County Marine Resources Division and Escambia County Marine
Advisory Committee have been seeking to deploy additional vessels for artificial reefs
since the reefing of the decommissioned aircraft carrier USS Oriskany in 2006. Funding
sources for artificial reef construction are typically limited to Florida Fish & Wildlife
Conservation Commission Grants-in-Aid, public donations into the Escambia County
Aquatic Resources Stewardship Endowment Fund, Local Option Sales Tax, and



Tourism Development Tax.

On September 4, 2014, several members of the public spoke in favor of acquiring the
tugboat "Ocean Wind" for reefing. The discussion also included an upcoming grant
opportunity through FWC. The Board's direction acknowledged that any funding for the
project would need to be through grants and/or other sources.

The estimated cost for this project is $130,000 with up to $100,000 from FWC and up to
$35,000 match from the County. Additional funding of at least $15,000 has been
pledged by dive shops, divers, and other reef stakeholders. In the event that the tugboat
"Ocean Wind" becomes unavailable for reefing, Escambia County Marine Resources
Division will utilize alternative materials, including concrete, as approved by FWC.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The estimated cost for this project is $130,000 with up to $100,000 from FWC and up to
$35,000 match from the County. This match will come from Fund 108, Tourist
Promotion, Cost Center 220805 and/or Fund 352, LOST III, Cost Center 220102, NESD
Capital Projects.

Additional funds have been raised through a public stakeholder initiative. As of
September 2014, approximately $15,000 has been pledged. These funds would be used
for contingencies or supplemental reef materials.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires approval of grant applications that have a cash match component.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Community & Environment Department, Marine Resources Division, will submit the
Grant Application to FWC.

Attachments
FWC-ArtificialReefConstructionGrantApp-FY14-15
ArtificialReef-PublicForum-06032014
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            ARTIFICIAL REEF CONSTRUCTION GRANT APPLICATION 
           
 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that all information submitted with this application is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Applicant Date Printed Name and Title 

  Telephone 

  Email address   FEID Number 

(         ) (         ) 

Applicant Project Manager 
  Printed Name, Title   Name of local coastal government, university, or eligible not-for-profit corporation 

  Mailing Address   Mailing Address 

  City   City   State   State   Zip Code   Zip Code 

  Telephone   Fax   Fax 

(         ) (         ) 

  Physical Address, for courier service, with zip code (if different than mailing address)    Physical Address, for courier service, with zip code (if different than mailing address)  

Amount of Material (tons), 
and/or Number of Module Units 

Proposed for Deployment: 

Project Description 

Types of Material 
Proposed for Deployment: 

Grant Funds Requested: Matching Funds (Cash Only): Total Project Cost:
$ $ $ 

Name of Proposed 
Reef Project: 

Name of  
Permitted Site: 

Artificial Reef Site Permit Information 
(to be provided for each permitted site to be used, permits must be valid through August 31, 2013) 

Name of Permit Holder: 
(if different than applicant, attach a letter of authorization from the permit holder to use the site) 

Check here if the permitted site is located in State waters          

USACOE Permit Number: 

FDEP Permit Number: 
 (for sites located State waters)  

Issued: 

Expires: 
/ /
/ /

Issued: 

Expires: 
/ /
/ /

    Check here if information for additional permitted sites is attached.               

Proposed Coordinates 
LAT/LON decimal minutes: 

(attach letter stating cash match amount) 

Depth (ft.):











PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 
 
 
PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION – Continued 
 
 4. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board was advised by Kerry Freeland, Owner/Operator of 

Dive Pros, that the local diving community has pledged approximately $13,000 for the 
purchase of the "Oceanwind," an 80-foot tugboat, which would be sunk as an artificial 
reef, and heard his request that the Board consider assisting with the acquisition and 
deployment of the tugboat.      

 
 5. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard comments from Aaron Wiley, who expressed 

his concerns regarding the level of toxins being emitted from the Longleaf Construction & 
Demolition Debris Disposal Facility and the effects they have on those who live in the 
surrounding community, and opposed granting a permit to the facility until proper testing 
is conducted.      

 
 6. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard comments from Myra G. Lightner, who 

expressed her concerns regarding the level of toxins being emitted from the Longleaf 
Construction & Demolition Debris Disposal Facility, which is affecting water quality.      

 
 7. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard the request from Glenda Weekley, on behalf of 

her mother-in-law, Marie Powell, whose home, located at 2734 Midland Park Road, 
flooded during the rain storm, that the County repair two ditches that that do not properly 
drain into the holding pond located behind the home.      

 
 8. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard comments from James C. Howard, who 

expressed his concerns regarding a clay pit located in the Wedgewood area, which emits 
an unpleasant odor, and the amount of dust produced from the road that leads to the pit, 
which is behind his home.      

 
 9. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard comments from Barbara Mayall regarding a 

symposium she attended.      
 
 10. FOR INFORMATION:  The Board heard comments from Judy Cook, who expressed her 

concerns regarding the toxins being emitted from a debris pit located in her community, 
which is affecting the quality of life for her and her neighbors.      

6/3/2014 Page  2  of  46 lfc 



   
AI-6914     County Administrator's Report      10. 17.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval to Issue Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Purchase Orders in Excess

of $50,000
From: Michael Rhodes, Dept Director 
Organization: Parks and Recreation
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Issuance of Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Purchase Orders
in Excess of $50,000, for the Parks and Recreation Department - Michael Rhodes, Parks
and Recreation Department Director

That the Board, for the Fiscal Year 2014-2015, approve the issuance of blanket and/or
individual Purchase Orders in excess of $50,000, based upon previously awarded
Contracts, Contractual Agreements, or annual requirements, for the Parks and
Recreation Department, as follows:

Vendor/Contractor Amount Contract Number
A. Blue Arbor, Inc.

Vendor Number: 023818
Temporary Employment Services

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350220 (Recreation)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 101 (Escambia County Restricted Fund)
Cost Center: 350224 (Special Events)
Cost Center: 350236 (Fishing Bridge)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital Projects)
Cost Center: 350231 (Equestrian Center)
Amount: $250,000

$250,000 PD 12-13.035

B. Keep Pensacola Beautiful, Inc., DBA Clean & Green
Vendor Number: 402053
Other Contractual Services

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance) $160,000



Fund: 101 (Escambia County Restricted Fund)
Cost Center: 350236 (Fishing Bridge)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital Projects) 
Amount: $160,000

C. Game Time, Inc.
Vendor Number: 070316
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital Projects)
Amount: $525,000

$525,000

D. PRIDE Enterprises
Vendor Number: 164981
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital Projects)
Amount: $100,000

$100,000

E. Oldcastle Lawn & Garden, Inc.
Vendor Number: 150131
Park/Playground Improvements

Fund: 001 (General)
Cost Center: 350226 (Park Maintenance)
Fund: 352 (Local Option Sales Tax III)
Cost Center: 350229 (Park Capital Projects)
Amount: $100,000

$100,000

BACKGROUND:
The issuance of these Purchase Orders during the first part of Fiscal Year 2014-2015 is
necessary to ensure continuity of services traditionally provided by the Board of County
Commissioners to the citizens of Escambia County.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the Budget under General Fund (001), Cost Center 350220
Recreation, Cost Center 350226 Park Maintenance, Fund (101), Escambia County
Restricted, Cost Center 350224 Special Events, Cost Center 350236 Fishing Bridge,
Local Option Sales Tax III Fund (352), Cost Center 350229 Park Capital Projects, Cost
Center 350231 Equestrian Center.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Code of Ordinances of Escambia
County, Florida, 1999, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Parks and Recreation Over 50K Justification Narratives and Backup Material































































   
AI-6915     County Administrator's Report      10. 18.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Authorize Purchase of Three El Dorado EZ Rider II Transit Buses
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Department Director 
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Three ElDorado EZ Rider II Transit Buses - Joy
D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of three ElDorado EZ
Rider II Transit Buses, to replace two 1999 Gillig Buses and one 1998 Gillig Bus, that
have exceeded their useful lives and need to be replaced as part of the
Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) Capital Replacement Plan:

A. Approve the purchase of three ElDorado EZ Rider II Transit Buses, per the Contract
provided; and

B. Authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order to Florida Transportation
Systems, Inc., in the amount of $948,321.

[Funding:  Fund 320, Federal Transit Administration Capital Projects Fund, Cost Center
340424, Object Code 56401]

BACKGROUND:
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines require that all applications for financial
assistance from FTA be submitted after a public hearing is held for the purpose of
receiving comments from the public concerning the Grant Program of Projects. 

Meeting in regular session on April 29, 2014, in a public hearing, the BCC approved
Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) to receive grant funds for the 2014 FTA Grant #
FL90-X848-00. 

On September 4, 2014, the BCC approved Supplemental Budget Amendment #261 -
2014 FTA Grant FL90-X848-00, recognizing funds to be used for capital and operations
as follows:



3- Replacement 30' Buses
1 - Replacement Bus >30'
5 - Bus Shelters
Bus Security Equipment

The project budget was developed in accordance with the latest Pensacola Urbanized
Area Transportation Improvement Plan Update adopted by the Florida-Alabama
Transportation Planning Organization (TPO). The budget for this grant application
included the purchase of three ElDorado buses at the cost of $960,000. The
actual purchase request for the three ElDorado buses is $948,321.

Acquisition of these vehicles shall be according to the attached State Contract.  FDOT
provides transportation providers with the Transit Research Inspection Procurement
Services (TRIPS) program so that public and private nonprofit transportation agencies
can procure well-equipped, well-built transit vehicles at a reduced cost by means of
centrally administered statewide contracts for vehicle procurement.  The program
ensures that vehicle procurements adhere to and are consistent with all applicable
federal, state, and FDOT guidelines, requirements, industry standards, and certifications,
as well as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) Best Practices Procurement
Manual.  The vehicle manufacturer's compliance with technical specifications is
continually monitored by contracted line inspectors at each vehicle production site and at
an FDOT vehicle inspection facility located in Tallahassee, Florida.  With the volume of
vehicles purchased through contracts established by TRIPS, transit agencies can take
advantage of longer warranty periods, extended service after the sale, and training
opportunities offered by both the vehicle dealers and component manufacturers,  the
TRIPS program is administered by the Center for Urban Transportation
Research(CUTR) under an agreement with FDOT.  The awarded grant was submitted
for replacement of transit buses and it is imperative that the grant money be used for bus
replacement due to the extreme aging of the existing fleet.  

The need for the replacement of the three Gillig buses is justified in the capital
replacement plan for ECAT (see attached items highlighted in red on Vehicle List). 
These buses have exceeded the useful life of 350,000 miles or ten years in age as
defined by the FTA.  New buses were selected for this purchase in order to obtain the
warranties that are provided with new vehicle purchases.  Compressed Natural Gas
(CNG) was not an option on this purchase in order to obtain the warranties that are
provided with new vehicle purchases.

Effective January 1, 1998, Grant Applications, Execution, and Grant Administration
Progress Reports must be submitted electronically via the Transportation Electronic
Award and Management (TEAM) System. Escambia County staff has filed the required
FY14 Certifications and Assurances electronically with the FTA.

This purchase was not advertised on the website for 30 days because there are no local
vendors. Allowing the purchase of the buses on the current contract will provide a
savings of approximately $20,000 per bus. The current contract expires on 9/30/14 but
an extension has been given for this particular purchase. 



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The FY 13/14 Capital Grant Application has been included in the approved FY 2014
County Budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The required FY14 Certifications and Assurances have been filed electronically with the
FTA.

PERSONNEL:
There is no impact to existing personnel staffing.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Ordering Contract
ECAT Vehicle Replacement List
042914 BCC Mins
090414 BCC MINS



































LOCATION MFG YR MAKE Model VIN. # Type Lic. # Lic. State Passenger Capacity Fleet #

ECAT 2002 Supreme Trolley 4UZAAUBV12CK13909 207853 FL 32 105
ECAT 2002 Supreme Trolley 4UZAAUBVX2CK13911 207855 FL 32 106
ECAT 2002 Supreme Trolley 4UZAAUBV82CK13910 207854 FL 32 107
ECAT 1996 Freightliner Trolley 4UZABFAD1TC74960 151669 FL 24 1967
ECAT 1996 Freightliner Trolley 4UZABFAD1TC742961 151670 FL 24 1968
ECAT 1996 Freightliner Trolley 4UZZ69M2XT2308013 72723 FL 22 2003
ECAT 1996 Freightliner Trolley 4UZZ69M2XT2308318 72724 FL 22 2004
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2113T1087428 72702 FL             29         (6) 9613
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2115T1087429 151671 FL 29 9614
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2111T1087430 72703 FL              29          (7) 9615
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2113T1087431 151672 FL 29 9616
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2115T1087432 72701 FL              29           (4) 9617
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2110T1087113 151674 FL             29           (5) 9618
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2112T1087114 72704 FL             29           (1) 9619
ECAT 1996 Gillig 30/96TBM11 15GCA2114T1087115 151673 FL             29           (2) 9620
ECAT 1998 Gillig M11-T30-96 15GCA211W1088846 46396 FL 29 9823
ECAT 1998 Gillig M11-T30-96 15GCA2110W1088847 126226 FL 29 9824
ECAT 1998 Gillig M11-T30-96 15GCA2112W1088848 126227 FL 29 9825
ECAT 1999 Gillig PHANTOM 15GCB2112X1089299 V485972 FL 35 9926
ECAT 1999 Gillig PHANTOM 15GCB2115X1089300 V485971 FL 35 9927
ECAT 1999 Gillig PHANTOM 15GCB2117X1089301 V485974 FL 35 9928
ECAT 1999 Gillig PHANTOM 15GCB2119X1089302 V485973 FL              35          (3) 9929
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291161090830 TA0402 FL 28 0631
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291361090831 TA0403 FL 28 0632
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291561090832 TA0404 FL 28 0633
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291761090833 TA0405 FL 28 0634
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291961090834 TA0408 FL 28 0635
ECAT 2006 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291061090835 TA0409 FL 28 0636
ECAT 2007 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291171091282 TA4420 FL 28 0737
ECAT 2007 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291371091283 TA4421 FL 28 0738
ECAT 2007 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291571091284 TA4428 FL 28 0739
ECAT 2007 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291771091285 TA4429 FL 28 0740
ECAT 2007 Gilli G29E102R2 15GGE291071091287 TA4434 FL 28 0742ECAT 2007 Gillig G29E102R2 15GGE291071091287 TA4434 FL 28 0742
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092080 161563 FL 28 1043
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092081 214390 FL 28 1044
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092082 164300 FL 28 1045
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092083 160297 FL 28 1046
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092084 164294 FL 28 1047
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092085 164299 FL 28 1048
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092086 164298 FL 28 1049
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092087 164297 FL 28 1050
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092088 164290 FL 28 1051
ECAT 2010 Gillig G27E102N2 15GGE2710A1092089 TA4433 FL 28 1052
ECAT 2014 ElDorado BRT 1N9MNAC63EC084264 TA9962 FL 29 1453
ECAT 2014 ElDorado BRT 1N9MNAC63EC084265 TA9960 FL 29 1454
ECAT 2014 ElDorado BRT 1N9MNAC63EC084266 TA9961 FL 29 1455
ECAT 2009 GMC C4500 1GBE4V1929F413105 158493 FL 18 1001
ECAT 2009 GMC C4500 1GBE4V1959F413096 158494 FL 18 1002
ECAT 2010 Chevrolet C5500 1GBG5U1998F414766 203819 FL 1003
ECAT 2001 Ford F250 1FDNF20F31ED78916 196081 FL 3 UNIT 16
ECAT 2004 Ford F150 1FTPX12564NC07770 222022 FL 5 UNIT 3
ECAT 1993 Ford F450 S/D 2FDLF47MOPCB38583 136204 FL 3 UNIT 6
ECAT 2000 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 2GCEC19V3Y1360767 192140 FL 5 UNIT 1
ECAT 2002 Ford F150 1FTRX17L52KD70151 207802 FL 3 UNIT 17
ECAT 2006 Ford Freestar 2FMZA51696BA63797 236789 FL 9 UNIT 18
ECAT 2006 Chevrolet Malibu 1G1ZS518X6F277594 240114 FL 5 UNIT 19
ECAT 2006 Chevrolet Malibu 1G1ZS51896F262035 240113 FL 5 UNIT 20
ECAT 2013 Dodge Grand Caravan 2C4RDGBG2DR703674 196094 FL 7 31
ECAT 2013 Dodge Grand Caravan 2C4RDGBG4DR703675 FL 7 32
ECAT 2012 VPG MV-1 523MF1B63CM101211 TB8579 FL 4 + 2 Wheelchairs 33S
ECAT 2012 VPG MV-1 523MF1B65CM101422 TB8578 FL 4 + 2 Wheelchairs 34S









































































   
AI-6919     County Administrator's Report      10. 19.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Approval of State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement
From: Darlene Howell, Library Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement - Darlene Howell,
Library Administrator

That the Board approve the Florida Department of State, Division of Library and
Information Services, State Aid to Libraries Grant Agreement and authorize the
Chairman of the West Florida Public Library Board of Governance and the Clerk to sign
the Agreement. (The State Aid to Libraries Program provides annual funding to eligible
recipients for the operation and maintenance of public libraries.)

BACKGROUND:
Pursuant to 257.17, Florida Statutes, the State Aid to Libraries Program provides annual
funding to eligible recipients for the operation and maintenance of public libraries. The
Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services is the
administrator that implements the program.

In accordance with the program requirements, the Division requires that the governing
body of the library system make application and certify eligibility for receipt of said
funding. TheDivision has designated the West Florida Public Library Board of
Governance as the governing body of the West Florida Public Library System with
authority to certify elibibility for grant funds. As the designated fiscal agent for the West
Florida Public Library System, The County will have the authority to receive and disburse
said funds in accordance with the program requirements.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The funds will be included in the FY 14/15 annual budget for the West Florida Public
Library System.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Board of Governance will coordinate with the Library Director to complete all
implementation requirements.

Attachments
WFPL 2014-2015 State Aid Grant Agreement
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Florida Department of State, Division of Library and Information Services 
STATE AID TO LIBRARIES GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

The Applicant (GRANTEE)  WFPL Board of Governance 
(Name of library governing body) 

Governing body for  West Florida Public Library System 
        (Name of library) 

hereby makes application and certifies eligibility for receipt of grants authorized under Section 257, 
Florida Statutes, and guidelines for the State Aid to Libraries Grant Program. 

The Division, as administrator of state funds provided under Section 257, Florida Statutes, has 
approved an application for State Aid to Libraries Grant funds submitted by the GRANTEE.  By 
reference, the application is hereby made a part of this agreement. 

Grant Purpose. This grant shall be based upon the following scope of work: 

The single library administrative unit, as an eligible political subdivision under 257.17, Florida 
Statutes, is responsible for managing or coordinating free library service to the residents of its 
legal service area. The library shall: 

1. Have a single administrative head employed full time by the library’s governing body; 

2. Provide free library service, including loaning library materials available for circulation free 
of charge, and providing reference and information services free of charge;  

3. Provide access to materials, information and services for all residents of the area served; and  

4. Have at least one library, branch library or member library operated by the library’s 
governing body, open 40 hours or more each week. 

 

The parties agree as follows: 

I. The GRANTEE agrees to: 

a. For payment number one:   

i.  Have at least one library, branch library or member library, open 40 hours or more 
each week.  

b. For payment number two:  

i.  Have at least one library, branch library or member library, open 40 hours or more 
each week. 
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c. Expend all grant funds awarded and perform all acts in connection with this agreement in full 
compliance with the terms and conditions of Chapter 257, Florida Statutes, and guidelines 
for the State Aid to Libraries Grant Program.   

d. Expend all grant funds received under this agreement solely for the purposes for which they 
were authorized and appropriated. 

e. Provide the DIVISION with statistical, narrative, financial and other evaluative reports as 
requested. 

f. Retain and make available to the DIVISION, upon request, all financial and programmatic 
records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other records for the project. 

g. Retain all records for a period of five years from the date of submission of the final project 
report.  If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has 
been started before the expiration of the five year period, the records shall be retained until 
completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of 
the regular five-year period, whichever is later. 

h. Establish and maintain a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting procedures.  To use and maintain adequate fiscal authority, control, and 
accounting procedures that will ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, project 
funds. 

i. Perform all acts in connection with this agreement in strict conformity with all applicable 
laws and regulations of the State of Florida. 

j. Not use any grant funds for lobbying the legislature, the judicial branch, or any state 
agency. 

k. Hereby certify that it is cognizant of the prohibition of conflicts of interest described in 
Sections 112.311 through 112.326, Florida Statutes, and affirms that it will not enter into 
or maintain a business or other relationship with any employee of the Department of State 
that would violate those provisions.  The GRANTEE further agrees to seek authorization 
from the General Counsel for the Department of State prior to entering into any business or 
other relationship with a Department of State employee to avoid a potential violation of 
those statutes.   

l. Not discriminate against any employee employed in the performance of this agreement, or 
against any applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, gender, national 
origin, age, handicap, or marital status.  The GRANTEE shall insert a similar provision in 
all subcontracts for services by this agreement. 
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m. In the event that the grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or 
in excess of $500,000 in any fiscal year of such GRANTEE, the grantee must have a State 
single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, 
Florida Statutes; applicable rules of the Department of Financial Services; and Chapters 
10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), 
Rules of the Auditor General.  In determining the state financial assistance expended in its 
fiscal year, the GRANTEE shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including 
state financial assistance received from the Department of State, other state agencies, and 
other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include federal direct or 
pass-through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for federal program 
matching requirements. 

In connection with the audit requirements addressed in part m, paragraph 1, the GRANTEE 
shall ensure that the audit complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), Florida 
Statutes. This includes submission of a financial reporting package as defined by Section 
215.97(2)(e), Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 
If the GRANTEE expends less than $500,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year, 
an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, 
is not required. In the event that the GRANTEE expends less than $500,000 in state 
financial assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
grantee’s resources obtained from other than State entities). 

Information related to the requirements of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, (the Florida 
Single Audit Act) and related documents may be found at apps.fldfs.com/fsaa. 

Copies of financial reporting packages required by this agreement shall be submitted by or 
on behalf of the GRANTEE directly to each of the following: 

1. The Department of State at the following addresses: 

Office of Inspector General 
Florida Department of State 
R. A. Gray Building, Room 114A 
500 South Bronough Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 

2. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

Auditor General’s Office 
Room 401, Pepper Building 
111 West Madison Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 

n. Identify an individual or position with the authority to make minor modifications to the 
application, if necessary, prior to execution of the agreement. 

https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa
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II. The DIVISION agrees: 

a. To provide a grant in accordance with the terms of this agreement in consideration of the 
GRANTEE’s performance hereinunder, and contingent upon funding by the Legislature.  
The State of Florida’s performance and obligation to pay under this agreement is contingent 
upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature.  In the event that the state funds on which 
this agreement is dependent are withdrawn, this agreement is terminated and the state has no 
further liability to the GRANTEE beyond that already incurred by the termination date.  In 
the event of a state revenue shortfall, the total grant may be reduced accordingly. 

b. To notify the grantee of the grant award after review and approval of required documents.  
The grant amount shall be calculated in accordance with Chapter 257, Florida Statutes, and 
guidelines for the State Aid to Libraries Grant Program. 

c. To distribute grant funds in two payments.  The first payment will be requested by the 
DIVISION from the Chief Financial Officer upon execution of the agreement.  The 
remaining payment will be made by June 30. 

d. That any balance of unobligated cash that has been paid to the grantee may be retained for 
direct program costs in a subsequent period. 

 

III. The GRANTEE and the DIVISION mutually agree that: 

a. This instrument embodies the whole agreement of the parties.  There are no provisions, 
terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein; and this agreement shall 
supersede all previous communications, representation, or agreements either verbal or 
written, between the parties.  No amendment shall be effective unless reduced in writing 
and signed by the parties. 

b. The agreement is executed and entered into in the State of Florida, and shall be construed, 
performed, and enforced in all respects in accordance with the laws and rules of the State of 
Florida.  Each party shall perform its obligations hereunder in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this agreement.  If any matter arising out of this Agreement becomes the 
subject of litigation, venue shall be in Leon County. 

c. If any term or provision of the agreement is found to be illegal and unenforceable, the 
remainder of the agreement shall remain in full force and effect and such term or provision 
shall be deemed stricken. 

d. No delay or omission to exercise any right, power, or remedy accruing to either party upon 
breach or default by either party under this Agreement shall impair any such right, power, or 
remedy of either party; nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any such 
breach or default, or any similar breach or default. 
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e. This agreement shall be terminated by the DIVISION because of failure of the GRANTEE to 
fulfill its obligations under the agreement in a timely and satisfactory manner unless the 
GRANTEE demonstrates good cause as to why it cannot fulfill its obligations.  Satisfaction 
of obligations by GRANTEE shall be determined by the DIVISION, based on the terms and 
conditions imposed on the GRANTEE in paragraphs I and III of this agreement and 
guidelines for the State Aid to Libraries Grant Program.  The DIVISION shall provide 
GRANTEE a written notice of default letter.  GRANTEE shall have 15 calendar days to 
cure the default.  If the default is not cured by GRANTEE within the stated period, the 
DIVISION shall terminate this agreement, unless the GRANTEE demonstrates good cause 
as to why it cannot cure the default within the prescribed time period.  For purposes of this 
agreement, "good cause" is defined as circumstances beyond the GRANTEE's control.  
Notice shall be sufficient if it is delivered to the party personally or mailed to its specified 
address.  In the event of termination of this agreement, the GRANTEE will be compensated 
for any work satisfactorily completed prior to notification of termination, if equitable. 

f. The DIVISION shall unilaterally cancel this agreement in the event that the GRANTEE 
refuses to allow public access to all documents or other materials made or received in regard 
to this agreement that are subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  
GRANTEE agrees to immediately contact the DIVISION for assistance in the event that it 
receives a public records request related to this agreement or the grant the it awards. 

g. The DIVISION shall not be liable to pay attorney fees, interest, late charges and service fees, 
or cost of collection related to the grant. 

h. The DIVISION shall not assume any liability for the acts, omissions to act or negligence of 
the GRANTEE, its agents, servants, or employees; nor shall the GRANTEE exclude liability 
for its own acts, omissions to act, or negligence to the DIVISION.  In addition, the 
GRANTEE hereby agrees to be responsible for any injury or property damage resulting from 
any activities conducted by the GRANTEE. 

i. The GRANTEE, other than a GRANTEE which is the State or agency or subdivision of the 
State, agrees to indemnify and hold the DIVISION harmless from and against any and all 
claims or demands for damages of any nature, including but not limited to personal injury, 
death, or damage to property, arising out of any activities performed under this agreement 
and shall investigate all claims at its own expense. 

j. The GRANTEE shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in 
connection with the project.  The GRANTEE may subcontract as necessary to perform the 
services set forth in this agreement, including entering into subcontracts with vendors for 
services and commodities, provided that such subcontract has been approved by the 
DIVISION, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, and provided that it is 
understood by the GRANTEE that the DIVISION shall not be liable to the subcontractor for 
any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subcontract and that the GRANTEE shall be 
solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the 
subcontract. 

k. Neither the State nor any agency or subdivision of the State waives any defense of sovereign 
immunity, or increases the limits of its liability, upon entering into a contractual relationship. 
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l. The GRANTEE, its officers, agents, and employees, in performance of this agreement, shall 
act in the capacity of an independent contractor and not as an officer, employee or agent of 
the DIVISION.  Under this agreement, GRANTEE is not entitled to accrue any benefits of 
state employment, including retirement benefits, and any other rights or privileges connected 
with employment in the State Career Service.  GRANTEE agrees to take such steps as may 
be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor of the GRANTEE will be deemed to be an 
independent contractor and will not be considered or permitted to be an agent, servant, joint 
venturer, or partner of the DIVISION. 

m. The GRANTEE shall not assign, sublicense, nor otherwise transfer its rights, duties, or 
obligations under this agreement without the prior written consent of the DIVISION, whose 
consent shall not unreasonably be withheld.  The agreement transferee must demonstrate 
compliance with the requirements of the program.  If the DIVISION approves a transfer of 
the GRANTEE’s obligations, the GRANTEE remains responsible for all work performed 
and all expenses incurred in connection with the Agreement.  In the event the Legislature 
transfers the rights, duties, or obligations of the Department to another governmental entity 
pursuant to Section 20.06, Florida Statutes, or otherwise, the rights, duties, and obligations 
under this agreement shall also be transferred to the successor government entity as if it were 
an original party to the agreement. 

n. This agreement shall bind the successors, assigns, and legal representatives of the 
GRANTEE and of any legal entity that succeeds to the obligation of the DIVISION. 

o. The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this agreement is contingent 
upon an annual appropriation by the legislature.  In the event that the state funds on which 
this agreement is dependent are withdrawn, this agreement is terminated and the DIVISION 
has no further liability to the GRANTEE beyond that already incurred by the termination 
date.  In the event of a state revenue shortfall, the total grant shall be reduced in accordance 
with Section 257.21, Florida Statutes. 

p. If the GRANTEE is in noncompliance with any term(s) of this grant agreement or any other 
grant agreement with the Division of Library and Information Services, the Division of 
Historical Resources or the Division of Cultural Affairs, the Division may withhold grant 
payments until the GRANTEE comes into compliance.  Violation of a grant program 
requirement, including but not limited to failure to submit grant reports and other grant 
documents; submission of incomplete grant reports or other grant documents; or violation of 
other grant agreement requirements; shall constitute a basis for the Division to place the 
GRANTEE in noncompliance status with the Department of State. 

q. The Division shall apply the following financial consequences for failure to perform the 
duties / tasks required in the scope of work. Should the library fail to provide free library 
service to the public or be open fewer than 40 hours per week, it will no longer be eligible to 
receive State Aid Libraries grant funding, and its funding will be reduced to $0.   

r. Unless there is a change of address, any notice required by this agreement shall be delivered 
to the Division of Library and Information Services, 500 South Bronough Street, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250, for the State and, for the GRANTEE, to its single library 
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administrative unit.  In the event of a change of address, it is the obligation of the moving 
party to notify the other party in writing of the change of address. 

IV. The term of this agreement will commence on the date of execution of the grant agreement 
 
. 

THE APPLICANT/GRANTEE   
 
 
___________________________________ 
Chair of Governing Body or   
Chief Executive Officer    
 
 
Dr. Rebecca Temple___________________ 
Typed Name     
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Clerk or Chief Financial Officer   
 
 
 
Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Typed Name and Title of Official   
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 

THE DIVISION 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Florida Department of State 
Division of Library and Information Services 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Typed Name 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Division Witness 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Division Witness 
 

 
 



   
AI-6943     County Administrator's Report      10. 20.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Museum on Main Street (MoMS) Affiliate Agreement
From: Darlene Howell, Library Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the 2015-2016 Museum on Main Street Affiliate Agreement -
Darlene Howell, Library Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the 2015-2016 Museum on Main
Street Affiliate Agreement: 

A. Approve and authorize the Chairman of the West Florida Public Library Board of
Governance and the Clerk to sign the 2015-2016 Museum on Main Street Affiliate
Agreement, in the amount of $6,000, between the West Florida Public Library on behalf
of Escambia County and the Florida Humanities Council for the 2015-2016 Museum on
Main Street Program.  The program is designed to provide enriching educational
experiences for residents and visitors and bring recognition to small communities with
populations of 20,000 or less.  The Way We Worked exhibit, adapted from an original
exhibition developed by the National Archives is intended to attract increased visitation to
the Molino Branch Library and the Molino Mid-County Historical Museum; and

B. Authorize the acceptance and disbursement of funds per Board policy.

[Funding:  Fund 113, Library Fund, will be increased by $6,000]

BACKGROUND:
The West Florida Public Library System was awarded a grant of $6,000 to host the
Florida Humanities Council's, Museum on Main Street (MoMS) program, in Escambia
County. Funded in part by the United States Congress, Museum on Main Street (MoMS)
combines the talents of the Smithsonian Institution, the state humanities councils, and
cultural organizations to bring national and local heritage to small communities across
the United States.

The West Florida Public Library and the Molino Mid-County Historical Society are
partnering to bring The Way We Worked to the Old Molino Museum. This exhibit



provides the ideal opportunity for the Library and its partners to work together to
preserve and promote the wealth of history in the area. In accordance with our mission
and strategic goals, the West Florida Public Library aims to promote a deeper
understanding of local history by exposing the community to the rich heritage of
Escambia County’s interior that tends to get overlooked in favor of more developed sites
near the coast. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
An increase of $6,000 to Fund 113, Library Fund.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenue to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Museum on Main Street
Museum on Main Street (MoMS) Affiliate Agreement 



West Florida Public Library 
Museum on Main Street – The Way We Worked 

Project Narrative 
 
 
Community and Demographics 
The West Florida Public Library and the Molino Mid-County Historical Society are partnering to bring The 
Way We Worked to the Old Molino Museum. The town of Molino is an unincorporated area located 
approximately 25 miles north of Pensacola in the rural center of Escambia County (map included in the 
supporting documentation.) As of the 2010 Census, Molino was home to a total of 1,277 people. The 
racial make-up of the area was 75.3% White and 20.7% African American, with all other races making up 
the remaining 4%. Only 2% of the population claimed Hispanic or Latino ethnicity. 
 
The town of Molino is a community of proud people who have a deep awareness of their area’s unique 
heritage. In its 250 years of settlement, it has been a Spanish mission, an industrial boomtown, and, 
today, a quiet community just beyond the bustle of Pensacola’s suburbs. The 1939 schoolhouse, an 
iconic symbol of the Molino community, had fallen into disuse after school consolidations left it vacant 
in 2003. In 2012, the Molino Mid-County Historical Society acquired the newly restored Molino School 
building to operate as a museum and community center. In 2013, the West Florida Public Library 
established a branch in the building.  
 

 
 
By breathing new life into a beloved old building, the Molino Community Center has become a very 
visible and literal symbol of the community’s revitalization. The Way We Worked is a prime opportunity 
to build on this momentum. By bringing a Smithsonian traveling exhibit to this small-town museum, we 
aim to attract new interest in this community and increase opportunities for investment in future 
preservation endeavors.  
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Organization Mission 
The mission of the West Florida Public Library is to act as the community’s independent learning center 
for residents of all ages who live in Escambia County, Florida. The library will strive to meet the 
informational, recreational, and educational needs of the community by providing free access to reading 
and audio-visual materials, and serving as an information portal offering public computing, database, 
and Internet access technology. 
 
A Blue Ribbon Task Force convened in 2012 to develop a strategic plan to guide the West Florida Public 
Library through 2018. A summary of the strategic goals are: 

• Lifelong Learning: Residents will find personal enrichment, be exposed to new ideas, and 
continue to learn throughout their lives. 

• Early Literacy: Children will have programs and services designed to give them experiences that 
will support them as they enter school ready to learn, read, write, and listen. 

• Reading, Viewing, and Listening for Pleasure: Residents will find the Library a vibrant 
community of readers, as we connect people to resources that stimulate the imagination. 

• Information Fluency: Residents will be empowered to improve their critical thinking skills and 
develop the skills they need to incorporate learning into their daily lives. 

• Civic Engagement: Residents will find the Library a civic focal point and resource for Escambia 
County’s communities. 

• Genealogy and Local History: Residents will build bridges between Escambia County’s past, 
present, and future. 

 
Organization History 
A subscription library was established in Pensacola by the Pensacola Library Association in 1885. 
In 1911, the Carnegie Corporation offered a $25,000 grant to establish a public library in Pensacola, if 
the city would commit just a tenth of that amount. The public voted not to accept the "tainted" money 
and the Pensacola City Council rejected the grant on July 13, 1911.  A similar offer seems to have been 
made again in 1916, but was again refused by the city. 
 
Escambia County did not have a public library until 1938, when it was opened through the work of Lucia 
Tryon in the Old Christ Church building. The old church building reopened as the library on February 15, 
1938 with 3,352 donated books.  The system has grown into what is now known as the West Florida 
Public Library. 
 
The West Florida Public Library System is an organization of libraries that serve Escambia County, 
Florida. The West Florida Public Library currently operates 7 locations.  The library system currently has 
approximately 360,000 books, 36,000 audio resources, and 14,000 video resources in circulation. In 
addition to its branch libraries, the library system operates a mobile library, the "Bookmobile", which 
visits a number of locations throughout Escambia County each week. 
 
Recent Exhibitions and Programs 
The West Florida Public Library is committed to providing programs that help achieve our objectives.  
We have successfully secured previous grant funding and been able to present a wide-variety of quality 
programs to the citizens of Escambia County. Most recently, our eight-month Explore Pensacola History 
series (sponsored by the Florida Humanities Council) was nominated by the local chapter of the 
Freedoms Foundation for national recognition in the category of outstanding programming.  Additional 
highlights of successful program series in the last year include: 
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• America’s Music: A Film History of Our Popular Music (National Endowment for the Humanities) 
• Civil War 150 (Library of America/Gilder Lehman Institute of American History) 
• Discover Earth (National Science Foundation) 

 
For full details of WFPL’s programming, including the Freedoms Foundation nomination letter, please 
see the Summary of Recent Exhibitions and Programs included in the supporting documentation. 
 
Exhibit Site Description 
The Molino Community Center occupies a Depression-era school building (see Exhibit Site Plan in the 
supporting documentation.) The exhibit will take place in the Old Molino Museum, located adjacent to 
the building’s main entrance ensuring prime visibility. The space consists of the equivalent of three 
classrooms with the interior walls removed. The Way We Worked will be arranged in the center “aisle” 
of the museum, allowing the standing exhibits to remain along the walls. We will ensure there is 
adequate space on either side to ensure accessibility for all visitors. 
 
The Molino Branch Library is located opposite the museum. We will utilize space in the library for an art 
exhibit highlighting scenes from Molino’s past to complement The Way We Worked. 
 
In addition to the museum and library spaces, there is a 300-person auditorium that we will use for 
presentations taking place on site. The hallway just above the museum space will house a 
complementary exhibit on local industry.  
 
The Way We Worked Fit and Community Goals 
Molino has been settled since around 1741 when it was the site of Mission San José de Escambe during 
the Second Spanish Period. Following the Civil War and up until the First World War, it was a bustling 
center of industry and commerce as a result of the timber boom. Hard times followed as the timber 
market declined, and then Mother Nature hit the town with two major floods in the 1920s. By the time 
of the Great Depression, Molino was a shadow of its former self and never entirely recovered. Because 
of Molino’s industrial past and the changes in its fortunes through the years, it sets the story of The Way 
We Worked within a local context.  
 
This exhibit provides the ideal opportunity for the Library and its partners to work together to preserve 
and promote the wealth of history in the area. In accordance with our mission and strategic goals, the 
West Florida Public Library aims to promote a deeper understanding of local history by exposing the 
community to the rich heritage of Escambia County’s interior that tends to get overlooked in favor of 
more developed sites near the coast. We hope that by raising awareness of the Molino community’s 
historic significance, the Molino Mid-County Historical Society will attract the investment needed to 
preserve additional sites in the area, including the old jail and other structures in need of rescue.  
 
Community Collaboration 
Community collaboration is at the heart of our program to support The Way We Worked during its time 
in the area.  The West Florida Public Library has always enjoyed strong partners in all its initiatives.  The 
system enjoys solid support from residents and elected officials.  In 2013, the Escambia County Board of 
Commissioners voted to create a municipal service taxing unit to provide for a dedicated funding source 
for the library.  This move highlights the importance our area places on the services which the West 
Florida Public Library provides. 
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Past programs and exhibitions have resulted in numerous community partnerships.  The 400+ members 
of the Friends of West Florida Public Library (the Friends) work tirelessly to provide volunteer hours and 
funding to support library initiatives.  This 41 year-old organization exists solely to support the library 
system.  It has been a partner in nearly all library programs.  The Friends once again have pledged 
resources to ensure The Way We Worked is a success. 
 
In addition to our dedicated support organization, several community organizations have agreed to 
support the West Florida Public Library’s bid for The Way We Worked.  Organizations have agreed to 
provide presenters, program development, cross-promotion, etc.  The list of supporters continues to 
grow.  At the time of our application, we have secured the following partners: 
 

Florida Public Archaeology Network – committed to identifying presenters and program 
opportunities, assisting in developing the program lineup, and cross-promoting programs. 

Barrineau Park Historical Society – committed to identifying presenters and program 
opportunities, seeking additional community support, providing event space as needed, and 
assisting in publicity and promotion. 

Friends of West Florida Public Library – committed to offering publicity, providing staffing as 
needed, and providing cash/in-kind support. 

Molino Mid-County Historical Society – Committed to providing museum space for exhibit, 
storing shipping crates, providing venue for weeknight programs, identifying presenters and 
community support, and assisting in promotion. 

University of West Florida Archaeology Institute – Committed to identifying presenters and 
program opportunities, assisting in developing program lineup, and cross-promoting 
programs. 

University of West Florida Trust for Historic Preservation – Committed to providing programming 
for children and families. 

 
In addition to the above organizations, we have reached out to several other organizations who have 
indicated a willingness to provide some form of support.  These organizations include:  the Greater 
Pensacola Chamber of Commerce, the Alger-Sullivan Historical Society, the African American Heritage 
Society, and Molino Park Elementary School. 
 
Preliminary Programming 
Because of its many years of continuous settlement, Escambia County is fertile ground for exploring the 
past from a variety of perspectives. We anticipate beginning our program series in advance of the 
exhibit’s installation in order to cultivate early interest. In order to attract the widest possible range of 
audiences, we have collaborated with our partners to develop the following preliminary program lineup: 
 

Dr. John Bratten – The History of Cypress Logging on the Escambia River 
Teniade Broughton – Black Labor in Pensacola between Reconstruction and Jim Crow 
Sheyna Marcey – Children at Work and Play 
Raymon Melvin – Turpentine and Naval Stores Production in the Piney Woods  
Dr. Brian Rucker – The History of Escambia County’s Brickyards 
Margo Stringfield – African American Grave Markers and the Craftsmen Who Built Them  
Dr. John Worth – Mission San José de Escambe: Molino’s First Workplace 

 
In addition to these programs, we have identified potential presenters on topics such as: 

• The History and Culture of the Snapper Fishing Industry 
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• Changing Agricultural Patterns 
• Keeping the Home Fires Burning (Homesteading) 
• The Railroad Industry in Escambia County 
• The Military and Supporting Industries 
• Moonshine and Rum-Running 
• Sawmills and Logging Camps 
• Technology – The Future of Work in Escambia County 

 
We are confident that these options will appeal to people of diverse backgrounds and interests, and we 
are committed to providing programs for both adults and children. In addition to at least two dedicated 
children’s programs, we will work with the elementary school serving the Molino community to ensure 
that each student has the opportunity to visit the museum while The Way We Worked is in town. 
 
Complementary Resources 
The Way We Worked allows for a huge range of possibilities to engage the community beyond the 
traveling exhibit itself. We will develop brochures and bookmarks to begin generating interest in the 
exhibit well before its arrival. These advance publicity items will serve the dual purpose of promoting 
The Way We Worked while introducing people to the hidden treasures of Escambia County’s history. 
 
In order to tie in the story of The Way We Worked to our local history, the West Florida Public Library 
will work with our partners and graphic designers to create a professional-quality complementary 
exhibit focusing on the history of work in Escambia County. Tentatively titled Escambia at Work, the 
exhibit will be highly portable and, in addition to being on display at the Molino Community Center at 
the same time as The Way We Worked, will rotate to sites throughout the county, including library 
branches, partner organizations, and the Greater Pensacola Chamber of Commerce. 
 
We anticipate an additional complementary art exhibit to be housed in the Molino Branch Library for 
the duration of the national exhibit. The Molino Mid-County Historical Society will commission local 
artists to depict scenes from Molino’s history. Not only will this appeal to an entirely different audience, 
but we hope this will inspire visitors’ imaginations and excite them about the possibilities of additional 
community preservation. 
 
In addition to creating reading lists for both adults and children, we hope to work with Molino Park 
Elementary School to develop lessons plans that introduce students in all grades to the history of their 
community, culminating in a field trip to visit the Old Molino Museum.  
 
 

 
 











   
AI-6743     County Administrator's Report      10. 21.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Install Refurbish and Removal of Pavement Markings and Associated

Items PD 13-14.084
From: Amy Lovoy 
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Install Refurbish and Removal of Pavement Markings and
Associated Items - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board award an Indefinite Quantity Indefinite Delivery Contract, #PD
13-14.084, Install, Refurbish and Removal of Pavement Markings and Associated
Items, and approve the Agreement Relating to Pavement Markings between Gulf Coast
Traffic Engineers, Inc., and Escambia County, for the annual budgeted amount
of $300,000, for a term of three years. 

[Funding:  Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center  211201, Object
Code  54601, $300,000]

BACKGROUND:
The Office of Purchasing advertised the solicitation September 1, 2014 in the Pensacola
News Journal. Two bids were received on September 10, 2014.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding: Fund 175 Transportation Trust Fund, Cost Center 211201, Object Code 54601,
$300,000.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney Kristin Hual prepared the Contract.

PERSONNEL:
NA

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County FL, Code of



This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County FL, Code of
Ordinance, Chapter 46, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will issue the Contract and Purchase Order. The Office of
Purchasing will issue the Contract and Purchase Order.

Attachments
Bid Tab
agreement





















































   
AI-6902     County Administrator's Report      10. 22.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Recommendation to Approve Contract between Board of County

Commissioners and Florida Department of Health in Escambia County
2014/15

From: John J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director 
Organization: Florida Dept. of Health in Esc. Co.
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Operation of the Escambia County Health Department - John
J. Lanza, MD, PhD, MPH, FAAP, Director, Florida Department of Health in Escambia County

That the Board take the following action concerning the operation of the Escambia
County Health Department for Contract Year 2014-2015:
 
A. Adopt, as allowed by Florida Statutes, Chapter 154, the Resolution entitled, "A
Resolution Authorizing a Contract Between the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners and the State of Florida, Department of Health, Escambia County Health
Department for the Provision of Certain Medical Services; Providing for an Effective
Date," for the Contract year of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution and the Contract.

[The Escambia County Board of County Commissioners agrees to appropriate $337,649
to the Escambia County Health Department for the Fiscal year October 1, 2014, through
September 30, 2015]

BACKGROUND:
Annually, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners and the State of
Florida, Department of Health enter into a contract for the operation of the Escambia
County Health Department, as authorized by Florida Statutes, Chapter 154.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The Escambia County Board of County Commissioners agrees to appropriate $337,649
to Escambia County Health Department for the Fiscal year October 1, 2014, through
September 30, 2015.



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Section 154.01 Florida Statutes states that "The several counties of the state may
cooperate with the Department of Health in the establishment and maintenance of
full-time county health departments in such counties for the promotion of the public's
health, the control and eradication of preventable diseases, and the provision of primary
care for special populations...The Department of Health shall enter into contracts with
several counties for the purposes of this part."

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This recommendation requires the approval of the recommended Resolution and
requires that the Board Chairman sign the attached contract.

Attachments
DOH Contract Resolution 14/15
DOH Contract 14/15













































   
AI-6968     County Administrator's Report      10. 23.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Authorization for Out-of-County Travel - 2014/2015 Annual Travel

Schedule
From: Jack Brown, County Administrator 
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Authorization for Out-of-County Travel - 2014/2015 Board's
Annual Travel Schedule - Jack R. Brown, County Administrator

That the Board authorize out-of-County travel for any member of the Board, the County
Administrator, and/or the County Attorney wishing to participate in the
conferences/events, as noted on the 2014/2015 Annual Travel/Conference Schedule.

BACKGROUND:
The attached conference/event schedule lists all conferences, workshops, and meetings
that the Commissioners, County Administrator, and/or the County Attorney may wish to
attend during Fiscal Year 2014-2015.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Expenditures for travel expenses will be from budgeted funds within the appropriate Cost
Center/Object Code for the traveler.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Travel authorizations/reimbursements are in compliance with Florida Statutes, Chapter
112.061, "Per Diem and Travel Expenses" and the Board of County Commissioner's
Policy "Out-of-County Travel, Section I, Part C".

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



The County Administrator's Office will handle all of the details associated with the above
conferences.

Attachments
Annual Conference Sch 2014-15



ANNUAL 
TRAVEL/CONFERENCE SCHEDULE 2014-2015 

 
 

DATE ORGANIZATION TYPE OF MEETING LOCATION 
November  19-21, 
2014 

Florida Association of Counties Legislative Conference Tampa, FL  
February 21-25, 2015 NACo  Legislative Conference Washington, DC 
March 25-27, 2015 Florida Association of Counties Legislative Day Tallahassee, FL (Leon County) 
March 30-April 2, 2015 National Hurricane Conference Annual Hurricane Conference Austin, Texas 
May 10-15, 2015 Governor’s Hurricane 

Conference 
Hurricane Conference Orlando, FL (Orange County) 

June 16-19, 2015 Florida Association of Counties Annual Conference St. Augustine, FL (St. Johns County) 
July 10-13, 2015 NACo Annual Conference Charlotte, NC (Mecklenburg County) 
*TBD Florida League of Cities  Annual Conference **TBD 
*TBD Florida Association of Counties Leadership Retreat **TBD 
*TBD Florida Association of Counties ***Board Retreat **TBD 
*TBD Florida Association of Counties  Policy Conference **TBD 
*TBD  Gulf Power Economic Symposium Destin, FL  (Okaloosa County) 
*TBD BP Oil Spill Meetings Any meeting related to the BP Oil 

Spill 
**TBD 

*TBD Florida Association of Counties ***FAC BOD/Policy Meetings  **TBD 
*TBD Florida Department of 

Transportation 
County Related  **TBD 

*TBD Florida Association of Counties County Commissioner Certification **TBD  
*TBD Florida Association of Counties Advance Commissioner Certification **TBD 
*TBD Gulf Coast Aerospace Coalition Any meeting related to Economic 

Development  
**TBD 

*TBD State of Florida Any meeting related to the State of 
Florida 
(Legislative/Governor/DEP/DOR, 
etc.) 

**TBD 

*TBD Greater Pensacola Chamber of 
Commerce 

Chamber Fly-In Washington, DC 
 

*TBD Florida League of Cities Legislative Conference **TBD 
*TBD Florida League of Cities Legislative Days Tallahassee, FL (Leon County) 
*TBD Florida Association of Counties ****FAC President Meetings **TBD 
 
 
 
*Actual dates have not been announced. 
**Meeting location to be determined. 
***Comr. Robinson is on FAC’s Board of Directors. 
****Comr. Robinson is the current President of the Florida Association of Counties. (To be 100% reimbursed by FAC.) 

 
 



   
AI-6942     County Attorney's Report      10. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 10/09/2014  
Issue: Settlement of Workers' Compensation Claim Involving Raymond Merritt
From: Ryan Ross, Assistant County Attorney 
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Settlement of a Workers' Compensation Claim Involving
Raymond Merritt.

That the Board approve a washout workers compensation settlement for former
employee Raymond Merritt in the amount of $125,773.00, inclusive of the attorney's fees
and costs.  An excess insurance carrier will reimburse the County for 100.0% of this
settlement amount.

BACKGROUND:
Raymond Merritt is a former Solid Waste Department employee who suffered
work-related injuries in 1993 and 1994.  He has received substantial medical treatment
for these injuries.  (For a detailed medical history, please contact Assistant County
Attorney Ryan Ross.)  To achieve significant cost savings over the life of this claim,
outside counsel for the County's workers compensation carrier has negotiated a
washout settlement in the amount of $125,773.00.  This settlement will resolve all
liability for these claims, and includes funding for a Medicare Set-Aside that has been
approved by the Center for Medicare Services.  An excess workers compensation
insurance carrier shall reimburse the County for 100.0% of this settlement amount.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
This agreement was reviewed by Ryan E. Ross, Assistant County Attorney. 

PERSONNEL:
N/A



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.
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